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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B &=

2017 Changes
HK$'m %
B AT B
(Loss) Profit for the year Attributable 72 F1#EA A (G F A
to Owners of the Company (E518) & (49.4) 260.2 (119%)
Total Assets BERE 11,345 11,946 (5%)
Equity Attributable to Owners of RREVHEE NERRAR
the Company 6,749 7,103 (5%)
Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and $R177F « $RITA &R K
Cash Be 860 1,485 (42%)
Changes
Key Performance and Liquidity FEEERRAR HK$ %
Indicators R RISE BT B2
Basic (Loss) Earnings Per Share BRAR(EE) B (0.0214) 0.113 (119%)
Net Assets Per Share (Note 1) BREEFEMNFZT) 2.93 3.08 (5%)
P/E Ratio (Note 1) MAE(MF1) (71.5x) 11.1x (744%)
Return on Capital Employed (Note 2) R&ZAR[EI3R =R (ff5£2) (0.7%) 3.7% (119%)
Return on Total Assets (Note 3) BEELRE(WFESI) (0.4%) 2.2% (118%)
Gearing Ratio (Note 4) BB E AT 4) 43.3% 45.5% (5%)
Adjusted Gearing Ratio (Note 5) KRAREEL R (M) 31% 25% 24%
Current Ratio (Note 6) BN K (B 6) 1.3x 1.0x 30%
Interest Coverage (Note 7) FEEMNLLRAE7) (0.7x) 2.7x (126%)

Notes:

1.

Based on 2,304,849,611 shares issued and fully paid as at 31
December, 2018 (2017: 2,304,849,611 shares) and the market
closing price of HK$1.53 (2017: HK$1.25) per share.

Calculated as (loss) profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company over equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

Calculated as (loss) profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company over total assets.

Calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

Calculated as net borrowings over equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

Calculated as current assets over current liabilities.
Calculated as (loss) profit for the year attributable to owners of

the Company before finance costs and taxation over finance
costs.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION t#%& %

Board of Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Silver
Grant International Industries Limited (the “Company”) as at
the date of this report are set out below:

Executive Directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)
(resigned on 29 January 2019)

Ma Yilin

Huang Jiajue (appointed on 29 January 2019)

Luo Zhihai (appointed on 29 January 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Chu Hing Tsung (Chairman) (appointed on 29 January 2019)
Luo Zhenhong (Chairman) (resigned on 29 January 2019)
Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 29 January 2019)
Chen Qiming (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 29 January 2019)
Chen Zhiwei (appointed on 29 January 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Liang Qing
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

Audit Committee

Hung Muk Ming (Committee Chairman)
Liang Qing
Zhang Lu

Remuneration Committee

Zhang Lu (Committee Chairman)
Liang Qing
Huang Jiajue (appointed on 29 January 2019)

Nomination Committee

Chu Hing Tsung (Committee Chairman)
(appointed on 29 January 2019)

Luo Zhenhong (Committee Chairman)
(resigned on 29 January 2019)

Zhang Lu

Hung Muk Ming
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CORPORATE INFORMATION t#%& %

Company Secretary
Chow Kwok Wai
Company Lawyer
Tung & Co. Solicitors
Legal Counselor
Tung Tat Chiu, Michael
Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Citic Bank International Limited
Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

(Tel: 29801888 Fax: 28610285)
Registered Office

Suite 4901, 49th Floor,

Office Tower, Convention Plaza,

1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(Tel: 28770030 Fax: 28029506)
Company Website
http://www.silvergrant.com.hk

Stock Code

171
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

REVIEW OF RESULTS

The results of the Group has recorded a turnaround from
profit in last year to loss for the current year. The loss
attributable to owners of the Company for 2018 was
approximately HK$49,375,000 (2017: profit of approximately
HK$260,201,000). Basic loss per share was 2.14 HK cents
(2017: earnings of 11.29 HK cents).

The current year’s results recorded a change from profit to
loss was mainly due to the results of the subsidiary, Taizhou
United East Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ United
East”) and the principal associate, Zhong Hai You Qi (Tai
Zhou) Petrochemical Company Limited (“Zhong Hai You Qi”)
were both affected by (i) the turbulence of international crude
oil prices and (i) TZ United East’s voluntarily suspension
of its production for a five months period from May to
September 2018 in order to carry out the necessary major
overhaul on its production facilities. As TZ United East was
unable to earn subcontracting income from Zhong Hai You
Qi during the period of suspended production to mitigate its
operating expenditure, TZ United East therefore recorded
a significant increase in operating losses of approximately
HK$373,638,000. At the same time, as TZ United East was
not able to provide subcontracting services to Zhong Hai You
Qi during the period of suspended production, Zhong Hai
You Qi has to change its production method to produce and
sell petrochemical products with much lower profit margins.
Moreover, international crude oil prices suddenly dropped
significantly in the last two months of 2018, resulted in a
significant decrease in the profit contribution from Zhong
Hai You Qi of approximately HK$185,102,000 as a result
of decrease in the gross margin of its products and the
provision of impairment loss in respect of it inventories.

The change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss mainly includes realized gain from
disposal of financial assets, net valuation gain and interest
income from structured bank deposits amounting to
approximately HK$122,429,000 in aggregate which has
partially compensated the adverse effect on profit brought
about by reasons described in the above paragraph.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E5

OUTLOOK

The Board anticipates that global economy will continue to
face a high degree of uncertainties and challenges in 2019.
Especially the negative impacts from the trade war between
China and the United States and the Brexit in Europe, which
cannot be easily solved in the short-term and will inevitably
further affect the global macro economy and market
confidence. The Board will closely monitor the development
of these issues and will try its best effort to implement
suitable measures as appropriate.

At the same time, the Board anticipates that China will
concentrate on the extensive development of domestic
economy to mitigate the risk bring by global economy. In light
of the fact that the Group’s business activities are principally
carried on in the China market, it is expected that the Group
will be benefited from the future development trend of China
economy.

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS

Property Leasing

Rental income of Beijing East Gate Development Co.,
Limited (“Beijing East Gate”) for the current year amounted
to approximately HK$105,624,000 (2017: HK$100,439,000).
Rental income increased slightly by approximately 5% was
mainly attributable to the increase in rental rates upon
renewal of tenancy agreements. The occupation rate of the
commercial portion and the residential portion of East Gate
Plaza in the current year was approximately 95% (2017:
97%). The property leasing segment recorded an increase
of approximately 20% to approximately HK$117,395,000
(2017: HK$97,888,000). Segment results recorded a higher
increase was mainly due to the additional impact of fair
value gain on revaluation of investment properties increased
to approximately HK$62,477,000 (2017: approximately
HK$55,285,000) which has further increased the segment
results.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

Property Development

Cinda Jianrun Property Company Limited (“Cinda Jianrun”)
is a 30% owned associate of the Group. In 2014, there was
a downward adjustment trend in the real estate market in
China as both prices and floor area of commodity houses
sold declined over the previous years. In the second half year
of 2014, there were signs of improvement in the real estate
market after the local governments (except Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou and Shenzhen) gradually loosened the restrictions
on mortgage lending and purchase. In addition, as the
authority to take austerity measures on the real estate market
was delegated from the central to the local governments
and with the full liberalization of financing to the real estate
industry and mortgage loans for home purchases, it will
provide the impetus for recovery of the real estate market.

In addition, due to the fact that Cinda Jianrun needs more
time to realise its short-term and medium-term investments at
appropriate price levels, the Board decided not to close the
operations of Cinda Jianrun in 2014 and continue to retain
Cinda Jianrun as a vehicle company. When the operating
environment of the real estate sector have signs of further
improvement, the Group will re-consider to invest in and/or
develop medium to high grade real estate projects.

In the second half year of 2017, Cinda Jianrun completed
the disposal of a majority of its investments to realize a large
amount of cash and recognized a significant gain at the
same time. As a result, the results of Cinda Jianrun achieved
improvement and recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$198,816,000 with a profit contribution of approximately
HK$59,645,000 to the Group in 2017. The results of China
Jianrun returned to normal in 2018 and recorded a loss
of approximately HK$20,540,000 and brought loss of
approximately HK$6,162,000 to the Group.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E5

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

Petrochemical Products

In light of the fact that there are complementary advantages
in the raw materials structure, the manufacturing processes
and the common engineering systems employed in
production by TZ United East and Zhong Hai You Qi. TZ
United East and Zhong Hai You Qi has reached a joint
production arrangement in 2017 for the purpose of enhancing
production effectiveness and efficiency of each other. Under
the joint production arrangement, Zhong Hai You Qi will
provide the critical raw material including crude oil and fuel
oil and appoint TZ United East to carry out the production
processes as a subcontractor. Consequently, Zhong
Hai You Qi will oversee sales on a group basis. Through
joint production arrangement, the purpose of centralizing
the processing of resources, reducing logistic costs,
consolidating complimentary advantages and enhancing the
economics of scale and synergy effect is achieved.

TZ United East

TZ United East is non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. TZ United East’s principal business is manufacturing
and trading of fuel oil, liquid gas and propylene. After the
completion of the Binjiang Project, the current annual
production capacity of TZ United East has been increased
from 110,000 tons to 1,600,000 tons.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

TZ United East (Continued)

The operating results of TZ United East are summarized
below:

408 4T T S 4

EROENRRE(E)

=N ()

FMRBHEEXEMEBWT ¢

2017 Change

Tons =)

g %

Raw material processed under joint  Bt& 4 E T 2 RBH £

production mT 582,100 1,160,900 (50%)

Raw materials sold R R HE 6,400 34,900 (82%)
Change

HKS$ million HKS$ million #

BEET B AT %
Revenue — sub-contracting income ~ YgA — JIZEUA 385.9 715.2 (46%)
Revenue — raw materials sold WA — HERME 20.2 90.1 (78%)
406.1 805.3 (50%)
Net loss F A (400.7) (27.1) 1,379%

Revenue from raw materials sold for both years represented
revenue received from the direct selling of the raw materials
acquired through previously contracted supply contracts.

Decrease in revenue from raw materials processed was
mainly due to TZ United East’s voluntarily suspension of its
production for a five-months period from May to September
2018 in order to carry out the necessary major overhaul on
its production facilities. As TZ United East was unable to
earn subcontracting income from Zhong Hai You Qi under
joint production arrangement during the period of suspended
production to mitigate its operating expenditure, TZ United
East therefore recorded a significant increase in losses of
approximately HK$373,638,000.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS ES#KER T

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

Zhong Hai You Qi

Zhong Hai You Qi is 33% indirectly owned associate of the
Group. Its principal business is manufacturing and trading of
fuel oil, lubricant oil and heavy duty bitumen. Following the
completion of the Integration Project in September 2016,
Zhong Hai You Qi is capable to produce a full range of
petrochemical products including liquid gas, lubricant oil, fuel
oil (diesel) and solvent oil, covering over 90% of the products
output. The current annual production capacity of Zhong Hai
You Qi is 4.5 million tons.

The operating results of Zhong Hai You Qi are summarized

EROENRRE(E)

iR M A

RN AL BN S B 5 5% 33% Ry
ENR e HXrZEBEEEREEMRH -
HEH EXEEEER - T —EB(LBEARE
HIEN2016F 9T LE R HREMA
{CEBEERERIER BB - HRH (%
)RR E 2RI MA BRI TE®R
EMEEZXREI0%  EmFERDLIZME

4,500,000 M °

FERRMAOENEERERENT

below:

Changes
2017 HeE)
Tons %
g A7t
Annual production capacity FER 4,500,000 4,500,000 N/A 3 A
Crude oil processed JFomAn T 4,213,600 4,032,600 4%
Changes
29
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEETT BEET Iz
Revenue WA 21,912.6 19,003.6 15%
Net profit SF g ) 201.1 762.0 (74%)

Profit contribution before non- FEJ2E 1|4 2 AT Vi 1) B JBR
controlling interests 66.4 251.5 (74%)

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

Zhong Hai You Qi (Continued)

Despite the fact that Zhong Hai You Qi has recorded a
growth in revenue, there was a prominent decrease in
net profit. The main reason was due to the five months
suspended production of TZ United East. As TZ United East
was not able to provide subcontracting services to Zhong Hai
You Qi during the period of suspended production, Zhong
Hai You Qi has changed its production method to produce
and sell petrochemical products with much lower profit
margins. Moreover, international crude oil prices suddenly
dropped significantly in the last two months of 2018, resulted
in a significant decrease in the net profit of Zhong Hai You
Qi in 2018 as a result of decrease in the gross margin of its
products and the provision of impairment loss before taxation
amounting to approximately HK$165,485,000 in respect of its
inventories.

Profit contribution from Zhong Hai You Qi for the year was
approximately HK$66,365,000 (2017: HK$251,467,000).
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS ES#KER T

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)
Financial Assets

The Group strategically invested in certain PRC enterprises
which are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value
of these financial assets with individual allocation (unless
otherwise explained, changes in the carrying balance as at
both year ends were due to the translation difference brought
by changes in RMB exchange rates) detailed below:

EROENRRE(E)
TREE

AEBERBEEREETHIEMCETBREA
LWAhBF2EBEHEEFH T ABENEME
B o A2018%F 12 831 H » Lo mEBER
EREer(BRIESERE - MEFERERE
BRNEHIREARBERSELNRES
BETRAE FERATE) 2 MBI T

2017
HK$’'m
A&
Under non-current assets FRBEEET
JC International pailEi 124.0 124.6
Beijing TeraSolar JKIG e & 64.9 69.7
CUP Hh [ ER B - 54.0
CITIC International Trading FIEEEFRRZ S0 18.4 22.6
Hejing Zhongdao aitE 11.9 24.2
Structured finance securities LRSS B R 6.8 7.0
Others (Note 1) M (HaE1) 2.8 5.6
228.8 307.7
Under current assets REBEEET
National Trust Bl RE5E 573.8 606.2
Structured bank deposits (Note 2) EEMIRITER (A E2) - 1,182.5
Listed securities (Note 3) EmBEHFE3) 3.2 100.5
577.0 1,889.2
805.8 2,196.9
Note: s

(1) Decrease in the carrying amount was due to disposal of a
subsidiary, which held a club membership during the year.

(2)  Decrease in the carrying amount was attributable to the
transfer to cash and bank balances upon maturity of the
structured bank deposits during the year.

(3) Decrease in the carrying amount was due to disposal of a
majority of the listing securities held for trading purposes
during the year.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

JC International

The Group invested RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$124,600,000) for an indirect equity interest
of 10% in Jiangxi Copper International Trading Co., Ltd. (“*JC
International”). JC International is a 60% owned subsidiary of
Jiangxi Copper Company Limited and is principally engaged
in the trading of copper on both the spot and futures market.

Beijing TeraSolar

Beijing TeraSolar Photothermal Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing TeraSolar”)is a high-tech enterprise providing
complete solution for solar thermal electric system
specialising in research and development, manufacture
and marketing services of solar mirrors, concentrating
collectors, thermal storage systems, solar tracking devices
and supporting structures. It is further supported by a strong
technical team of experienced experts, with doctor and
master degrees who have been focusing on the research
and development of concentrating solar thermal (“CST”)
technologies and products for over 6 years. In the PRC,
it has been granted with 57 patents in total, including 12
invention patents and 45 utility model patents. It also has 35
patents pending for application in total, including 32 invention
patents and 3 utility model patents. On the other hand, the
Beijing TeraSolar devotes itself to comprehensive utilisation
and development of renewable energy. With its advanced
technologies, rich experience, foreseeing idea and continuous
technical innovation, Beijing TeraSolar is well positioned to
play an important role in new product’s development, quality
assurance and service system, and promote the CST industry
in the PRC and the world.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E5

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)
Beijing TeraSolar (Continued)

In May 2015, the Group entered into an agreement to
invest RMB116,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$129,500,000) in cash to Beijing TeraSolar for an
equity interest of 8.29%. During the year of 2015, the
Group paid RMB58,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$64,700,000) as partial payment in accordance with the
terms of the agreement, the remaining balance was paid in
accordance with the actual funding need of Beijing TeraSolar.

Beijing TeraSolar has utilised its patent technologies in
core technology in solar thermal power generation system
to construct a photothermal power station with a 15MW
capacity and is progressing at a steady pace as scheduled.

cup

CUP is the largest bank card association and credit card
issuers in the Mainland China having a very bright business
prospect. At 31 December 2017, the Group beneficially
owns 7.5 million shares in CUP. The Group has disposed of
its entire interest in CUP during the current year at a total
consideration of approximately HK$239,300,000.

Hejing Zhongdao

In the second half year of 2016, the Company’s wholly
subsidiary established a partnership venture with independent
third parties by investing approximately RMB20,200,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,200,000) to Beijing
Hejing Zhongdao Technology Investment Partnership (“Hejing
Zhongdao”) for a partnership interest of approximately
18.0%. The partnership purpose of Hejing Zhongdao is to
invest unlisted entities engaged in high and new technology
sectors such as information technology, new energy and new
materials industries. Decrease in the carrying amount in the
current year was mainly due to decrease in fair value of the
investment.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)
CITIC International Trading

In the second half year of 2017, the Group invested
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,000,000) for an 20% initial equity interest in CITIC
International Trading Center Co., Limited (“CITIC International
Trading”). Pursuant to mutual agreement, certain equity
interest will be transferred to the key management and critical
persons of core business of CITIC International Trading
in 2018. Citic International Trading was a new company
established in Qianhai Shenzhen in China by CITIC Limited. It
has a dual development plan. One is to carry on an exchange
platform for resources after national policies open up for
such business. For the time being, it is focusing on the
development of data management, application and exchange
including electronic identity certification (elD) services.

Since up to the date of this report, CITIC International
Trading has not obtained the qualification for an exchange
platform, the Group is holding negotiation to dispose of its
entire investment in CITIC International Trading at appropriate
terms.

National Trust

On 24 November 2017, Beijing East Gate which is a
subsidiary of the Group entered into a trust agreement with
National Trust for a term of one year. Pursuant to the trust
agreement, Beijing East Gate agreed to invest a principal
amount not exceeding RMB500,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$600,200,000) in aggregate in the trust
scheme, and National Trust agreed to apply, through
investment vehicles, the principal amount for investment in
merger, acquisition and reorganisation funds on behalf of
and for the benefit of Beijing East Gate during the term of the
trust scheme. The expected annual rate of return of the trust
scheme is 6% but is not a guaranteed return. National Trust
was established in 1987 in the PRC which is a non-banking
financial institution regulated by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission and is specializing in trust business and financial
advisory services. Pursuant to the trust agreement and for the
service provided, National Trust will charge a service fee of
RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,200,000)
per year from the effective date. Beijing East Gate has the
right to renew for another year or terminate the trust scheme
at each anniversary date from the effect date by mean of
giving a 30-days prior written notice.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E5

GROWTH STRATEGIES & PROSPECT

To expand its existing investments in petrochemical products
production remain the growth strategy of the Group. The
Group is also actively searching and identifying investment
and/or merger and acquisition opportunities which is capable
of generating enormous profit and ample cash flows to the
Group.

The Group has commenced the merger and restructure
of its two operating entities in Taizhou, namely TZ United
East and Zhong Hai You Qi in the fourth quarter of 2018.
The Board anticipated that the merger and restructure will
benefit the stable supply of the critical raw material crude oil.
Through synergy effect and the mixed ownership structure,
the production efficiency and effectiveness of petrochemical
products will be enhanced. For the time being, the merger
and restructure is still in progress. The anticipated that
following the completion of the merger and restructure, the
production and sales of petrochemical products business will
generate stable profit and cash flow contribution to the Group
in the long run.

On 31 October 2018, Zhuguang Holdings Group Company
Limited (“Zhuguang Holdings”) completed the acquisition of
291,220,022 shares and 364,140,000 shares respectively
from Silver Grant Group Limited (“SG Group”) and CGNPC
International Limited (“CGNPC”) (both were substantial
shareholders of the Company), made up to 655,360,022
shares (representing approximately 28.44% of the issued
shares of the Company) in aggregate; and became a
substantial and the single largest shareholder of the
Company. Subsequently, Zhuguang Holdings increased its
shareholding to approximately 29.98%. Zhuguang Holdings
has appointed two directors to the Board, to participate and
lead the Group’s operation and management. The current
management has intention to further expand the Group’s
business into the provision of financial services sector.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

GROWTH STRATEGIES & PROSPECT (Continued)

The Board proposes to change the English name of the
Company from “Silver Grant International Industries Limited”
to “Silver Grant International Holdings Group Limited” and to
change the Chinese name of the Company from *#R [ &
EXAMRAF" to “RERBEREEEBR2AA". The Board
considers that the proposed change of Company name will
reflect more accurately the nature of business of the Group
the business focus of the Group in the future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Exchange Exposure

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and
payments are denominated in HKD and RMB. In the opinion
of the Board, RMB will remain a regulated currency in
the foreseeable future. Although the market is generally
anticipating a wider RMB exchange rate fluctuation limits,
the Board does not anticipate any material adverse effect on
the financial position of the Group except for the exchange
differences arising on translating PRC subsidiaries and
associates. However, the Board will closely monitor the
future development of the RMB exchange rate and will take
appropriate correction actions as necessary.

In addition, the Board does not anticipate that there is any
material exchange exposure in respect of other currencies.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no material
liability denominated in other foreign currencies other than
RMB. There was also no hedging transaction contracted for
by the Group during the year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E5

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Working Capital & Borrowings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$2,923,790,000
in aggregate. The composition of these borrowings is
summarized below:

48 4T T S 4
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EEEETREE
RAFERR AEEZBERENS

2,923,790,00078 L - 2 S B EMBEK B
I

HK$ million Percentage

B AT B2

Short term borrowings EHEE 1,723.5 59%
Long term borrowings REEE 1,200.3 41%
Total 4BRE 2,923.8 100%

Interests for all borrowings were charged at fixed and floating
rates ranging from 3.04% per annum to 7.50% per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and bank
balances (included pledged bank deposits and restricted
bank balances) was approximately HK$859,732,000 in
aggregate. The Group’s net borrowings was approximately
HK$2,064,058,000. The Group’s net current assets was
approximately HK$691,183,000. In addition, the Group has
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$317,000,000
in aggregate. Based on the foregoing information, the Board
is confident that the Group has adequate working capital
to meet daily operations and to finance future expansion.
Despite this, the Board will seek to dispose short and
medium term investments to replenish funds in order to
further increase the Group’s working capital to a stronger
level.

At the end of the reporting period, the Gearing Ratio
(calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company) and Current Ratio (calculated as
current assets over current liabilities) of the Group were 43%
(2017: 45%) and 1.3x (2017: 1.0x) respectively. Both ratios
are maintained at good level.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged certain
investment properties, leasehold land and buildings,
land use rights and factory, plant and machinery with an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
approximately HK$2,360,959,000 (2017: HK$2,424,730,000),
HK$343,800,000 (2017: HK$306,300,000), HK$122,532,000
(2017: HK$131,791,000) and HK$734,248,000 (2017:
HK$737,486,000) respectively to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group, other loans and other payable
to an independent third party.

At 31 December 2018, the pledged bank deposit of
HK$322,432,000 (2017: Nil) to secure bank borrowings
advanced to the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged approximately
HK$844,000 bank deposits to secure settlements for certain
of Group’s purchase of raw materials.

CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS ITEMS:

Sale of petrochemical products

Amounts in both years were derived from the direct selling
of raw materials by TZ United East. The raw materials
were those acquired through previously contracted supply
contracts.

Sub-contracting income/Cost of Sales and Services

Decrease was mainly attributable to lack of sub-contracting
income during the five months’ period of suspended
productions of TZ United East in the current year.
Accordingly, cost of sales and service also decreased
proportionately.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Decrease was mainly due to interest income from an
associate decreased by approximately HK$41,497,000 which
was partially compensated by the net reversal of impairment
loss on amount due from an associate and loan receivables
amounting to approximately HK$18,476,000 recognised in
the current year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E5

CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS ITEMS: (Continued)

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Amounts in the current year mainly represented increase
in fair value of financial assets amounting to approximately
HK$58,940,000 in aggregate and the profit realized from
disposal of financial assets and interest income from
structured bank deposits amounting to approximately
HK$64,325,000 in aggregate.

Administrative expenses

The increase was mainly attributable to the special bonus
amounting to HK$25,000,000 in aggregate paid to three
key staffs in relation to the restructuring of the Taizhou
businesses in the current year and the redundancy costs
amounting to approximately HK$6,300,000 in aggregate paid
to four laid off staffs in the fourth quarter of the current year
as a result of business realignment.

Finance costs

Decrease was mainly due to decrease in average borrowings
in the current year.

Share of results of associates

Decrease was mainly due to decrease in profit contribution
from the associate, Zhong Hai You Qi amounting to
approximately HK$185,102,000.

Non-controlling interest

The amount in the current year mainly represented the
minority interests’ share of the loss of TZ United East whereas
the amount in the previous year mainly represented the
minority interests’ share of the profit of Tai Zhou Dong Thai
Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ Dong Thai”). TZ Dong
Thai is the immediate holding company of Zhong Hai You Qi
and thus benefited directly from the significant improvement
in operating results of the later in the previous year.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

CHANGES IN ITEMS ON CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION:

Structured finance securities/Available-for-sale
investments/Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss/Held-for-trading investments/Structured bank
deposits

As a result of change in accounting policy upon adoption
of HKFRS 9, structure finance securities, available-for-sale
investments, held-for-trading investment and structured bank
deposits are all reclassified as financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss. The carrying balances at each year end
date is summarized below:
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REMBRRAKRNME 22 :

EEMSRES AHHERE UAARME
FFEEHSBABENEREE BHEE
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HRRABT M BERELERFIORRNES
BREE #BUERES ATHOER
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2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FETL
Non-current assets IRBEE
Structured finance securities LEREE S A - 6,999
Available-for-sale investments BIEEERE - 300,655
Financial assets at fair value through ARAREFTERBHEET ABR
profit or loss RETmEE 228,810 —
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE - 606,242
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE - 100,526
Financial assets at fair value through AR BstE BEEFH:TAEBR
profit or loss M REE 576,985 —
Structured bank deposits EEERTTER - 1,182,473
805,795 2,196,895

Decrease in the total carrying amount was mainly due to
the effect of the disposal of the CUP with a book value
of approximately HK$54,000,000, disposal of trading
listed securities of approximately HK$96,800,000 and
the reclassification of all high-yield bank deposits of
approximately HK$1,182,473,000 standing at 31 December
2017 to cash and bank balances upon maturity in 2018.
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CHANGES IN ITEMS ON CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION: (Continued)

Loan Receivables

48 4T T S 4
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2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TFET

Carrying balances under non-current IERBHEEE NEREm&R
assets 277,515 223,044
Carrying balances under current assets MEVE EIR TREAR 653,888 —
Total Haza 931,403 223,044

The increase was mainly attributable to the advance of new
short term loan receivables to business partners and certain
third parties for better returns. Several loan receivables
amounting to approximately HK$490,868,000 were fully
repaid in the first quarter of 2019.

Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables
The increase was mainly due to the payment in respect
of a potential investment amounting to approximately

HK$40,056,000.

Bank balances and cash

HINE B HIGIRBE R T EBNE
RETFE=ZFUERRSE®H EPEET
JiE W & R 49 490,868,000 58 7T R 2019 4
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40,056,000 & JTETEL °

RITEBRERAE

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FETT FET

Pledged bank deposits IR TR 322,432 844
Restricted bank balance EEPO&R 40,056 —
Structured bank deposits EREIRITER - 1,182,473
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 497,244 301,850
Total FEkE 859,732 1,485,167
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

CHANGES IN ITEMS ON CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION: (Continued)

Bank balances and cash (Continued)

Decrease in total bank balances and cash was mainly
attributable to the partial repayment of bank loans, repayment
of approximately HK$391,100,000 to a company controlled
by a former director for the amount received on its behalf and
advancement of loan receivables.

Non-controlling interests
Increase was mainly attributable to the capital contributions
from non-controlling interests of subsidiaries made during the

year.

Borrowings
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2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FAET

Carrying balances under non-current R BERETEREEEH
liabilities 1,200,254 989,915
Carrying balances under current liabilities  JREIB(EE | BRME 464 1,723,536 2,241,205
Total B 2,923,790 3,231,120

A majority of the borrowings in both years were the RMB
denominated working capital loan granted to the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC. Decrease in total borrowings was
mainly due to repayments of bank loan made in the second
half year of 2018.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other Payables
Decrease was mainly attributable to the repayment of
proceeds collected on behalf of a company controlled by a

former director amounting to approximately HK$391,100,000
during the year.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

At the end of the reporting period, the shareholders’ fund of
the Group decreased by HK$354,641,000 to approximately
HK$6,748,759,000 (2017: HK$7,103,400,000), representing
a decrement of approximately 5%. The decrease was
mainly due to the depreciation of RMB resulted in exchange
differences arising on translation to presentation currency
amounting to approximately HK$358,724,000.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed
588 (2017: 559) employees in Hong Kong and in the PRC.
The Group offers its employees competitive remuneration
packages, which are consistent with the prevailing market
practices. The Group’s remuneration policies remain
unchanged during the year. Total staff costs for the year was
approximately HK$173,982,000 (2017: HK$159,541,000).
Total staff costs increased by approximately 9%. The main
reasons were attributable to the special bonus amounting
to HK$25,000,000 in aggregate paid to three key staffs in
relation to the restructuring of the Taizhou businesses in
the current year and the redundancy costs amounting to
approximately HK$6,300,000 in aggregate paid to four laid
off staffs in the fourth quarter of the current year as a result
of business realignment. Moreover, the depreciation of RMB
by approximately 5% in the current year has resulted in a
decrease in PRC staff costs upon translation which has
partially compensated the effect of the aforesaid factors.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Company aims to maximize interests of its shareholders
and at the same time maintain a strong and healthy financial
position for investment opportunities and sustainable
development of the Company and the Group in the future. In
deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board will take into account the
Group’s earnings performance, financial position, investment
requirements and future prospects. In additions, the Board
will also take into account any restrictive covenants imposed
by bank and other funding facilities granted to the Group
from time to time and any other factors the Board may deem
appropriate and/or relevant.

As the Group incurred net loss for the year, the Board has

resolved not to recommend payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S STATEMENTS E%

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to those resigned directors for
their contribution and service to the Group during their tenure
and give my warmest welcome to those newly appointed
directors for joining our Group. Moreover, | would like to
express my appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders
for their support and all the Group’s employees for their
hard work and dedication in carrying out their duties and in
achieving the Group’s business goal.

By order of the Board of

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Gao Jian Min
Executive Director & Managing Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EEE

Executive Directors
Gao Jian Min Managing Director

Mr. Gao, aged 59, was appointed as an executive director
and served as the Managing Director of the Company on 22
June 1993. He was also appointed as a director of various
companies of the Group. Mr. Gao is also an executive
director of Jiangxi Copper Co., Ltd (“diangxi Copper”) (Stock
code: 358). Up to 24 March 2017, Mr. Gao was an executive
director of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd. (“Qingling Motors”)
(Stock code: 1122). The H shares of Jiangxi Copper and
Qingling Motors are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Gao
graduated from the Qing Hua University with a bachelor
degree in engineering. He has over 25 years of experience
in finance, industrial investment and property investment and
development.

Huang Jiajue

Mr. Huang, aged 48, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 29 January 2019. Mr. Huang is also a
member of the remuneration committee and is one of the
authorised representatives of the Company. Mr. Huang is
a deputy chairman and an executive director of Zhuguang
Holdings Group Company Limited (“Zhuguang Holdings”),
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Huang obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the Sun Yat-Sen University in the PRC. He has over 20
years of financial management experience in the property
development industry in the PRC.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS EE/E

Executive Directors (Continued)
Ma Yilin

Mr. Ma, aged 54, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 20 January 2017. Mr. Ma is currently the
Managing Director of China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company
Limited (“Cinda HK”), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda”).
He is an intermediate economist. Mr. Ma graduated from the
graduate school of the China University of Political Science
and Law with a Master’s Degree in law. Commencing 2011,
Mr. Ma had held various positions successfully in Cinda HK,
including senior manager, head of legal affairs, investment
controller, assistant to general manager, deputy general
manager, general manager and director of Cinda HK. Mr.
Ma has abundant experience in asset management and legal
affairs.

Luo Zhihai

Mr. Luo, age 56, was appointed as an executive director
of the Compamy on 29 January 2019. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Luo worked in China Construction Bank,
Huajian International (Macau) Co., Ltd., China Cinda and
Guangdong Yuecai Asset Management Co., Ltd.. He has
served successively as the head of Xiaohuayuan Office of
Meixian Sub-branch of China Construction Bank, Deputy
General Manager of International Business Department
of China Construction Bank Meizhou Branch, General
Manager of International Business Department of Zhuhai
Branch of China Construction Bank, Managing Director
of Huajian International (Macau) Co., Ltd., the head of the
entity department, the investment banking department, the
marketing department and the business department of China
Cinda Guangzhou Office and Deputy Managing Director of
Guangdong Yuecai Asset Management Co., Ltd.. Mr. Luo
received his Bachelor’s Degree in engineering from South
China University of Technology in 1983. He has accumulated
more than 30 years of experiences in banking, investment
banking, real estate investment and non-performing financial
assets, especially with extensive practical experiences in the
assets management industry. Meanwhile, Mr. Luo has a high
reputation in the PRC local assets management industry.
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Non-executive Directors
Chu Hing Tsung (alias Zhu Qing Yi) Chairman

Mr. Chu, age 49, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company and the chairman of the Board on 29
January 2019. Mr. Chu is also a member and the committee
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Chu is the chairman and an executive director of Zhuguang
Holdings, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Chu has over 20 years of extensive experience in
corporate management and property development in the
PRC.

Chen Zhiwei

Mr. Chen, aged 34, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 29 January 2019. Mr. Chen is
the assistant general manager and managing director of
the investment department of Cinda HK, responsible for
managing Cinda HK’s investment and financing businesses.
Cinda HK is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Cinda,
which is substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Chen
graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree
in Economics in 2004. He then graduated from the National
University of Singapore with a master’s degree in Science
(Estate Management) in 2009. Mr. Chen was the executive
assistant to the chairman of TIG Group in Singapore between
2007 and 2010, responsible for TIG Group’s private equity
investment business in the Greater China region. Between
2005 and 2007, Mr. Chen was a research scholar at the
National University of Singapore. Mr. Chen has over 10 years
of investment and research experience in finance industry.
Mr. Chen is also a non-executive director of the following
companies listed on the Stock Exchange: (i) China Fortune
Financial Group Limited (Stock code: 290); (i) Modern Land
(China) Co., Limited (Stock code: 1107); and (iii) South Gobi
Resources Limited (Stock code: 1878).
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Lu

Mr. Zhang, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 4 May 2000.
He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee
and a member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from the
Sichuan International Studies University in 1979. He was the
General Manager of CITIC Central Tanshi Money Brokering
Company Limited, which is a joint venture of CITIC Trust Co.,
Ltd. engaged in the money brokering business for financial
institutions. From 1987 to 2000, Mr. Zhang was the executive
vice president and treasurer of CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited,
responsible for both the Treasury and International Business.
From 1974 to 1987, he worked for Bank of China and CITIC
Industrial Bank. Mr. Zhang has engaged in the banking sector
for over 35 years.

Liang Qing

Mr. Liang, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 28 February 2014. He
is also a member of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Liang is also currently an
executive director and an independent non-executive director
of Jiangxi Copper (Stock code: 358) and Sinotruck (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Sinotruck”) (Stock code: 3808) respectively.
The H shares of Jiangxi Copper and Sinotruck are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Liang graduated from Beijing Open
University (formerly known as Beijing Radio and Television
University) in 1985, where he studied Chinese language and
literature. Mr. Liang was a director and the general manager
of China Minmetal H.K. (Holdings) Limited and has now
retired. Mr. Liang has abundant experience in international
trading and investment.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Hung Muk Ming

Mr. Hung, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 23 December
2004. He is also the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Hung is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) and is a
Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and an associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He is also a
Certified Tax Adviser and a member of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Hung received his bachelor degree in
social sciences from the University of Hong Kong in 1990,
and a master degree in corporate governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2008. Mr. Hung has over 25
years of experience in the accounting and audit sector. Mr.
Hung is also an independent non-executive director of the
following companies listed on the Stock Exchange: (i) Cinda
International Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”) (Stock
code: 111); (i) Century Sage Scientific Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 1450); (i) China Animation Characters Company
Limited (Stock code: 1566); and (iv) IBO Technology
Company Limited (Stock code: 2708).
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Chen Yongcun

Mr. Chen, aged 54, re-joined the Company on 1 May 2016.
Mr. Chen is one of the Deputy General Managers of the
Company. He is currently the legal representative and the
Managing Director of Beijing East Gate Development Co.,
Ltd., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Chen is responsible for the Group’s property development
and investments in the mainland China. Mr. Chen previously
worked with China Construction Bank and China Cinda.
During the period from 25 October 2000 to 27 February
2008, Mr. Chen was an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Chen graduated from Qing Hua University with a bachelor
degree in engineering and a master degree in business
management. He has over 20 years of experience in finance
and investment.

Chow Kwok Wai

Mr. Chow, aged 52, is one of the Deputy General Managers
of the Company. He is responsible for the finance and
accounting matters of the Group. Mr. Chow joined the
Company in October 1993 and was an executive director
of the Company during the period from 20 April 2004 to
28 December 2013. Mr. Chow was appointed company
secretary of the Company on 28 December 2013. Mr. Chow
has worked in Price Waterhouse, which is now known as
PriceWaterhouseCoopers and has accumulated valuable
audit experience there. Mr. Chow received his bachelor
degree in social sciences from the University of Hong Kong
in 1990. Mr. Chow is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Fellow CPA of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also a Certified Tax Adviser and a Fellow Member of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Chow has over 25
years of experience in accounting, financial management and
corporate finance. Mr. Chow is also an independent non-
executive director of the following companies listed on the
Stock Exchange: (i) SSY Group Limited (formerly known as
Lijun International Pharmaceutical (Holding) Co., Ltd.) (Stock
code: 2005); and (ii) Youyuan International Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 2268). He is also a non-executive director of
Cinda International (Stock code: 111) which shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE R - 4t K ES

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
The Group pursue this business approach by managing our
business prudently and executing management decisions
with due care and attention.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group maintains a continuous dialogue with stakeholders
that include customers, employees, regulators and the public.
The Group seeks to balance the views and interests of these
various stakeholders through constructive conversations with
a view to charting a course for the long-term prosperity of the
Group and the communities.

Customers

Customer feedback plays an important role in the operation
of the Group. Various channels are established to maintain
interactive communications between tenants and the Group.

Employees

Hard-working and dedicated employees are the backbone
of a company. The Group treasures its loyal and industrious
staff members. In addition, it adopts non-discriminatory hiring
and employment practices and strives to provide a safe and
healthy workplace.

Government & Public

Tough efforts are exerted to ensure compliance with the
laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. The public at large is also an important stakeholder
of the Group. A stable and prosperous community is
important to the steady growth and long-term future
prospects of the Group.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

ARBE N E T REL BN RETH
BERE - ARESHTREREBEY - ¥
BELIRTEREORE - WEBILET
B -

KhERE

rEBEERNE  BREF B8 EE
BBEARATIRBHEZTHE - AKE
FRAZRENBR  BHTEERFNEDN
BREMZ M AASEEMELEETE
RENBERITM -

EF

AEEEREFPHEBLENER - A5E
ERVINRAREAFHETEASEZENE
BEE -

==

HEMBINEERAANEH - AKEE
BEBHENET o 1IN NEBRAIEL
BUHEMBEEEA TR YBRORHLTER
2 BR A TAEIRIR -

BFEARAL

3

AREEIBNETEHAEEERNAERR
BBl BERABTRBARRNEERNE -
MBEERNEEAARENREERELKR
REEZZERTOER -

REBREXBRAA



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE R - +tERKES

Workplace Quality

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 558 staff
members. Total employee costs for the year ended 31
December 2018, including directors’ emoluments, amounted
to approximately HK$173,982,000.

The quality of the employees of the Group is crucial to
maintaining a competitive position in the market. With this
in mind, the Group seeks to attract and retain talented
individuals committed to achieving goals and objectives in
a work environment that nurtures values such as fair play,
respect and integrity. The Group sees career development
an important aspect of its staffs and provides ongoing
training, according to the needs of the Group. Compensation
packages are competitive, and individuals are rewarded
according to performance plus an annually-reviewed
framework of salary, working conditions, bonuses and
incentive systems. Benefits include medical cover, provident
funds, share options scheme.

The Group is committed to providing a healthy and safe
workplace for all its employees and complying with all
applicable health and safety laws and regulations. Health
and safety considerations are incorporated into the design,
operations and maintenance of the premises of the Group.
Employees are provided appropriate job skills and safety
training and are educated with regard to their responsibilities
for achieving the health and safety objectives of the Group.
The Group also communicates with its employees on
occupational health and safety issues.

Environmental Protection

Energy saving measures are enforced in the Group’s offices
and commercial premises for the purpose of achieving
reduction of electricity consumption and greenhouse gas
emissions.

The Group adopted policies to promote recycling and use
of eco-friendly stationery, plus a series of measures to save
paper and energy, resulted in more efficient use of resources,
as well as reduction of waste.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE R - 4t K ES

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to adhering to the highest ethical
standards. All employees are given a Code of Conduct
to which they are required to adhere. The Code explicitly
prohibits employees from soliciting, accepting or offering
bribes or any form of advantage. The Code also outlines
the Group’s expectations on staff with regard to conflicts
of interest. All managers are expected to communicate and
instill a culture of good corporate governance to their staffs.

ESG Report

The Company engaged external professionals to review the
ESG policies of the Group and issue a ESG report for the
Board’s consideration. Upon finalising the 2018 ESG report,
the Company will published the 2018 ESG report on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange only in
due course on or before the month end of June 2019. No
hardcopy of the 2018 ESG report will be printed and mailed
to shareholders of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ EAHE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to establish and maintain a
standard of corporate governance that is consistent with
market practices. The Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the mandatory code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2018, except for the deviations from code provision A.1.1
and E.1.2.

Code provision A.1.1 stipulated that the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. During the
year, a total of three regular meetings of the Board were held
across the year. The Board considers that the three meetings
were sufficient to deal with matters of the Company. Apart
from Board meetings, consent of directors on issues was
also sought through circulating resolutions in writing.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Luo
Zhenhong, the Chairman of the Board was out of town and is
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 28 May 2018. The Chairman will endeavor to attend
all future annual general meeting of the Company unless
unexpected or special circumstances preventing him from
doing so.

The Board continues to monitor and review the Group’s
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.

The following summarizes the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.
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Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Board led by the Chairman, steers the Group’s business
direction. The management, led by the Managing Director,
which is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, is
responsible for the Group’s management and operations.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Managing Director are clearly established and set out in
writing. The role of the Chairman and the Managing Director
are separated and are performed by different persons to
avoid concentration of authorities to one single person.

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals,
assessing the results of management policies, monitoring
management’s performance and ensuring the existence
of an effective internal control system. The independent
non-executive directors serve the important function of
ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework.

The current Board comprises four executive directors, two
non-executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors, which composition is set out in the section headed
Corporation Information on page 3 and the biographies of
the directors are set out on pages 26 to 30. The number of
independent non-executive directors represent no less than
one-third of the board members.

Members of the Board possess the appropriate expertise and
skills to discharge their duties.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Company’s directors, Mr. Ma Yilin and Mr. Chen Zhiwei
are also directors and/or senior officer within the group of
China Cinda, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung and Mr. Huang Jiiajue are
also directors and shareholders of Zhuguang Holdings. China
Cinda and Zhuguang Holdings are substantial shareholders of
the Company. Save for the aforesaid, there is no relationship
between members of the Board, in terms of financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship.

To assist the Board in discharging its duties and to fulfil
the requirements of the CG Code, three standing board
committees were set up under the Board: Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. When
it become necessary, the Board will set up ad hoc board
committee to handle specific issues and report back to the
Board.

The Board considers that each independent non-executive
director is independent in character and judgment and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required
by the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation
confirming his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

All directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There are established procedures for
directors to obtain independent professional advice, at the
expense of the Company, in the furtherance of their duties.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a director arise, the matter
will be discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed
to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent non-
executive directors with no conflict of interest will be present
at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

Independent non-executive directors are explicitly identified
in all corporate communications containing the names of
the directors. An updated list of directors indentifying the
independent non-executive directors and the role and the
functions of the directors is maintained on the website of the
Company at www.silvergrant.com.hk and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

All directors are appointed for a specific term of service no
longer than three years. They are also subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with Article 102 of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The full board will meet regularly and at least four times
throughout a year to review the overall strategy and to
monitor the operations as well as the financial performance
of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days will be given to all
directors in respect of full board meeting and the directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary.
Agenda and the accompanying board papers in respect of full
board meeting are sent out in full to all directors no less than
three days before the meeting. Minutes of full board meeting
and meeting of board committee are properly kept. All
directors have access to relevant and timely information. They
also have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing
the directors with Board papers and related materials. Where
queries are raised by the directors, prompt and full responses
will be given if possible.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

During the year, three board meetings were held and the
attendance of each director is set out below:

Name of Directors

EEfR

ExgE)

EEEARGE)

Number of meeting attended/held
HEEBRY 2HEBIRY

RER HER=ZXRZ2BEFSE SUE
FHHFEEREIMT

Attendance rate

HE=

Executive directors
HITEE

Gao Jian Min

=RR

Liu Tianni

BIRfR

Ma Yilin

A=

Non-executive directors
HHITEE

Luo Zhenhong

EIRE

Hui Xiao Bing

B

Chen Qiming

PoR 2 B

Independent non-executive
directors

BUHHITEE

Liang Qing

25

Zhang Lu

SR

Hung Muk Ming

HEREA
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Board has the power to appoint any person as a director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
The director so appointed shall hold office until the next
general meeting (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or
until the next annual general meeting (in the case of new
addition to the Board) following his appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election. In other cases, all directors,
including the Chairman, Vice Chairmen and Managing
Director, shall retire by rotation at least once every three
years at annual general meetings and be eligible for re-
election.

Change in Board Members

After the end of the reporting period, Mr. Luo Zhenhong
resigned as a non-executive director, chairman of the Board,
and ceased to act as member and the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company; Mr. Hui Xiao Bing
and Mr. Chen Qiming resigned as a non-executive director
and the vice-chairman of the Board of the Company and Mr.
Liu Tianni resigned as an executive director, deputy managing
director of the Company and the Company’s authorized
representative; all resignations are effective from 29 January
2019.

After the end of the reporting period, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung
was appointed as a non-executive director, chairman of
the Board, member and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company; Mr. Huang Jiajue was appointed
as an executive director, member of the remuneration
committee of the Company and the Company’s authorized
representative; Mr. Luo Zhihai was appointed as an executive
director of the Company and Mr. Chen Zhiwei was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company; all appointment
were effective from 29 January 2019.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in August 2013.
The policy sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board.

The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board developed measurable objectives to implement
the board diversity policy, where selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives as set
out above, and the ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidate will bring to the
Board.
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Board of Directors (Continued) BEER(E)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued) EERLUBERE)
An analysis of the board diversity based on a range of BRI Z Tt BEAEEEN 2 EZTSK
diversity perspectives is set out below: BZ b TEIIAT:
9
>20
8 ; 61-70
Executive
7 Directors
HITES
6
Number of 5
Directors
EEE 4
3
2
1
0
Directorship Directorship
with the with other public
Company companies
Designation Age group (number of (number of
Bz FHera R years) companies)
b NN A B PR EL A
EE=ME[H N /NI
(80 (RAIEE)
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Nomination Policy

The nomination policy was approved and adopted by a
resolution of the Board passed on 28 December 2018. It
sets out the criteria and procedures to be adopted when
considering candidates to be appointed or re-appointed as
directors of the Company.

Recruitment for the Board of the Company is the key role of
the nomination committee of the Company. Nevertheless,
the ultimate responsibilities for selection and appointment of
Directors rests with the entire Board.

The nomination committee of the Company will select from
a broad range of candidates and as far as feasible including
those who are outside the Board’s circle of contacts and
in accordance with the Company’s board diversity policy.
The nomination committee of the Company will consider the
potential contribution a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity. It will also consider director succession
planning to ensure the long term success of the Company.

Corporate Governance Committee

The CG Code recommends listed company to set up a
corporate governance committee to look after issues relating
to corporate governance. However, the Directors consider
that it is more appropriate and more efficient for the Company
to retain in the Board the function of overseeing corporate
governance issues. The Directors will continuously review
and improve the Company’s and the Group’s corporate
governance practices to ensure that business activities and
decision-making processes are regulated in a proper and
prudent manner.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
corporate governance duties performed by the Board were
mainly set out below:

—  reviewed the corporate governance practices;

— reviewed the continuous professional development and
training of the directors;

— reviewed compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Securities Dealing by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conducts regarding directors’ securities transactions.
All directors have confirmed that, following specific enquiry
by the Company, they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has also adopted codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by relevant employees (as defined in
the CG Code) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in 1999. The composition and professional
qualifications of the members of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements under Rules 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has written terms of
reference that conform to the provisions of the CG Code. The
written terms of reference is set out in detail on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The current Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Muk Ming
(Committee chairman), Mr. Liang Qing and Mr. Zhang Lu.

The Audit Committee meets at least two times each year
to review the reporting of financial and other information
to shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk
management and the effectiveness and objectivity of the audit
process. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s external auditors in
matters coming within the scope of its terms of reference and
keeps under review the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors.

During the year, the work performed by the Audit Committee
includes the review of the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2017, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for 2017 and the interim results for the
period ended 30 June 2018. On 29 March 2019, the Group’s
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018 have
also been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the Board have reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and
risk management system and considered that it is effective
and adequate for the time being.

Annual Report 2018

ExgE)

EREEE(E)

BEBRZESR-UBIFATES %
AAXE(REEER)  RELERKRBRL
MK -

ERZESEFRIAFAMAEH  BEM
BREROM G REMER - AMEZER
7 BREEMMBIEFORI BRI -
ERZBENEHEBREBEANMS NS
ﬂtﬁ"“%ia/ﬂ? ) 5 B 4% 21 B 2 ] Y

BHE - WHINZBEI B R EE
ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%°

FFN - BEZZESHMHITIEREENE
1E2017F 12 A31 B IEFE 2 ¥4 - 2017
FEAEENRBREREMNITEIE R G RE
1F2018F6 H30R LM 2 R HAZE - 1
20194 3 H29H ' "EEEHZ=2018F 12 A
BTHLEZEEREE T EHEZEZEER
E&a °

ERLEeMRAEESCRMAASEANME

BEGMEABREERFHKRKR  YAERAERR
BRIMEBAEMRSL T -

—E - N\EEH

45



46

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &8RS

Board of Directors (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of directors

Number of meetings attended/held

Exg®)

EREEE(E)

ERZBEFANATBHAMAREE  TKEZ
hE R

Attendance rate

== o HEEBRE 2BERLIH HE=R
Hung Muk Ming 2/2 100%
HAH

Liang Qing 2/2 100%
2E

Zhang Lu 2/2 100%
oR 3%

Remuneration Committee FMESS

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in 2005 and adopted a written
terms of reference which conform to the provisions of the CG
Code. The terms of reference was revised on 15 February
2012. The written terms of reference is set out in detail on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
current Remuneration Committee comprises one executive
director namely, Mr. Huang Jiajue and two independent
non-executive directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu (Committee
chairman) and Mr. Liang Qing.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to ensure that there is no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration and that the
Company has an equitable and competitive remuneration
policy to attract and retain talent persons to serve the
Company. The Board has adopted the model where the
Remuneration Committee performs an advisory role to
the Board (i.e. make recommendations to the Board on
the remunerations packages of individual director and
senior management). The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
managements’ remuneration and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration package for each employee is structured
according to his quality and qualification. The remuneration
package will contain a combination or modification of some
or all of the following four main components:

1. Basic salary

Basic salary ranges for each position are established
with reference to the responsibilities and the duties
attached to the position. The actual salary for the
person filling the position is determined based on the
experience and ability of the individual selected for the
position.

The basic salary ranges are reviewed periodically by
reference to the general market and by comparison
to comparable positions at competitors in the relevant
industry. The actual salaries of employees are reviewed
annually and may be adjusted from time to time based
on the cost of living and financial performance of the
Company.

Salaries are base remuneration and not intended to
reward performance, either individually or corporately.
Performance is rewarded through the other components
of the remuneration plan.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

2.

Incentive bonus

Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate
performance. The incentive bonus for each employee
is determined with reference to his position and his/her
performance during the year.

Share option

Share options to subscribe for shares in the Company
are granted to employees from time to time at the
discretion of the Board, in order to retain valuable
employees and to motivate future performance of the
employees.

Share options granted to individual employee
are determined with reference to his position, his
performance and his ability to contribute to the overall
success of the Group.

However, the Group does not have any Share Option
Scheme in force for the time being.

Other benefits

The Group offers other customary and/or mandatory
benefits to employees, such as statutory retirement
scheme, employee compensation and medical
insurance, paid annual leaves and child education
allowance, with reference to the prevailing practices in
relevant jurisdictions.

The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to review the

Company’s human resources matters and remuneration

policies. During the year, two Remuneration Committee

meetings was held in the presence of all committee members.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the approval of the
payment of discretional performance bonus and director fees
to the executive and non-executive directors for year ended
31 December 2018 after taking into consideration the results
of the Group, the performance of the directors, the senior
management and the employees and the prevailing market
practices.

Details of the directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 15
February 2012 (“Nomination Committee”) and adopted written
terms of reference for the Nomination Committee. The written
terms of reference is set out in detail on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The current Nomination
Committee comprises the chairman of the Board who also
act as the chairman of the committee and two independent
non-executive directors namely, Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Hung
Muk Ming.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of directors either to fill casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company, any director
appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only until
to the next general meeting or as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until to the next annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least every three years and shall be eligible for re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitably qualified candidates and making recommendations
to the Board for its consideration. The process for selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship includes the
consideration of referrals and the engagement of external
recruitment professionals. The selection criteria are based
mainly on the assessment of their characters and their
professional qualifications and experience relevant to the
Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board periodically,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment and re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors. The nomination committee has
reviewed the Board structure and the diversity of Board
members.

During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was
held to review the Board structure and the diversity of Board
members and the attendance of each member is set out
below:

Name of directors

Number of meetings attended/held

Exg®)
REZEE(E)

RAZECBAABVEABZIAERAER
MEFSFELHBERUAEZE - ERE
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BREFEREZTET TR &XE
ZHEERESIIMT

Attendance rate

EEpnE HEEBRE 2HEBIRE HE=
Luo Zhenhong 0/1 0%
BIRR

Zhang Lu 11 100%
SR

Hung Muk Ming 1/1 100%
HEREA

Silver Grant International Industries Limited



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ EAHE

Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the directors.

Induction and Training

Each newly appointed director, executive or non-executive, is
provided with a director’s induction package to ensure that he
has a proper understanding to his duties and responsibilities.
The director’s induction package include an overview of
the Group’s business operation and governance policies,
the director’s responsibilities and duties, relevant regulatory
requirements and briefing with the senior management of the
Group.

Pursuant to the CG Code, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
year, all directors had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending
training and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the directors’ duties and responsibilities. All
directors have confirmed that, following specific enquiry
by the Company, they have complied with the continuous
professional development requirement of the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Induction and Training (Continued)

The training attended by each director of the current Board

during the year is summarized below.

Exg®)

BB R IE ()

EE)FABMAT -

BIEEeUEERNFRNERSEETES

Type of trainings (Note 1)

Training matters (Note 2)

Name of directors EEHSE TEINFR (7 1) EINEE (K7 2)
Executive directors HITESE
Gao Jian Min 2ER a, b i, i, iv
Huang Jiajue =HER N/A T N/A 38
Ma Yilin M a, b i, i, dii, iv
Luo Zhihai BEE N/A TiE A N/A i A
Non-executive directors HHITEE
Chu Hing Tsung KE AL N/A “iE A N/A “Fi# F
Chen Zhiwei BREIE N/A 7T~ F N/A 7~ F
Independent non-executive BV T
directors
Liang Qing 25 a, b i, i, dii, v
Zhang Lu o 3% a, b i, i, iv
Hung Muk Ming PN a, b i, i, iii
Note 1: BiaET -
a:  attending seminar or training session a: HEHSEREIRE
b:  reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to economy, b: MEELCE —RESIEEBEREAS
general business or directors’ duties and responsibilities, etc. MR - ML ERE
Note 2: Biit2 -
corporate governance hEES
i regulatory i BT
ii.  finance and accounting ii B EER
iv:  managerial \Y =g
The Company also received confirmation from the Company K/‘ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂi%’& AWERRERFEAD

Secretary that he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant

professional training during the year.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company has
effective risk management and control systems. The Board
evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least annually.
During the year, a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems was conducted.

Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather
than eliminate risks, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Company has employed a bottom-up approach for
identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at business
unit level and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems include the establishment of
a risk register to track and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their
effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing new risks. The
identified risks will be recorded in the risk register which will
be reviewed regularly. After considering the control measures
against risks, a risk matrix is adopted to determine risk rating
(L=low risk, M=medium risk, H=high risk) after evaluation of
the risk by the likelihood and the impact of the risk event.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Process Used to ldentify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk owner
of departments and major subsidiaries are required to capture
and identify the key inherent risks that affect the achievement
of its objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated according
to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the risk
response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the
risk, the residual risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again.
The risk register with the risk responses and residual risks
is reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee,
acting on behalf of the Board, evaluates the effectiveness of
the systems. The highest category of residual risks is subject
to the Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management & Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Board has outsourced the internal audit function
to an independent consulting firm (the “Internal Auditor”). The
Internal Auditor has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Inside Information

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. In order to ensure that the market
and shareholders are fully and promptly informed about
the material developments in the Company’s business, the
Board has adopted the Inside Information Disclosure Policy
regarding the procedures of proper information disclosure.
Release of inside information is subject to the approval of
the Baord. Unless duly authorised, all staff member of the
Company shall not communicate inside information to any
external parties and shall not response to market speculation
and rumours. In addition, all external presentation materials
or publications must be pre-vetted before release.

Report to Audit Committee

The Internal Auditor reported directly to the Audit Committee
and the Audit Committee is satisfied that there has been no
major deficiency noted in the areas of the Company’s risk
management and internal controls systems being reviewed
after implementation of recommendations of the internal
control defects reported by the Internal Auditor. Accordingly,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be effective.

General Meetings

During the year, the Company has convened one general
meeting which was the Annual General Meeting. Executive
director Mr. Gao Jian Min and Mr. Ma Yilin and independent
non-executive director Mr. Hung Muk Ming attended the
meeting, the remaining directors were not able to attend the
meeting due to their pre-arranged business commitments.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018, were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) at a total fees of HK$2.9 million. The
said audit fee was approved by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board. In addition, the Group also paid fees
of not more than HK$0.1 million in aggregate to Deloitte for
the provision of taxation services during the 2018.

The Audit Committee considers that the taxation services did
not (in terms of the nature of the services and the amount of
fees paid in relation to the audit fees) affect the independence
of Deloitte.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The emolument paid to senior management was amongst
the five highest paid individuals of the Group and is set out in
Note 10.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for
each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the
state of the affairs, results and cash flow of the Group for
that year in compliance with the relevant laws and disclosure
provision of the Listing Rules.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on the going
concern basis. Up to the date of this report, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties that will seriously
affect the going concern basis of the Group.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement (Continued)

The Directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Group. The Directors
also have general responsibilities for setting up an appropriate
internal control system, which is mainly to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities. The Directors have reviewed the internal
control system of the Group and are satisfied that the internal
control system of the Group is functioning properly.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the mandatory disclosure requirements under the
CG Code.

Convening General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) may request the Directors to convene an

extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Section 566 to 568
of the Companies Ordinance.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Convening General Meeting on Request (Continued)

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors are required to call a general meeting if the
Company has received requests to do so from members of
the Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the members having a right to vote at general
meeting. Such requests must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include
the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at the meeting. Such requests may
be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing
at the registered office of the Company at Suite 4901, 49th
Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in
electronic form (by email: cs@silvergrant.com.hk); and must
be authenticated by the person or persons making it. In
accordance with Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the
date on which they become subject to the requirement under
Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance and such meeting
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date
of the notice convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for a day not more than
28 days after the date on which the notice convening the
extraordinary general meeting is given, the shareholder(s)
concerned, or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene an extraordinary general meeting, provided that the
extraordinary general meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The extraordinary general meeting convened by shareholders
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the
Directors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders can raise enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered office of
the Company at Suite 4901, 49/F, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

Putting Forward Proposals at Annual General Meetings

To put forward a resolution at an annual general meeting,
shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and
procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the Company
Ordinance.

Section 615 of the Company Ordinance provides that the
Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests that it do so from (a) the members of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (b) at
least 50 members who have a right to vote on the resolution
at the annual general meeting to which the requests relate.
Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company
at Suite 4901, 49th Floor, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Board) or in electronic form (by email: cs@silvergrant.com.hk);
(b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given;
(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making
it; and (d) must be received by the Company not later than
() 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given
of that meeting. Section 616 of the Company Ordinance
provides that the Company that is required under Section 615
of the Company Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must
send a copy of it at the Company’s own expense to each
member of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
annual general meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice
of the meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or as soon as
reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Proposing Director for Election at General Meetings

In respect of proposing a person for election as a director
of the Company at general meetings, please refer to the
procedures available on the website of the Company at
www.silvergrant.com.hk.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there is no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and
investors at large. In order to enhance the transparency of
shareholders’ voting in general meeting, separate resolutions
are proposed at general meeting on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual director
and all resolutions are voted on by poll. The Company will
engage external scrutineer to count the vote. The poll voting
results will be published on the wedsites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange at a later time on the same business
day. In addition, the requirement for resolutions to be
voted by poll is stated in the circular or annual report to be
despatched to shareholders. Moreover, at general meeting
but before voting, the chairman of the meeting will explain to
shareholders the described procedures for conducting a poll.

The Company has maintained a website at
http://www.silvergrant.com.hk which enables shareholders,
investors and the general public to have an open access
to the information of the Company. Financial information
and all corporate communications of the Company are
made available on the Company’s website and are updated
regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company Secretary at Suite 4901, 49/F,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.
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The Board present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and
engaged in property investment and securities trading. The
Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
property leasing, other investments, production and trading of
petrochemical products and the provision of sub-contracting
service. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries and the Group’s associates are set out in Note
43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 84.

As the Group incurred net loss for the year, the Board has

resolved not to recommend payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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Business Review EBER
The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 NEFEE2018F 12 A1 BILFEMNER
December 2018 is set out below: BERDRIELOT
Section in the Page No. of the
Annual Report Annual Report
HIRNEHR 2 B0 FHEH
a. Fair view of the Company’s business Managing Director’s Statements 51025
HARREBNH SRR ERAKERE 5%25
b. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing Directors’ Report 611073
the Company EEeRs 61%73
HARRRIEE R EZER & AR ZA
C. Particulars of important events affecting the Company that ~ Directors’ Report 73
have occurred since the year ended 31 December 2018  EF@#H{& 73

EHZE2018F 12 A31 BIFFEREBBAN - HANRE
FEMNEREMHNFE

d. Indication of likely future development in the Company’s Managing Director’s Statements 16 to 17
business EEFLHGENE 16 £ 17
ARAEBAE IR ANRREENER
e. Analysis using financial key performance indicators Financial Summary 259
ERIBARRRERETNDT B ER 259
f. Discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and Environmental, Social and 32 to 34
performance Governance 32234
HARARMEREEREBNES B HERER
g. An account of the Company’s key relationships with its Environmental, Social and 32 to 34
employees, customers and suppliers and others that have Governance 32%34
a significant impact on the Company and on which the RIR - HERER

Company’s success depend

ARAEAEES  BEERMEFRNEZMENTANRER
RIEME N THANEMA TN EZRENNA - ZAL
HEARBAERTE  MARANEBRERZAT

h. Discussion on the Company’s compliance with the relevant ~ Managing Director’s Statements, 5 to 25,
laws and regulations that have significant impact on the Corporate Governance Report, 35 to 60,
Company Directors’ Report 611073

HANRETHANRBEATENAREZRRONER EFEEERS 5%25
IR E PEERRE - 35%60
EXewRE 61£73
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Key Risk Factors

The following paragraphs list out the key risks and
uncertainties facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and
there may be other risks and uncertainties further to the key
risk areas outlined below. Besides, this annual report does
not constitute a recommendation or an advice for anyone
to invest in the securities of the Company and investors are
advised to make their own judgment or consult their own
investment advisors before making any investment in the
securities of the Company.

Risk Pertaining to the Property Market on the Mainland

The Group has material interests in residential and
commercial property investment on the mainland and
is therefore subject to the risks associated with China’s
property market. The Group’s operations on the mainland
may also be exposed to the risks of policy change, interest
rate change, demand-supply imbalance, and the overall
economic conditions, which may pose an adverse impact
on the Group’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk
factors distinctive to direct investment, property investment
and property related businesses. Default on the part of
our buyers, tenants and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels of
negative impact on the results of operations. Additionally,
accidents may happen despite systems and policies set up
for their prevention, which may lead to financial loss, litigation
or damage in reputation.

Annual Report 2018

FTERBRERZE

AT S AN S B 4 e = 2 el e e TN EREA AL
EoMBAREFEMEREZ KT EZER
BBoN MAl e FEE MR RN RAEE -
bESh » RERAEERARREARNRFEH
EHEMZZEXLER - REEAEREARTA
EHFZH ERETTHE EHREREERD
2R

P 1 5 46 E 1 45 Y 46 B I B

AEBEERNREENERDENREER
TRAEAED  AMXITEEHMETS
MARRERMEE  BREE - FXEH .
HRRG R BREESRRMAIEHEERER
MR EBERER - HEBENED - BERK
MBEEFREEREETE -

AEENSEZINEERRE  HERE LM
ENMBEXRGZEEANEAREEZMTE -
KEER MHPEEBMUEEBBRHNKLE
TR RABRE ABRESESRIK
AR S E M SNEI R R AR E R BE A T A A2
EHNEETE . R ESECHET
SrE BN R MBER - BAMD AT BE B
£ AmMSIBRMBERX - FABEXAE -

T \EERF

63



64

DIRECTORS' REPORT EEE8#HEF

Policy Risks

The Group’s principal operating activities are in the mainland
China. The mainland market operates a system of planned
economy. New laws and regulations are launched from time
to time to regulate and/or promote economic activities. The
enactment of any new regulatory policies may have various
levels of negative impact on the results of operations.

International Crude Oil Prices Risks

A principal operation of the Group is the manufacturing
and sale of petrochemical products. Crude oil is the
critical raw material for production process. Significant
fluctuations in international crude oil prices and persistent
drop in international crude oil prices will have a material
adverse impact on the operating result in respect of sales of
petrochemical products.

Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operation of the Group
as set out in this annual report are historical in nature and
past performance is not a guarantee of future performance.
This annual report may contain forward-looking statements
and opinions that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual result
may also differ materially from expectations discussed in such
forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group
nor the Directors, employees or agents of the Group assume
any obligations or liabilities in the event that any of the
forward-looking statements or opinions does not materialize
or turns out to be incorrect.
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Fixed Assets

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued at 31
December 2018. Surplus on revaluation of the leasehold land
and buildings amounted to approximately HK$41,678,000
has been credited to the asset revaluation reserve.

During the year, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties at 31 December 2018. The net increase in fair
value of investment properties, which has been charged
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
amounted to approximately HK$62,477,000.

Details of the valuation and movements of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Details of the major investment properties of the Group at 31
December 2018 are set out in the section under “Summary of
Investment Properties” of this Annual Report.

Charitable Donations

No material donation was made to charitable organisations
by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2018 comprised the
retained profits of approximately HK$419,337,000.

Equity Linked Agreements

No equity linked agreements were entered into during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)
(resigned on 29 January 2019)

Ma Yilin

Huang Jiajue (appointed on 29 January 2019)

Luo Zhihai (appointed on 29 January 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Chu Hing Tsung (Chairman) (appointed on 29 January 2019)
Luo Zhenhong (Chairman) (resigned on 29 January 2019)
Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 29 January 2019)
Chen Qiming (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 29 January 2019)
Chen Zhiwei (appointed on 29 January 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Liang Qing
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

The term of office of each Director, including the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors,
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs. Chu Hing Tsung, Huang Jiajue, Luo
Zhihai and Chen Zhiwei who were appointed as a Director
on 29 January 2019 will hold office only until the forthcoming
general meeting, and they, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. Messrs. Ma Yilin, Liang Qing and Hung Muk
Ming shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and they, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election. The remaining Directors shall remain in office.
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Directors of Subsidiaries

Other than the Directors named in the section headed
“Directors”, the persons who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report included Mr. Gao Jian Min, Mr. Liu
Tianni, Mr. Sung Yeung Leon, Mr. Chow Kwok Wai, Mr. Kwok
Chung Lun, Mr. Tang Junhong, Mr. Chen Yongcun, Ms. Fu
Bo, Ms. Zhang Shuhua, Mr. Gao Zihan, Mr. Zhang Donglin,
Mr. Zhang Heping, Mr. Zhao Jiandong, Mr. Chen Feng, Mr.
Ma Hon Yeung, Mr. BXE5E&E, Mr. Li Zhigiang, Mr. Wang
Ping, Mr. Xu Hao, Ms. Z=1§, Mr. Ji Tao, Ms. Zhou Xiaoxia,
Ms. Ni Lin and Ms. Zhu Feng.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION” below, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interest in Shares

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company nor any of its associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register
as required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. None of the
directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had been granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporation, or had exercised any such right during the year.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its parent
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debenture of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company
nor any of their spouse or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTION” below, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its parent
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or his connected entities had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any part
of the Company’s business was entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, subject to
the statutes, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereon. The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance to indemnify its directors and officers in respect of
legal actions against the directors.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2018, persons other than a director or
chief executive of the Company having interest in 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the

FERR

R2018F 12 A31 H  RARXRIBEFES K
BIEEHIE 336 IEREATHFEMERLMR
BFTER  BARAETHHESTHAEMNU

register required to be kept by the Company under Section SN BEEEARARIE BEITIRANE% A LR
WAL

336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2018 are set out below:

MR2018F 12 831 H » BMAR AN K IiEE
B F B S FI T

Approximate

Number of percentage
ordinary shares of issued shares
(Note 1)  of the Company

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity ZERROEE HNEERARSBRT
TERREBE &4 (st 1) B zBED
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation 1,119,296,022 (L) 48.56%
HREEEEEEERHARLA (Note 2)
REthEEER (fit2)
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,119,296,022 (L) 48.56%
HREEE(EE)ERERLA (Note 2)
REtEBES (Hit2)
China Cinda (HK) Asset Management Co., Person having a security interest in 681,240,022 (L) 29.56%
Limited shares (Note 2)
FREE(RB)EEEEARRAR RERGORERSNOAMZ2)
Regent Star International Limited Beneficial Owner 438,056,000 (L) 19.01%
ERBEEARLA EnlEAA
Chu Hing Tsung Interest of controlled corporation 681,240,022 (L) 29.56%
KE M (Note 3)
X EERER (M2 3)
Liao Tengjia Interest of controlled corporation 681,240,022 (L) 29.56%
B (Note 3)
REHEBES (Hi3)
Rong De Investments Limited Interest of controlled corporation 681,240,022 (L) 29.56%
BERERRAA] (Note 3)
REGVEE R (123)
Zhuguang Holdings Group Company Limited Interest of controlled corporation 681,240,022 (L) 29.56%
KX EREBRERAA (Note 3)
REGEEER(F23)
Splendid Reach Limited Beneficial Owner (Note 3) 681,240,022 (L) 29.56%
BRBEAANMTL3)
Annual Report 2018 — T \FFR
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

“L” denotes long position.

China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd directly holds
100% of the issued shares of China Cinda (HK) Holdings
Company Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
shares of China Cinda (HK) Asset Management Co., Limited
and Regent Star International Limited. Therefore, China Cinda
Asset Management Co., Ltd and China Cinda (HK) Holdings
Company Limited are taken to be interested in the number
of Shares held by China Cinda (HK) Asset Management Co.,
Limited and Regent Star International Limited Limited pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Chu Hing Tsung and Mr. Liao Tengjia directly hold 34.06%
and 36% of the issued shares of Rong De Investments Limited
respectively, which in turn holds 63.09% of the issued shares
of Zhuguang Holdings Group Company Limited, which in
turn holds 100% issued shares of Splendid Reach Limited.
Therefore, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, Mr. Liao Tengjia, Rong De
Investments Limited and Zhuguang Holdings Group Company
Limited are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held
by Splendid Reach Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Other than as disclosed above, the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the
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KERTERBERELREDNEES A RIE
HEBR D TIRI34.06% N 36% e - Al
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F]63.09% B BTG - MK A EREES
455 Splendid Reach Limited 100% & %
TR © Eitk - REMEE - ERERLE
MEREERAGLRKXIERERERA
AIREES REEAIEXY BWEAEES
Splendid Reach Limited AT A HIDE B -
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Company had not been notified of any other interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

as at 31 December 2018.
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Annual Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Connected Transaction

A service agreement dated 28 December 2004 was entered
into between Mr. Gao Jian Min (“Mr. Gao”) and the Company.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions set out therein, the
Company agreed to employ and Mr. Gao agreed to serve the
Company as a Managing Director by providing the Company
with the services as described in the service agreement for a
term of three years from 28 December 2004 to 27 December
2007, which term shall continue thereafter until determined
by either party giving to the other not less than 3-months
prior written notice.

Buy-Back, Sales or Redemption of Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries bought back, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at
Boardroom 3 and 4, Mezzanine Floor, Renaissance Harbour
View Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Friday, 24 May 2019 at 2:30 p.m. (the “Annual
General Meeting”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, during
the year and up to the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue comprises rental income from leasing
of properties, dividend income from listed and unlisted
securities, income from property management and income
from production and trading of petrochemical products and
provision of sub-contracting service.

The accumulated amount of purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers was less than 30% of the
Group’s total purchases and revenue for the year.

The accumulated amount of revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers and our largest customer were
approximately 79% the Group’s total revenue for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of our
Directors or any of their close associates or any of our
Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Board, owned
more than 5% of our shares had interest in any of our five
largest customers.
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Closure of Register of Members

To ascertain shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 21 May 2019
to Friday, 24 May 2019, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all
duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Share Registrar
of the Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 20 May 2019.

Event after the Reporting Period

Significant events occurring after the end of the reporting
period are set out in Note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting

to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

By order of the Board
Chu Hing Tsung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT B X E iR

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
SILVER GRANT INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”)
set out on pages 84 to 258, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B X E iR

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT B X E iR

Key audit matter

BEEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAzENIEBERENSHETEE

Valuation of investment properties and leasehold land and building under property, plant and

equipment

WE BERREER N REYRURBEEL MR EFZGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
and leasehold land and buildings under property,
plant and equipment (the “Properties”) as a key audit
matter due to the balances of the Properties are
significant to the Group and the Properties are stated
at fair value, by reference to the valuations performed
by independent valuers, which are subjective by

its nature to significant judgments applied to the
valuations. Key estimates, such as those relating to
unobservable data, are disclosed in Notes 15 and 16
to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
As at 31 December 2018, the value of the Group’s
Properties are HK$2,845,611,000.

B BEEREE TREMEURBE iR
BF(ZEMMEDLESNSERESEE  RELZ
EMHEERBGEUNBRREBZEEN M EABY
FHERAEMEE AR BERASREEAEMBEEE 2
BEAAE - EREFOAAHERZEREHIN &
EBZRATEHRERMFE5 KX 16 - R20184F 12 A 31
H E£B2%%*¥%2,845611,000#7T °

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the
properties included:

BHEERYEAEZRFEE

o Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuers;

FHEE S AHERD 2 BAERRE - e REEM

° Discussing with the management and
independent valuers regarding the valuation
process to understand the performance of
property markets, significant assumptions
adopted and data used in the valuation and the
management’s critical judgmental areas;

B IR EAVE S AT AN A T R R TS R
B R ERNRR - HEMAZEBEREERE
B R 52 1l 8 -

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the
methodologies adopted in the valuation models;
and
B HEERP AT E2EBY &

° Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation by, on a sample basis,
checking to the publicly available information
and comparing the inputs to entity-specific
historical information.
NBEAEBRE AR REGERT TR
FEELER 2 MABELETEEEMAZ EER
ANEZ G -
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Key audit matter

BEEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAZENIEBERENSRETEE

Valuation of amount due from an associate and loan receivables

R —KBE A REREFZIEE

We identified the valuation of amount due from an
associate and loan receivables as a key audit matter
due to the use of judgment and estimates by the
management in the evaluation of the recoverability of
amount due from an associate and loan receivables.
B RN — R E R AR RN E R EBR RS
FRE RARBERETMEK—EBE QR RE
W B R B T [0 451 B BT I (50 R B B AT A 5 T o

As set out in Notes 4, 20 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, loss allowance for amount

due from an associate and loan receivables are
determined by estimating the amount and timing of
future cash flows and the assessment of whether

a significant increase in credit risk exists. The
estimation of the 12 months expected credit losses
to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, history settlement
record and financial position of the Group” s
associate, debtors and their guarantors (if any) and
an assessment of both the future prospects of the
industry in which the associate and the other debtors
operate, all of which involve a significant degree of
management judgment.

AR B B IRRMIsE 4 » 20 R 24 FrE %)) - EUW—=R
B RN AIRREWE R BB E TR BR BT ARKER
SMEE TR LA R EEERRAE D AEIGMNE
MEEE o hEAIREE L 12 8 A T EE BB R 2 (A5t
ENMAZREEBENRR  ERCHNELBIBEAR
REEBE R  BBAREREA(E) TR
KGR R MEBARE L EFRET IS AT RIEE
FE A AR IEE S RIRAIEE B IR E A -
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of amount
due from an associate and loan receivables included:
BT RN RN — KB R R R ERE R (G E 212
FrE4E

Obtaining an understanding of the Group s
amount due from an associate and loan
receivables impairment policy and the controls
govern credit control, debt collection and
estimate of expected credit losses;

BISI T BESEARRK-—REEQARK
FEWE REVRERIHBER A RGBS - EE
WORR 5 T8 HA R (B B 18 5 1) BR 1 45 1t

° Discussing with the management and

independent valuer, if applicable, on the
valuation process to understand the significant
assumptions adopted and data used in the
valuation and the management’ s critical
judgment areas;
HERE KRB RTEAD - EA - R BET ke
W — KB N R R B E SR TR ER(E BB 1R
AHE TR T TR ERRER - MEMBZE
BREIEE RS H SRS

° Assessing the reasonableness of the loss
allowance estimated by management with
reference to the credit history of its debtors,
including default or delay in payments and
settlement records; and
FHEREREEANEREGENSIEYT - BB
ZHEBANELEELE - BREBRITEERN
RAE RS - &
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Key audit matter

BEEITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAzENIEBERENSHETEE

Valuation of amount due from an associate and loan receivables

R —KBERAHREREFZIEE

In addition, in relation to the valuation of amount due
from an associate, the management has exercised
judgement in estimating the timing and future cash
flows to be recovered with reference to the timing of
collection of receivables held by the associate, and
the value of the property projects held by underlying
debtors, in order to determine the recoverability of the
amount from an associate.

sEoN - BN — B E QA RN EE - BEEERME
UL I B B S R R IR B ImAE L #IE - BB ELBE R
A ARAAERER - WE R REBS AR K
RYEIER - EEETFRK—XEE R R A B4
M o

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of
amount due from an associate and loan receivables
are HK$383,684,000 and HK$931,403,000
respectively with net reversal of HK$18,476,000 was
credited in profit or loss for the year.

2018512 A31H @+ EXERERK—FREBERRIRKR
FEUE FEE 5 Bl & 383,684,000 7 7T & 931,408,000
BT BB EE$ 518,476,000 8T Mat ARNFE1E

N
ZS o
iy

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Obtaining and evaluating the cash flow
projection prepared by management of the
Group in respect of the expected repayments
by the associate, including assessing the
reasonableness of the assumptions applied,
including the timing of the repayments with
reference to business plan, agreements and
valuation reports of the property projects held
by debtor of the associate.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Annual Report 2018
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B X E iR

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the HARBUYZEMBRENEABEEERAR
independent auditor’s report is Wan Chi Lap. FEIL -

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu =g e FEMRAS ST

Certified Public Accountants HEEG AN

Hong Kong B

29 March 2019 20194 3 A29H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #RE#Em% K

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

2017
Notes HK$'000
HtaE FET
Continuing operations BEREEL
Rental income HEEUA 5 105,624 100,439
Sales of petrochemical products AHtTERBEE 5 20,178 90,143
Sub-contracting income MIERA 5 385,944 715,158
511,746 905,740
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS A A (377,403) (558,982)
134,343 346,758
Dividend income from listed and EmRkIEETESRERA
unlisted securities 5 103 23,494
Other income, gains and losses Ha A -~ Wz K EiE 7 78,761 95,446
Change in fair value of held-for-trading H{EBEE A AR EEE)
investments - 7,425
Change in fair value of financial assets AR AR EEBEEE A
at fair value through profit or loss BalmemEE
ZRREEE 122,429 —
Administrative expenses TRER (330,955) (295,430)
Other expenses HE A 12 (164,948) —
Change in fair value of investment WEYEZ R EE
properties 15 62,477 55,285
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKTB ARz Wz 2,167 —
Finance costs B 75 A 8 (113,333) (178,446)
Change in fair value of structured HEETEESRBS 2
finance securities NI EEE - 168
Share of results of associates BAEEARIER 60,203 311,112
(Loss) profit before taxation BrAL AT (E518) 4 A (148,753) 365,812
Taxation IR 11 (17,414) (45,259)
(Loss) profit for the year from FRRAFELERS
continuing operations (B8 & A 12 (166,167) 320,553
Discontinued operation BRI EIE
Profit for the year from discontinued FARE BRI L FET
operation i ) 6 - 648
(Loss) profit for the year FAREE )RR (166,167) 321,201
Silver Grant International Industries Limited IRERREFXEGRA A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #RE#EH%E X

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE 20184 12 431 AIHFE
2017
Note HK$'000
HtaE FET
(Loss) profit attributable to owners of — ZARQFEEA ARE(GER
the Company: (BE)RH
— from continuing operations —IREFELEER (49,375) 259,834
— from discontinued operation —REERIEEEER = 367
(49,375) 260,201
(Loss) profit attributable to non- FE4E I R 25 4G F 1A
controlling interests: (BB &EH :
— from continuing operations — REBEEETS (116,792) 60,719
— from discontinued operation — REERIEREFET - 281
(116,792) 61,000
(166,167) 321,201
(Loss) earnings per share (in HK BR(ER)EBF
cents) (BABALFIR)
From continuing and discontinued REFEKLE RERILEE
operations Eds
— Basic — ER 13 (2.14) 11.29
From continuing operations RERBELEER
— Basic — HAXK 13 (2.14) 11.27
Annual Report 2018 NEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME e BR &R A2 HNER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE 20184 12 431 HILFE
2017
HK$’000
FET
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) R (166,167) 321,201
Other comprehensive (expense) income  Hit2E (X H) Wz
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or ~ 1 A[#EA K2 EA -
loss:
Gain arising on revaluation of leasehold EHEEYFEELA 2 W
properties 41,678 41,097
Exchange differences arising on translation MEBINEREE 2 EH,
of foreign operations =% (358,724) 469,620
Income tax related to items that will not be AR EIE B 2 M8 ER
reclassified (5,879) (5,216)
Reclassification adjustments relating to FRHEFINETS IR 2
foreign operation disposed of during the BN OERAE
year - (1,776)
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMEE(EH) WS
for the year (net of tax) (i) (322,925) 503,725
Total comprehensive (expense) income FAZE(ZH) Ka=EsE
for the year (489,092) 824,926
Total comprehensive (expense) income 2E () BFEREN
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIE7ZEN (364,096) 746,306
Non-controlling interests FEfEFl i (124,996) 78,620
(489,092) 824,926
Silver Grant International Industries Limited IRERREFXEGRA A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %R & B #AR R &

At 31 December 2018
R2018F 12431 H

2017
Notes HK$’000
k3 FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties "EYE 15 2,522,430 2,583,770
Property, plant and equipment VI~ BB R 16 3,783,615 3,918,338
Land use rights T Hb{E AR 17 178,435 191,955
Goodwill B 18 39,462 39,462
Interests in associates NG ey 19 1,335,113 1,334,651
Structured finance securities HEEMESRES 21 - 6,999
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 22 - 300,655
Financial assets at fair value through UAREF=EBEHEEH:TA
profit or loss BENoREE 23 228,810 —
Loan receivables JEWE K 24 277,515 223,044
8,365,380 8,598,874
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 25 93,340 102,425
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 22 = 606,242
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEKRE 26 = 100,526
Trade receivables FEWTBR R 27 68,058 70,350
Deposits, prepayments and other & - BT EAMERGK
receivables 28 343,946 311,364
Amount due from an associate JE U — SR Bt & A B3k 20 383,684 671,372
Loan receivables R E R 24 653,888 —
Financial assets at fair value through UAREF=EBEHEH:TA
profit or loss BENeREE 23 576,985 —
Pledged bank deposits HIRIRITIE 29 322,432 844
Restricted bank balance EEEF D&% 29 40,056 —
Structured bank deposits EREIRITER 29 - 1,182,473
Bank balances and cash RITEMREIRS 29 497,244 301,850
2,979,633 3,347,446
TOTAL ASSETS BEEH#E 11,345,013 11,946,320
Annual Report 2018 T— N\FFHR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &€ B &R E

At 31 December 2018
R2018F 12431 H

2017
Notes HK$’000
k3 FAET
EQUITY ;i
Capital and reserves EARR#HE
Share capital & 7K 31 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves ] 32 3,121,978 3,476,619
Equity attributable to owners of the AARHER AEERRA
Company 6,748,759 7,103,400
Non-controlling interests FEFEHil M 854,447 385,093
TOTAL EQUITY e L] 7,603,206 7,488,493
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities EREBERE
Borrowings BE 33 1,200,254 989,915
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE 34 253,103 232,383
1,453,357 1,222,298
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables JEER R R 35 11,955 7,886
Accrued charges, rental deposits and BT ER - HEEE R
other payables E b pE 31 36 520,901 948,746
Borrowings BE 33 1,723,536 2,241,205
Taxation payable FERT AR IR 32,058 37,692
2,288,450 3,235,529
TOTAL LIABILITIES EERAE 3,741,807 4,457,827

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BRAREEHAE

11,345,013 11,946,320

Net current assets BREBEE 691,183 111,917
Total assets less current liabilities ZEZERRIBEE 9,056,563 8,710,791

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 258
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 29 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Gao Jian Min
SEREE
Director &%

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

F84EEF 28 H AN REEESR
SR 20199 3 A 29 HRA] M R AE 21T W 4L
THRERRERBER

Mr. Huang Jiajue
BEEBLE
Director 8%



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &GREER S BHFx

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
AATHRAAEERE
Asset Non-
Share revaluation  Translation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
kA EEERRE ERffE REEF At FEGER KAl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FET FAT FET FET
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 A1H 3,626,781 230,159 79,193 2,420,961 6,357,094 233,711 6,590,805
Profit for the year FREF| = = = 260,201 260,201 61,000 321,201
Other comprehensive income FRERZENS
for the year — 35,881 450,224 — 486,105 17,620 508,725
Total comprehensive income FREENEEE
for the year - 35,881 450,224 260,201 746,306 78,620 824,926
Disposal of leasehold properties under REFEA THERENSE
revaluation model — (12,899) — 12,899 — — —
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of ~ $—RHK BRI
a subsidiary (Note 43(c)) B2 BRIRE (W 450) = = = = = (8,101) (8,101)
Capital contribution from non-controlling —FNBRAR AR ERE
interests of a subsidiary (Note 43(c)) Bz 40) = = = = = 83,763 83,763
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) mERBRR(H57) = = = = = (2,900) (2,900)
At 31 December 2017 R2017€12 318 3,626,781 253,141 529,417 2,694,061 7,103,400 385,093 7,488,493
Adjustment (Note 2) HBEW22) — — — 9,455 9,455 — 9,455
At 1 January 2018 (restated) 201841 A1 A (KE7]) 3,626,781 263,141 529,417 2,703,516 7,112,855 385,093 7,497,948
Loss for the year FRER - - = (49,375) (49,375 (116,792) (166,167)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for — EREM2 AU GLE)
the year - 35,799 (350,520) - (314,721) 8.204) (322,925
Total comprehensive income (expense) for FREMEERE(ZIL)
the year ks = 35,799 (350,520) (49375  (364096)  (124996)  (489,002)
Capital contributions from non-controlling —FHB AR I EHEENER
interests of subsidiaries (Note 43(c)) BN i£43(c) = = = = = 594,350 594,350
At 31 December 2018 ®2018%F12A31H 3,626,781 288,940 178,897 2,654,141 6,748,759 864,447 7,603,206
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #Z8HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
2017
HK$'000
FEIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REK
(Loss) profit before taxation from RERBECEER L
continuing operation PR AT (E518) s Al (148,753) 365,812
Profit before taxation from REDRIEREEBE 2
discontinued operation R 5 A A A = 3,480
Adjustments for: FHEE
Share of results of associates BAEE S N AEE (60,203) (311,112)
Depreciation of property, plant VI - BB RERETE
and equipment 240,232 231,668
Amortisation of land use rights o Hb {5 R A 5 4,243 4,140
Finance costs W% E A 113,333 178,446
Dividend income from listed R IE TR EA
and unlisted securities (103) (23,494)
Interest income A EWA (54,531) (90,995)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary nk== =N 6y (2,167) —
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BERZEZ
and equipment B8 F 5 . 47 3,145
Change in fair value of investment KEWMEZ AREED
properties (62,477) (55,285)
Gain on fair value change of financial ARER=EBEZEA
assets at fair value through profit or loss Bz H 2RI E E Kz (122,429) —
Change in fair value of structured finance @B L RES 2
securities RAEEE ) = (168)
Change in fair value of held-for-trading RIEEEREZAREE
investments = (7,425)
Reversal of impairment loss on inventories 17 & J& {8 [o] \ - (27,678)
Net reversal of impairment loss of amount  J& Ul & 1 )5 & fE g & 50
due from an associate and loan BB E B B 5
receivables (18,476) —
Operating cash flows before movements in & & & &) Fi Y
working capital XTSI M (111,284) 270,634
Decrease in inventories &R 4,057 30,895
Decrease in held-for-trading investments  #H{EE BR &R = 53,567
Decrease in disposal of financial assets at HEURAA{ETE HHE)T
fair value through profit or loss V= Eydy: 121,703 —
Increase in trade receivables JE Uk BR R 0 (1,161) (69,491)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments and e - BRKEA
other receivables & WA Rk 15,778 159,639
Increase (decrease) in trade and bills FERTBR R R EH B INCOR D)
payables 4,456 (30,630)
Increase in accrued charges, rental EErER - ABiEe Rk
deposits and other payables H fih FE S R 0 137,453 66,809
Cash generated from operations KEXBF2RE 171,002 481,323
Dividend received B YR B 103 21,239
Interest paid =ANEUES (111,909) (1562,243)
Tax paid [ENEES (5,844) (17,441)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBHB2FRE
ACTIVITIES 53,352 332,878

Silver Grant International Industries Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 48B4 RER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FETL
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEW
Addition of available-for-sale investments 3 i a] i H &8 & — (604,948)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment fEA Y - &= M &E (199,208) (122,067)
Settlement of construction costs payables sz {~f i3k 2N (128,898) (162,543)
Interest received 2 U B 12,696 18,789
Net cash from (used in) disposal of HEMBARMEFIA) 2 37
subsidiaries FR e 5,000 (79,850)
Repayment from an associate RE—RPEE QN TER 191,617 591,090
Repayment from a third party RE—RBRE=HZER - 224,555
Advance of loan receivables 23 EWE R (837,381) (220,682)
Receipt of loan receivables W ER fE W 5 3R 119,749 416,082
Deposit paid for acquisition of an equity BARERE 2B Re
investment B (39,970) —
Proceeds on disposal of financial assets at &L AR EFE B EEH)
fair value through profit or loss AR ERMEEMS
HIB 1,421,737 —
Tax paid for disposal of a financial asset HENARETEREFE
at fair value through profit or loss SFABENESREEZE
LR (42,092) —
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME BERLZES
plant and equipment IR 127 81,714
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale  H & A] ft HE &% & FriS FUE
investments — 21,912
Capital injection to an associate R NG A= VNN (16,742) (77,606)
Deposit to restricted bank balance FAEEFO (40,056) —
Deposit to pledged bank deposits FARIPRITIFR (322,473) —
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits TREUGK IR T17 3K 844 976
Purchase of structured bank deposits BEEEMERITER - (1,182,473)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING BREZBHAE(FiH)BEES
ACTIVITIES 124,950 (1,095,051)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Eﬂﬁ%ﬁ
Other loans raised HiEHEE 44 981,735 680,413
Repayment of other loans EEEMER 44 (662,100) (259,480)
Bank loans raised BITEHREE 44 1,042,922 824,206
Repayment of bank loans EEIRITER 44 (917,892) (1,338,852)
Proceeds received on behalf of an entity R —RIlHAAA—(UEEE 44
controlled by a director of the Company il 2 2 E AN 2 5RI8 - 375,688
Settlement of proceeds received on behalf X {t—RBHAAG —EE 44
of an entity controlled by a director of il 2 A 'Y 2 5RIE
the Company N (414,147) —
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests $—RIE2EWBZHNELR 44
of non-wholly owned subsidiaries Al ISR 2
B E - (8,101)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RMEXBREERE
ACTIVITIES 30,518 273,874
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) CASH RERBEEEEMOED)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R 208,820 (488,299)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REeRRELEEFOHE
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 301,850 734,988
Effect of foreign currency rate changes INECE R E B v F & (13,426) 55,161
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REeRBEEEFREE
THE END OF THE YEAR 497,244 301,850
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReRREEELEBRDN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITER MRS 497,244 301,850




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

1.

General

Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the subsidiaries of the Company
operate. For the convenience of the financial statements
users, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), as the
Company’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
engaged in property investment and securities trading.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in property
leasing and trading of petrochemical products and
provision of sub-contracting service. Details of the
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and
the Group’s associates are set out in Note 43.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B FE2018F 12 31 HILF/E
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22  Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Amendments to Classification and Measurement

HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 28

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Report 2018

A REET2EBMBRE
ZA(TEBHBREED )

AEFD BB ERZHIERHTEEN

B R Z EFT

AEBRAFEE B XERA T HESD
BHMARES - T ALKSFERE
B AR T RANEE] 2 B A s 2
Al :

EERHMERN ERTA

ek
EEMBREERN RARFAHZ
51557 Wz & AEREIERT

FE(ERPGHRSE IMEIHRBN

BRRZEE) — RE
BEE22%
BEMBHRELEN  UROBAIARS
£ 25 (BFIA) ZoERETE
BAVBRSER  AEMBREEL
F 45 (BFTA) FOFEBMIAR
BAMBRELE
A 45 R E 4
ZEEEA
BAGAER HEBMERS
£ 285k (55T A) EB|2014FE
2016 FEHEI 2 F
Btz — 5173
el BRI EME
F 405 (BETR)

BRI ES - A LRAFRELZE
BT RS R FIE RIERT A AR
BRAFE MBEFEHIERE LR
AR S R A B RAR AT 2 R
TEEATE

T \EEF

93



94

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”

and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits (or other components
of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in
HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 and the
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following

major Sources:

o Leasing of investment properties

° Provision of subcontracting services of
petrochemical products

° Sales of petrochemical products

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B FE2018F 12 31 HILF/E
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1

2.2

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in
Notes 5 and 3 respectively.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
application of HKFRS 15 in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for current and prior
years but results in more extensive disclosures in
these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses
(“ECL”) for financial assets and 3) general hedge
accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EFE2018F 12 31 HILF/E
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018
(date of initial application) and has not applied
the requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in Note 3.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZE2018F 12 531 HIFF/Z

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement (including impairment) of financial
assets and financial liabilities and other items
subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at
the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

A RGBT 2EBMBRE
HA([ERMBREER D) (&)

AEFDBHIER BT EEN
BREEAZER] ()

22 BEEREUMBBEEFIRIEMT

A&
HEREHE B BHREEREI
BHHERE

TRAARBEE B HREXEDQ
FRBEBSEERE IR HET
EHEEEERAIZEMEE X
TRIBEREMIERRIIXER
M2018F1 A1BZ a2
(BIERE) °

Financial

assets

at FVTPL

required by Amortised
Financial ~ HKAS 39/ cost
assets HKFRS 9 (previously
designated  @MEEAE classified

at BRERRZ  asloans and

Available- FTPL AREEEE  receivables)  Deferred
Interestsin ~~ forsale  SEEE GEESHE  EEA tax
associates  investments S8R HENE/  (ZHFE  liabiities  Retained
BENT  THEE  RERRR  BENEEE gk EEHE profits
& RE DRERE  EEZOE  EiGM) 88  REEW
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it AT AT A1 AT 7AT 7471 7AL
Closing balance at 31 December 2017512431 AKER
2017 - HKAS 39 —BRgiElE0E 1,334 851 06807 1,189472 100526 1544803 (222389 (2,694,061)
Effectarising from infial appication ~ #E R EEEAYFRLE
of HKFRS 9 AFosnze.
Reclassifcation B
From avallablefor-sales fEaftinERE
nvestments @ - (906,897) - 906,897 - - -
From desiqated at FVTPL ERNAAERAER () - - (11894 1189472 - - -
Remeasurement Efie
Impaiment under ECL mode! BEEEEBET
il (0 - - - - (29,200) - 29200
From cost less impaiment tofar ~ EAAMIBBEE A%
value () (r.467) - - 88,214 - 42,09) (38,655)
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 2018%1 A1 B&HHIiE5: 1,827,184 - - 2109 1515608 (2447 (.703516)
—E—N\FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments

From AFS investments to financial assets at
FVTPL

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9,
the Group’s equity investments and unlisted
fund investments of HK$906,897,000
were reclassified from AFS investments to
financial assets at FVTPL. The fair value
gains of HK$88,214,000 relating to those
equity investments previously carried at cost
less impairment were adjusted to financial
assets at FVTPL and retained profits as at 1
January 2018. HK$42,092,000 deferred tax
in respect of the fair value gain is charged to
the retained profits as at 1 January 2018.

In respect of the unlisted fund investments,
the directors of the Company reviewed the
relevant contract and concluded that the
contractual cash flows of the instrument do
not represent solely payment of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding
(“SPPI”) under HKFRS 9. Hence, it is
measured at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL and/or designated
at FVTPL

At the date of initial application, the Group
no longer applied designation as measured
at FVTPL for the structured finance
securities and structured bank deposits,
as these financial assets are required to be
measured at FVTPL under HKFRS 9. As a
result, the fair value of these investments of
HK$1,189,472,000 were reclassified from
financial assets designated at FVTPL to
financial assets at FVTPL.

In respect of the structured finance
securities and structured bank deposits,
the directors of the Company reviewed the
relevant investment agreements or the terms
of investments and concluded that their
contractual cashflow do not represent SPPI
on the principal amount outstanding under
HKFRS 9. Hence, they are measured at
FVTPL.

Remaining investments are equity securities
held for trading which are required to be
classified as FVTPL under HKFRS 9. There
was no impact on the amounts recognised in
relation to these assets from the application
of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(c) Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses
a lifetime ECL for trade receivables. To
measure the ECL and trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics.

Loss allowances for other financial assets
at amortised cost mainly comprise of
loan receivables and amount due from an
associate, are measured on 12m ECL basis
as there had been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, the additional credit
loss allowance of HK$29,200,000 has been
recognised against retained profits. The
additional loss allowance is charged against

the respective asset.

All loss allowances for financial assets
including amount due from an associate and
loan receivables as at 31 December 2017
reconcile to the opening loss allowance as at

1 January 2018 is as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(c) Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

A REET2EBMBRE
ZA(TEBHBREER ] (&)

AEFD BB ERZHIERHTEEN
B s R ZEFT ()

22 FERMBBEEUFORI€MT

B1(#&)
HEREREBYEREEEEI
R HEE(E)
(c) TEREEEEE T EE
(%)
Amount
due
from an Loan

associate receivables
W —=x
1 FNEIEA ERER
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET

At 31 December 2017 — HKAS 39

MN2017E12 4311 —

FREGFTERF 395k - -

Amounts remeasured through opening HF#{RE & 7
ENTECSE (28,000) (1,200)

retained profits

At 1 January 2018

201841 H1H (28,000) (1,200)

(d) Interests in associates

The net effects arising from the initial
application of HKFRS 9 resulted in a
decrease in the carrying amounts of
interests in associates of HK$7,467,000 with
corresponding adjustments to retained profits
by HK$7,467,000. The change was due to
fair value change of an equity investment
held by the associate which was measured
at cost less impairment under HKAS 39 but
measured at fair value upon the application
of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EFE2018F 12 31 HILF/E
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended
31 December 2018, movements in working capital
have been computed based on opening consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018 as
disclosed above.

Except as described above, the application of other
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material effect on the amounts reported and/
or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation that have
been issued but are not yet effective:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B FE2018F 12 31 HILF/E
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Continued)

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EFE2018F 12 31 HILF/E
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, among others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group and upfront prepaid
lease payments will continue to be present as investing
or operating cash flows in accordance with the nature,
as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirement which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

The Group considers refundable rental deposits received
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS
16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised
cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be considered as additional lease payments and
included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received
would be considered as advance lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. The Group intends to elect the
practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease”. Therefore, the Group
will not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain
a lease which already existed prior to the date of initial
application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the
modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative
effect of initial application to opening retained profits
without restating comparative information.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition
of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgements. The
amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application
of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is
a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the
amendments state that gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or
joint venture.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

A REET2EBMBRE
Z(TEBHBREER D) (&)

ERMERARER T REIERTES

M E LR ()

ERVBRELENEI10RRERBS
ERFBRBITAREERABE D
AREELECHANEEHERTE

FEMBRELENE10RIERT ARG
MBEBKR IRBERTERF 285N
BERANAELCRZRE IREER
BEEHEBMENTRALLELHAER
EHESIEMNRER - BBME @ E5]
AN TE BLARE R ARRE) — B & R A
H—HAELE  RAEZ—HLERS
EBHWME AR NZEHRNZ S
Tk EE  REQA 2 EEARE
R WEAIFERIRE ER %ML QA
HEELEZERARR - B F
WA ERAR(ERABERFHAE
CENRDEARMREZRENE
Mt EE QA BEM SRS M E
1B RAIBARZBHEAMER - LIEMX
FHBAREER B ERRHAEDRE
ZHEERR -

IRERREFXEGRA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
properties and financial instruments that are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values, as appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transferred at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Group can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date of
the Group gains until the control date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interest. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent ownership interests entitling their holders to
an proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Annual Report 2018

FTESTBEGE)
XBEH

WERBERBUEEALR - EHaHZ
BEREBRIAENE  MAETZX
RASREMBRCEERNRBRZAR
B AKREHMEBREREEAELZ
BEMAEEETRAEDNARAE
MR E 2RI ARRB IR E
A—RRELERNEBRRPHER -

R B - Pz iRl B & M PR
EEZBBNREEZRAERER

BBZFERUMEZEINE  REE
ER SRS TS B RIETT AT
RENKBEREZAABWE)Z
A MR AR B BB B E R
EENREFER - ATBL 2 Z8At
B o WEEHHER - WBE A EHA
FEERMAENAENEBRRAZF
B FEREENRBEE A2 BN
RBBETAERANRBEREZ AR
B(WA)zeMERER I KE - AlZ

BARMERRANERSITERBER

S o

B

—T—\FEH



114

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at
fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on
the basis of the relative values of the operation (or the
cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. Changes in assets of
the associates other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest
held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &#&

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B FE2018F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a
joint venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the property to derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) and buildings held
for use in production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost or revalued amount less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Factory for the use in the production or supply of goods
or services are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. For those leasehold land and buildings used for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued amount,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses and
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end
of the reporting period.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
or fair value of property, plant and equipment other
than construction in progress less residual value over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the asset revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e.
the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods
or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the
Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or services before that goods or services are transferred
to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified good or
services by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified goods or services provided
by another party before that goods or services are
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related tax.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Other interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Revenue from the sale of petrochemical products is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles
have passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Property management fee income is recognised when
management service is rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight line basis over the term of the leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Sub-contracting income is recognised when services
are provided.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

accounting mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, loan receivables,
other receivables, amount due from an associate,
restricted bank balance, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations; or

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood
definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B FE2018F 12 31 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(Continued)

(i)

(ii

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(Continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(o) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped based on the
nature of financial instruments, past-due status
and the nature, size and industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management

to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables, where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
three categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees, points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when

the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gain or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 46.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, loan
receivables, amount due from an associate, pledged
bank deposits, restricted bank balance, structured bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Equity securities traded in an active market and debt
securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period except for unquoted
investments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured. Changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale debt instruments relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables which are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade receivables are considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit
or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade and
bills payables and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Annual Report 2018

FESTHEE)

SRMITAE)

EREBRREE)

BATA
BrEsTARTEREEEF SRR
(IR EFRBEBER) ZEFMER -
AR AT Z RAT A THIRE WERAT
BREREEETEARLE
LHAE

AT BERERMNEEHRIER
BSHAAS ©

BB F#x

MEBZRTIZERA R EEMER -

EHE ERB KA

TREGEERER  EBNRIRERE -
HpEARAMEMHB AR RE
BREAERNEEILBHNATE -

EHEERILER
EAREEZ BEERER - BUESER
B AEBERRILERSHEE - KIE

Rz eRAEREERDS N RENAK
BOERE - IR R NER

—T—\FEH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount of
tangible and intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
taxation’” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.
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EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period, except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or
an associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Lease

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Lease (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases, in which case
the entire lease property is accounted as an operating
lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at
initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “land use rights” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and building elements, the entire is generally classified
as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for staff in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), excluding Hong Kong and Macau, and
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for staff in
Hong Kong are defined contribution retirement benefit
payments and are recognised as expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revision to accounting estimate
is recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

FESTHEE)
EHREMRBESER

2 H R BRI IR TR S ME B IR R
B 2 REERBH SRR o BRIF
»— BB B HmEERIIRE LR
TR ABEZRAT - BRIFFEEH
BERMGHERBF

BEEABMN(WIELRFE FRE
REBR)GNRERNENSREERRE

(==
8

o

mEMEAEEENAER ZAEIRE
KR AKEEREEHRE BB
WZIRBELEZ At AKRERE 2R
BT E - RRBKA - FEREHTE
MEFEERMEZEAZSHINER
RPWER - R —BEBM B REZER
ME SERT I EEET ABEZRAP
A e

EREFHAFREFFTREZETE
HIR

FERAEBA S FEER (A0 &E 3 Friat)
B AARIESER AL S U HE A
REREEMNEERBEZRAMBEELH
B - et RRE o ZE A5 RIAERE
TR B R e S E A 18 1 A8 5 K H Ath [
=EH - ER&AR gL E I FMET
A o

ZEhET RAERRSFEF LR -
WERTEF EZIERTH - SsthtaE
RN ZIEFT A FER M 1E 7] R E %
HAR ¢ Bk iW k1B AT 28 AN B R 2R
A - RIRMERT B R R R AT R R

FERAREEERA

il



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
of HK$2,522,430,000 (2017: HK$2,583,770,000),
representing properties for residential or commercial
use are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors
of the Company have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of these investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred
taxation in relation to these investment properties has
been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirely through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for amount due from an associate
and loan receivables

The Group individually calculates ECLs for its amount
due from an associate and loan receivables. The
measurement of ECL under HKFRS 9 for the Group’s
amount due from an associate and loan receivables
requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, where the change of the
factors which result in different levels of allowances,
a lower/higher impairment loss may arise. The Group
uses its credit loss experience, repayment history and
financial position of the Group’s associate, debtors and
their guarantors (if any) and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions to
estimate the probability of default, the loss given default
and the impact on the forward-looking information.
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk
of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable, supportable and available
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking
analysis.

In relation to the valuation of amount due from an
associate, in addition to the above, the management
has exercised judgement in estimating the timing
and future cash flow to be recovered with reference
to the timing of the collection of receivable held by
the associate and the value of the property projects
held by underlying debtor, in order to determine the
recoverability of the amount due from an associate.

The carrying value of amount due from an associate
and loan receivables at 31 December 2018 were
HK$383,684,000 and HK$931,403,000 respectively,
net with accumulated ECL of HK$5,705,000 and
HK$5,019,000 respectively.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables and other receivables, excluding
prepayments. The provision rates are based on past
due status as groups of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based
on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable and available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables and other receivables are
disclosed in Notes 46, 27 and 28 respectively.

Fair value of investment properties and leasehold
land and buildings

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties and leasehold land and buildings
are stated at fair value of HK$2,522,430,000 (2017:
HK$2,583,770,000) and HK$323,181,000 (2017:
HK$292,251,000) respectively based on the valuation
performed by independent qualified professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based
on market value basis which involves, inter-alia, certain
estimates, including comparable market transactions.
In relying on the valuation, management has exercised
their judgment and is satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.

Annual Report 2018

EARSHAHRMGTHTREZEE
HR (&)

Rt FRENEERR(E)

FEW IR R E M E WA R B 183
-]

AEEEREBREERB R
WK - TRIBBNR - BEXRDE
REA BB BREL M E R AERH A
BEEFAMESL - BERETHEEE
BEFBERANLIRAB A ERNSIE K&
SEMRTEEERRERANEENESE
ERNRBH - REERSH - 25T
HELBERBORLZEAEEEHD

EAGEEEEREEHNEZESAEH
RE - BEEBEHEEEBERASEERK
BR R % B A B WK D B R 9 Bl 458 B A
5L 46~ 27 )28 °

REWHERHEEL M RIEFHALE

RAREBAR AEBENREME
RHETHWREFDHIERBILEGE
BEXHEMOTGEA R BEYE
2 Bl A 2,522,430,00078 7T(2017 4F :
2,5683,770,000 % 7T ) % 323,181,000 %
JT(2017 4F : 292,251,000/ 7C) @ &
EANE - [HERMBEMEERE &
FEE LHEE  ETHAGEETLER
TSRS - WMEBEBTER - 1
[E 778 BB H i Kom BB R &
BB %0t < B ER B B TS A 0L ©

— T \FFRH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EFE2018F 12 31 HILF/E
4. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the assets belongs. Determining whether impairment
needs to be provided requires an estimation of future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating
units. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation for cash generating unit are set out
in Note 18.

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue from major products, investments and services
is analysed as follows:
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5. WARDEHERE)
2018
HK$’000
FET

Timing of revenue recognition TERURA 2 5 [ B

— A point in time — R — B 20,178
— Over time — BRI 385,944
406,122

Revenue from leasing of investment properties will
continue to be accounted for in accordance with HKAS
17.

Revenue from sales of petrochemical products is
recognised when the respective petrochemical products
have been delivered to the customers which is a point in
time when customers have the ability to direct the use
of the petrochemical products and obtain substantially
all of the benefits of the petrochemical products. The
normal credit term is 30 to 60 days upon delivery.

The subcontracting service provided by the Group is
to convert those raw materials provided by Zhong Hai
You Qi (Taizhou) Petrochemical Company Ltd (“Zhong
Hai You Qi”) by using its own production plant into
those finished goods belonged to Zhong Hai You Qi.
The Group has not taken the title of those raw materials
and only provides the processing service. Revenue
from provision of subcontracting service is recognised
over time as the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits provided by the Group when the
Group renders the service. Output method is adopted
in the measurement of revenue by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation. The normal credit term is 30 to
60 days upon service provided.

All sales of petrochemical products and provision of
subcontracting service are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

Annual Report 2018

HREMEELEZHS WA SHENE
BEETERIE 17 RAR

F 85 & A L T2 an bR 2 WA A
L TEME & T 5 P I 00 R E B ] g
R HEREPAENERERAMET
EmREAXALEBRSARICIERMA
BRTIHHNEE - —REMHARERXEI0
£60K °

AEERHENIEBENRECAEH
FESEFEHER(EMN)ABLLERA
AT EBEMNAaDREZRMR
w@insdhEmRM AL ZRKSR - A&
BERBEEZEMB 2 AL IERS—
BERN - EAREERBEMNIRER - &
B[R R UER R H FE AR R B R A A T
&= IRENTREEROBA S
BT ENABBEOR TN EE WIZR
MEEEITHER - —REAHARMER
%1% 30E 60K °

A s TE a8 & REEHIN TR
BP—FHIR—F - B BRELE
AIE1RBF I RE DB T REZK
ZENXHE -

T \EEF

159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z
5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

The Group is currently organised into three operating
divisions: (i) investments (including the results from loan
receivables and financial assets at FVTPL (2017: held-
for-trading investments, available-for-sale investments,
structured finance securities and loan receivables));
(i) property leasing; and (iii) trading of petrochemical
products and provision of sub-contracting service
related to production of petrochemical products. These
operating divisions are the basis of the internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, in order to
allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group disposed of its entire interest in Straight View
Investment Limited (“Straight View”) and its subsidiary,
which engaged in the Group’s property management
operation (the “Property Management Operation”).
Property Management Operation was reclassified as
discontinued operation as described in Note 6.

Besides, the Group’s distressed assets operation and
sales of properties operation were not presented in
segment information, as the executive directors of the
Company considered the financial information related to
these operations are insignificant.

No segment assets or liabilities is presented as the
chief operating decision maker does not regularly review
segment assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHFE2018F 12 H31 HIFFZ

5.

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenue and results:

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by operating and reportable segments:

Continuing operations

Year ended 31 December 2018

5.

Investments
RE
HK$000
A7

WA R EBER (&)

DEUARELE -

AT RAEE 2 WA R FEREENR

EREZDH

HZ2018F 1231 BLLEE

Trading of
petrochemical
products and
provision of
sub-

contracting

service

Property  AMBLIER
leasing #ELE  Consolidated
NERE  RENIRE )
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
A7 F#7n FET

Revenue KA 103 105,624 406,122 511,849
Segment profit (loss) AEEF (EE) 194,595 117,395 (319,200) (7,210)
Other unallocated income, Ht kA BB KB RER
gains and losses 5,035
Corporate expenses DRER (93,448)
Finance costs HEER (113,333)
Share of results of associates BEBENTEE 60,203
Loss before taxation BB E R (148,758)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &&

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

5.

MR M

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5. WARDHER (&
Segment revenue and results: (Continued) DEWARESE - (&)
Continuing operations (Continueqd) PR R (E)
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017F12 A1 BILFE
Trading of
petrochemical
products and
provision of
sub-
contracting
service
Property  RBftIER
Investments leasing HER  Consolidated
"E WERE  RENIRE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 23,494 100,439 805,301 929,234
Segment profit PR 53,055 97,888 88,519 239,462
Other unallocated income, gains and HEAPEYN - W R EE
losses 69,420
Corporate expenses NG (75,736)
Finance costs HBER (178,446)
Share of results of associates BMEAREE 311,112
Profit before taxation bR A R 365,812
The accounting policies of the operating segments are LS E s et R EARE BN S
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described ARz &R —BA -

in Note 3.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results of each
segment without allocation of items which are not
actively reviewed by the chief operating decision maker,
including other unallocated income, gains and losses,
comprising interest income other than those from an
associate and loan receivables, net foreign exchange
gain, net loss on disposal of corporate property, plant
and equipment and certain miscellaneous unallocated
income. The unallocated corporate expenses, finance
costs and share of results of associates are not
allocated into individual segment as they are under
central management. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5. WARDIER(ZE
Other segment information fb o> EpE R
Trading
of petro-
chemical
products
and provision
of sub-
contracting
service
Property RftT
Investments leasing ER#EER  Unallocated  Consolidated
RE NERE  REMIRE KFAE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T FET TAT AT
Continuing operations
BELEEK
Year ended 31 December 2018
BZ2018F12 A1 ALEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:
PEREEDDEFNEEANDEE L2 -
Depreciation ik - (2,952) (227,420) (9,860) (240,232)
Amortisation of land use rights ~ +3E B i - - (4,243) = (4,243)
Other expenses HihER - - (164,948) - (164,948)
Change in fair value of financial ~ WAL B EBEE
assets at FVTPL STABENEREEY
RAEED 121,371 - 1,058 - 122,429
Interest income from an Y —ZEE DR ZFE
associate WA 23,641 - - - 23,641
Interest income from loan FEREFZFBHA
receivables 28,233 - - - 28,233
Net reversal of impairment S DRI R R ENE
loss on amount due from H R EBER A TE
an associate and loan
receivables 18,476 - - - 18,476
Change in fair value of RENF A EZ
investment properties - 62,477 - - 62,477
Net loss on disposal of property, HENE - BERREE
plant and equipment EERTE - (13) (34) - (47)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker, but not included in the measure of segment profit or loss:
EHRME T ZEBAFENSBETOERBED HEH B :
Capital additions BEARE
— property, plant and — 0% BERSE
equipment - 1,548 243,564 - 245,112
Interests in associates BENRER - - 1,247,187 87,926 1,335,113
Share of results of associates ~ E{EHE A FIEE - - 66,365 (6,162) 60,203
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &&

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

5.

BRI

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 5. WARDIER(E)
Other segment information (Continued) Hittn BER(E)
Trading
of petro-
chemical
products
and provision
of sub-
contracting
service
Property Pad
Investments leasing EmHER Unallocated ~ Consolidated
®E NEHE  RENIRE ATHR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT FET AT AT
Continuing operations
BEREEY
Year ended 31 December 2017
BZ2017512A31 ALEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:
BEREED PR BANPEE L 28 -
Depreciation ik - (2,835) (217,895) (9,243) (229,973)
Amortisation of land use rights ~ THifF R - - (4,140) - (4,140)
Reversal of impairment loss on 77 & B [
inventories - - 27,678 - 27,678
Change in fair value of i Iiirﬁ E5L
structured finance securities AHhEE 168 - - - 168
Interest income from loan I ‘“*“Zﬂ SHA
receivables 22,157 — — - 22,157
Change in fair value of held-for-  BEEERE AL EEF
trading investments 7,425 = = = 7,425
Change in fair value of e IEYNNL
investment properties = 55,285 = = 55,285
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BERREE
plant and equipment EZEETE - (76) (16) (3,030) (3,122)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or loss:
TAREGIZEEARENSEATIDERER S PRFI5EE
Capital additions EARE
— property, plant and o EN S
equipment - 894 195,566 942 197,402
Interests in associates YN - - 1,228,078 106,573 1,334,651
Share of results of associates ~ BEBENRIEE = = 251,467 59,645 311,112
Silver Grant International Industries Limited REFBREEFRA A
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EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
5. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Information about major customers

During the year, revenue from an associate, Zhong
Hai You Qi, contributed over 10% of total revenue
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2018, total sub-contracting income and sales of
petrochemical products generated from Zhong Hai You
Qi was HK$385,944,000 (2017: HK$715,158,000) and
HK$20,178,000 (2017: HK$80,957,000) respectively.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and
Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue from external
customers is based on the location of the Group’s
operations to derive the revenue and information about
its non-current assets by geographical location of the
assets are detailed below:

5. WARZHERE)

TEEFEHR

RER - BB EARTEaRMNELE
ERBA BB EBIRALEZ10% °
R2018F12A31H 2 F A @A+
BEHEMNABLEEBMOMNIBERA R
HEABIIERGTERTMAL
2 Bl %385,944,000/8 JT(2017 4F :
715,158,000 7T ) }& 20,178,000/ 7T
(2017 4F : 80,957,000/87T) °

I ER

AEEZEEWHRTEAREE - XK
BEMEBEER CBMARERAEE 2
L8 B ARSI A ML SE IR B B 2 A
I DR BRI

Continuing operations BEKSEER
Revenue Non-current assets
A FRBEE
2018 2017 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TFET T
Hong Kong B 1,423 5,753 365,467 324,067
PRC H 510,426 923,481 7,493,588 7,744,109

511,849 929,234 7,859,055 8,068,176

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z
6. Discontinued Operation

On 28 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of a subsidiary,
Straight View, and its non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Beijing Yinda Property Management Limited (“Yinda”),
which carried out the Group’s Property Management
Operation. The sale and purchase agreement was
entered between the Group and the two directors of
Yinda (the “Purchasers”) and the total consideration for
this disposal was HK$31.7 million. The disposal was
completed on 30 June 2017, on which date control of
Straight View passed to the Purchasers and Straight
View and its subsidiary were ceased to be subsidiaries
of the Company.

The profit for the six months ended 30 June 2017 (i.e.
up to the date the Group lost control over Yinda) from
the Property Management Operation was set out below.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

R2017F 4 H28H  AEEFIY—1H
BEEWEHLENBARZRSEREIES
BRBHMBARLRRENEETIEAR
BEAEQAREE]D  ZARRELE
B2 MEETREY  2EEHEH
AEBMERECWMBES(WEF D)
Fi] - BB 2BRKERS31,700,000%8
Lo Z s B R2017F6 A30H %
B WHRRBBERESKENBARZ
M T R 5 W F L E R AR B Z Y
BAR -

HE2017FE6 A308 1E /<& A (BNt
B AREEHRERELGEZR)R
EMEBTEER 2 @FSHINWT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE

6. Discontinued Operation (Continued) 6. EBRIEREEK(E)
The result of the discontinued operation which had been BRETEFREERRARBERIEE 2
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, FEEEH T -

was as follows:

From
1 January 2017
to 30 June 2017

201741 H1H
FE20174F
6 H30H
HK$’000
FEIT
Revenue LON 103,245
Cost of sales SHE MRS A A (69,538)
Other income, gains or losses HAUA - e R EE 2,048
Administrative expenses 1THE A (32,275)
Profit before taxation B B4 A a2 ) 3,480
Taxation Bi1E (1,719
Profit for the year F N Al 1,761
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR ZEE (1,113)
Profit from discontinued operation KB B AR I 750 F 648
Profit from discontinued operation
attributable to: REERIELEEBERRT
— Owners of the Company — RREHER A 367
— Non-controlling interests — FEIEGI RS 281
648
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z
6. Discontinued Operation (Continued)

6. CRIEKEXRHRE)

Profit for the year from discontinued operation included FRREERIEEEFETE RN EBE TS
the following: HH :
From
1 January 2017
to 30 June 2017
20171 H1H
E2017F
6 H30H
HK$’000
FET
Auditor’s remuneration Z BB & =
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4% - ME KRB ITE (1,695)
Operating lease rentals in respect of land T REF 2 EERNOES
and building (1,007)
Staff cost BT#H (47,197)
Interest income — bank deposits FEWA - BITFR 217
Interest income — others MEBUA - EAh 826
Commission income B A 999
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - KER&EEE
equipment (23)
Other income H A 29
Cash flows from discontinued operation: RECRIEEEKBHERE :
Net cash outflow used in operating activities A& & £ FR LA (46,951)
Net cash outflow used in investing activities & X AEE LR (1,505)
Net cash outflow used in financing activities — Rl& T AEE SR (3,121)
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of REER  B5EAMNBARIZEER
Straight View and its subsidiary at the date of disposal BEZEmESSINMEI7 -

were disclosed in Note 37.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZ2018F 12431 HILFE

7.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7.

Continuing operations

FRSExK

H A ~ s REE

2017
HK$’000
TET
Interest income FEWA
— bank deposits — RITER 2,647 2,864
— amount due from an associate — W —KEEE AR
(Note 20) (H1z20) 23,641 65,138
— loan receivables — R ER 28,233 22,157
— others — HAh 10 836
Net foreign exchange gain E R R 5 1,036 1,786
Net loss on disposal of property, plant LEWE  BERZEZEIEFRE
and equipment (47) (8,122)
Net reversal of impairment loss of amount  JEU—REE & R B M EWE R 2
due from an associate and VEREY S =9
loan receivables (Note 46) (K17t 46) 18,476 —
Government grant B 6 B 462 3,869
Others A, 4,303 1,918
78,761 95,446
Annual Report 2018 - \FEFH,
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
8. Finance Costs 8. HM¥KEHR
Continuing operations BHERSEER

2018 2017
LLEX O  HK$'000
TET TET

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ARAFRNBHEED

within five years RITEFRFE 80,115 112,123
Interest on other loans wholly repayable BERAFABHEEZN

within five years HEmERFE 33,218 66,323

113,333 178,446
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4ZR& B # R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZ2018F 12431 HILFE

9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
directors and the chief executive were as follows:

EERITBARME

ENRANT & EERTRARDNE
T -

2018
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits  contribution Performance
ek BEe bonus
2@ (3 REARA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
(Note b)
(Kizth)
Executive directors TES
Gao Jian Min (Note a) SER(Hta) 500 5,200 18 1,800 7,518
Ma Yilin (Note d) SENHita) 400 - - - 400
Huang Jiajue (Note c) =ERHFC) - - - - -
Luo Zhihai (Note c) BEB(HHEC) - - - - -
Liu Tianni (Note c) BIXR{R(Hiite) 400 - - - 400
1,300 5,200 18 1,800 8,318

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

Non-executive directors ¥H{TEZ
Chu Hing Tsung (Note ¢) kB (Hfstc) -

EIHRTEEME HERARRR AL
BAREHEEREERTGOME -

Chen Zhiwei (Note c) FEMic) - = - - =
Luo Zhenhong (Note c) BIRE(Fiitc) 500 - - - 500
Hui Xiao Bing (Note c) BINE(Hiite) 500 = - - 500
Chen Qiming (Note c) BREBB(fistc) 500 - - - 500

1,500 - - - 1,500

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company.

Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E

9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9. EERTHARME &)
Remuneration (Continued)

2018
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits  contribution Performance
Fees HER wEe bonus Total
e Ht3E R e REA R
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FE FET FET FET
(Note b)
(Hith)
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Liang Qing 25 400 - - - 400
Zhang Lu ORI 400 - - - 400
Hung Muk Ming YN 300 - - - 300
1,100 - - - 1,100
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments EYBIERITESTME VEK AR D
shown above were for their services as directors of the BN EMBATIZES ZRIGME -
Company or its subsidiaries.
Total Faks) 3,900 5,200 18 1,800 10,918

172 Silver Grant International Industries Limited IRERBREEXAR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZE2018F 12 531 HIFF/Z

9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9.
Remuneration (Continued)

EERTHRERME(&Z)

2017
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits contribution  Performance
Fees ek wiEE bonus Total
fiikn Hi @A xR FREL B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
(Note b)
(Hiitb)
Executive directors HTEE
Gao Jian Min (Note a) BER#Mza) 500 4,797 18 1,800 7,115
Liu Tianni (Note c) ARR(Hrzte) 400 = = = 400
Ma Yilin (Note d) SENHF) 400 = = = 400
Gu Jianguo (Note e) BEE(fite) = - - - -
1,300 4,797 18 1,800 7,915

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

Non-executive directors F#H{TES

EIRITEEMESIE SRR RALE
BAEREHEERERBOME -

Luo Zhenhong (Note c) BIRE (Hiitc) 500 - - = 500
Hui Xiao Bing (Note c) BINE(Hizte) 500 - - = 500
Chen Qiming (Note c) BERHtc) 500 - - - 500
Chen Xiaozhou (Note e) BRZE(Hite) = - - - -
Wu Songyun (Note f) RDE (M2 = = - - -

1,500 — — - 1,500

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B ZE2018F 12431 HIFF/Z
9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9. EERTHHEARZME(Z)
Remuneration (Continued)
2017
Salaries
and other MPF
benefits contribution  Performance
Fees Fek BED bonus Total
ik Hit @A K RREA k]
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FBT BT FET FET
(Note b)
(Hiith)
Independent non- BUFHITES
executive directors
Liang Qing 25 400 - - - 400
Zhang Lu ORI 400 - - - 400
Hung Muk Ming YN 300 - - - 300
1,100 - - - 1,100
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments EIEEMITEEM R IEK SRR
shown above were for their services as directors of the Ak EMNB AR ZEEZIREME -
Company or its subsidiaries.
Total k) 3,900 4,797 18 1,800 10,515
No directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive RNATEERMEEELRAWNET(AE
any emoluments in both years. % o
Notes: Bt -
(@ Mr. Gao Jian Min is also the Chief Executive of the (@ =EERELERKETARARZITEEA

Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive.

The performance related incentive payments are
determined having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Mr. Huang Jiajue, Mr. Luo Zhihai, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung
and Mr. Chen Zhiwei appointed as directors of the
Company on 29 January 2019. Mr. Liu Tianni, Mr. Luo
Zhenhong, Mr. Hui Xiao Bing and Mr. Chen Qiming
resigned as the directors of the Company on 29 January
2019.

Mr. Ma Yilin appointed as director of the Company on 20
January 2017.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

B FE2018F 12 31 HILF/E
9. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 9. EERTHHEARZME(Z)
Remuneration (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Bt - (&
()  Mr. Chen Xiaozhou and Mr. Gu Jianguo resigned as the () PMREFREFLARBEREBELEEN2017F1
director of the Company on 20 January 2017. A20 BB EARBIES -
() Mr. Wu Songyun appointed as director of the Company H RVELEENR2017F1 208 EZR
on 20 January 2017 and resigned his office from 28 ERANATIESKBE2017F8 A28

August 2017.

B BHEERT

10. Employees’ Remuneration 10. ETZEM<
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included AEEBREERHALTEE—(2017
one (2017: one) director and the chief executive, details F:)BZEBEERTHEH BEX
of whose emolument are set out in Note 9 above. B BN EXCHE - Efim
The emoluments of the remaining four (2017: four) (2017 F : W)BALTHEHESOT ¢
individuals are as follows:
2017
HK$’000
FET
Salaries and other benefits e kEMEF 8,612 7,870
Performance related incentive payments BRI Be 27,550 23,760
Retirement benefit costs RRAE A B AR 53 133
36,215 31,763
Their emoluments are within the following bands: FENMS N T TFIEE

Number of employees

BEAR

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

3,000,001 7T = 3,500,000 8 7T

o |

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 & T = 4,000,000 7T
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 /T £ 8,000,000 7 7T - 2
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 7T £ 9,500,000 %8 7T 1 —
HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 11,000,001 & 7C 2 11,500,000 7 7T 1 —
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 11,500,001 /87T £ 12,000,000 7% 7T 1 —
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 &7 & 13,500,000 7 7T - 1
4 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
11. Taxation Bi1E
Continuing operations BERKEXER
2017
HK$’000
TET
Tax charge comprises: BEXZHEE:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — current tax B EEATISEL — BNES 2,573 18,353
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — underprovision 1 E{MEEFTER — B ERE
in prior years TE = 14,151
2,573 32,504
Deferred taxation: (Note 34) EIEREIR « (MaF34)
— current year — REE 14,841 12,755
17,414 45,259

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong
Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong
incurred tax losses during the year.

The taxation charge of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the year has been made based on the Group’s
estimated assessable profits calculated in accordance
with the relevant income tax laws applicable to the
subsidiaries in the PRC.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
11. Taxation (Continued) 11. BB (E)
Continuing operations (Continued) BEKEEK(E)
The withholding tax arising from dividend income TR B UER R B B A R IR B R A Z T8
received from PRC subsidiaries is calculated at 5%. TR 5% T R ETIE o
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax RIERBEMEREHREE(TFAERE])
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the FEERENERMAE - #2008 F 1
EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 A1B#  RPBEZHBARERZH
January 2008 onwards. K059 o
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) FRIEIB A ELESEDRRPREA(E
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of B)RFERNAT :
profit or loss as follows:
2017
HK$’000
FEIT
(Loss) profit before taxation B AT (1R R (148,753) 365,812
Taxation at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax BRI BEMENRTE25% 2
rate of 25% A (37,188) 91,453
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax  FAHL 75 A & TS0 F 2 BB 75
purpose e 19,884 27,672
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax TR TS B3 R AR A A B R 7%
purpose 2 (16,882) (29,650)
Tax effect of share of results of associates B OB S N R EEN RS2 (15,051) (77,778)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIBE BRI E 66,165 5,173
Withholding tax arising from dividend income — YgER 7 B A] {f i &84 BE B Uk A
received from PRC available-for-sale 2 TEHE
investment — 1,786
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BIEERERFERH 2R EE
recognised (14,355) (303)
Tax effect of change in fair value of KEMXEEEINTBLE
investment properties 14,841 12,755
Underprovision in prior year LARTF SR 2 = 14,151
Income tax expenses for the year FARMEHXH 17,414 45,259
Annual Report 2018 — T \FFR

177



178

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZR& B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E

11. Taxation (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the tax effect relating to

other comprehensive (expense) income:

1. BIE(E)

FEKERK(E)

ATREBEMEE () BaHiEs
B2

2018 2017
Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax [EEEREN Tax  Net-of-tax
amount  expense amount amount expense amount
BREASE  BEXY  BREESE RS ST e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TA% TA% TA% FET FET FET
Exchange difference arlsingon ~ AEENEBELZES
translation of foreign operation =% (358,724) - (358,724) 469,620 = 469,620
Reclassification of translation RHE-FHBAARE
reserve upon disposal of a 31
subsidiary - - - (1,776) - (1,776)
Gain arising on revaluation of BiRENEEEL
leasehold properties Wiz 41,678 (5,879) 35,799 41,007 (5,216) 35,881
(317,046) (5,879) (322,925) 508,941 (5,216) 503,725

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZE2018F 12 531 HIFF/Z

12. (Loss) profit for the Year

(Loss) profit for the year from continuing operations has

been arrived at after charging (crediting):

12. FRER(EE)

FARERBERLRBZ (BR)RFR
2R (GHA) :

2017
HK$’000
FET
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A B & 2,900 2,800
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense TF&EKAT AEH 19,827 92,332
Depreciation for property, plant and Y BERSEZTE
equipment 240,232 229,973
Amortisation of land use rights o $h {50 PR AR 4 5H 4,243 4,140
Staff costs including directors’ and chief ETBRAERANETIZEER
executive’s remuneration set out in Note 9 TTHBE BN € 173,982 159,541
Rental income under operating leases for WEMFIE T EERLN 2 H2U
investment properties, less outgoings of A HIBR 2 5,950,000 7% 7T
HK$5,950,000 (2017: HK$6,793,000) (2017 4 : 6,793,000 7T) (99,674) (93,646)
Reversal of impairment loss on inventories FERER & - (27,678)
Change in fair value of financial assets at AR EF=EBEES T A8
FVTPL HNERMEEL AN EE (122,429) —
Net reversal of impairment loss on amount FE U — R B 2 R R SR K FE UL ET TR
due from an associate and ZBEE BRI FE
loan receivables (18,476) —
Other expenses HihEH

During year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s

subsidiary, Taizhou United East Petrochemical

Company Limited (“TZ United East”) voluntarily

suspended production for a repair and maintenance of

its factory for few months. Direct costs, such as wages,

depreciation expenses, consumables and other direct
attributable costs incurred by TZ United East during this
suspension period were recognised to profit or loss as

other expenses for the year ended 31 December . As at
31 December 2018, the production has been resumed.

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ 2018 12431 HILF/E
13. (Loss) earnings Per Share 13. BREF (&EE)
From continuing operations REFERSEEL
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings AABEEAEENERERRE S
per share attributable to owners of the Company is (518 ) & F TR & T 2 &5 51 & pr
based on the following data: 5
2017
HK$'000
FET
(Loss) earnings: (B8 BA
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic (loss) ARErEERER(EE) B
earnings per share ((loss) profit for the year (BB)BF(AREEAR AESL
attributable to owners of the Company) FR(ER)RH) (49,375) 260,201
Less: Profit for the year from discontinued operation & - KRB B &R IFE LK AN T
attributable to owners of the Company BB AELERRF - (367)
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic (loss) RUAGTEREBELE£E 2 TR
earnings per share from continuing operations ER(ER) BNz (ER)&F (49,375) 259,834
2018 2017
In thousand [gRiglelltE:1glel
FiE TR
Number of shares: RDEAE :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the B EHEERER(EIB) BT 2 i
purpose of basic (loss) earnings per share FHRkHEE 2,304,850 2,304,850

180 Silver Grant International Industries Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZE2018F 12 531 HIFF/Z

13. (Loss) earnings Per Share (Continued)

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings
per share from continuing and discontinued operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

13. BRER (ER)(E)

REFERCRIEEEXR

REFERECREBEXBNARR R
BARGEEREANEE(EBR)BNTY
RETIBIEEEMRE

2017
HK$’000
FET
(Loss) earnings: (E518) B A :
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic (loss) A EGRERN(EE)EHNZ
earnings per share ((loss) profit for the year (BB BA(RRAREE A
attributable to owners of the Company) TR (EE)=F) (49,375) 260,201

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share.

From discontinued operation

During the year ended 31 December 2017, basic and
diluted earnings per share for the discontinued operation
is HK0.02 cents per share, based on the profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company from the
discontinued operation of HK$367,000.

No diluted (loss) earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 were presented as the
Company has no potential ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHFE2018F 12 A31 HiFFZ

14.

15.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Dividend

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018, nor has any dividend proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2017: Nil).

14. BB

AEE (2017 F : ) o

REZE2018F 12 A31HIEFEE AL
RSB RMRE FAR R T ERK
3R - RIRFRREHRRENEZZSIR

Investment Properties 15. REYE
2017
HK$’000
FET
Fair Value ARE
At the beginning of the year REH 2,583,770 2,355,619
Exchange adjustments T (123,817) 172,866
Change in fair value recognised RIBRRER AR BEEE)
in profit or loss HER 62,477 55,285
At the end of the year RER 2,522,430 2,583,770
Unrealised gain on property revaluation BERNEBRRMFEEHZ
included in profit or loss KBRS 62,477 55,285

At 31 December 2018, the legal title of the Group’s
investment properties with carrying value of
approximately HK$23,877,000 (2017: HK$24,762,000)
situated in the PRC has not been passed to the Group.

R2018F 12 A31 H » AEBEMRHEH
HIIE B Y2 2 BRE{E X 523,877,000 7
JL(2017 4F : 24,762,000 7T ) H) 5 4
MRBEPEREHE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZ2018F 12431 HILFE

15. Investment Properties (Continued)

15. REWE(E)

The carrying value of the investment properties KEYEZIREERTE :

comprises:

2018 2017
LLEX 0 HK$'000
TET TAT

Held under long-term

PARERA, T A

lease/land use right: HTREFE -
— situated in the PRC — A 32,306 32,869
— situated in Hong Kong — URE B 82,000 78,000
114,306 110,869
Held under medium-term VAR BRFR 4D, - ubfE A
lease/land use right: HREFE -
— situated in the PRC — R 2,408,124 2,472,901
2,522,430 2,583,770
All the Group’s property interests held under operating FiBARSE A2 EMRL T N FH ElAE
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation KERIEERENYEESTUAANLE
purposes are measured using the fair value model BT E - WHERIERIEEWE -

and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z
15. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 have been arrived at
on the basis of valuations carried out on the respective
dates by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”)
and A-Plus Surveyors Limited (“A-Plus”), both are
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
to the Group. Vigers and A-Plus are members of the

Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong.

The fair value was determined by reference to
comparable sales transactions available in the relevant
market or by investment approach, where the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are
assessed and discounted at the market yield expected
by investors for these types of properties. The market
rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.
The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions
of similar commercial properties and adjusted to take
into account the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s
investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties,
the highest and best use of the investment properties is
their current use.

The investment properties measured at fair value
subsequently to initial recognition, are grouped to Level
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value are unobservable and the significance of these
inputs.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both
years.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
15. Investment Properties (Continued) 15. BEYE(E)
Fair value measurements and valuation process AREFERGERRF(Z)
(Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the management of RBERR  AEB EREHBLE
the Group works closely with the independent qualified BREEGEMBEZSIERELRET
professional valuer to establish and determine the EETEBMETEER - GEEZA
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs of the REEEREH  HEH s KAK MR
valuation. Where there is a material change in the fair AEBZEREZR -
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will
be reported to the management of the Group.
Information about fair value measurements using BRABEATTHRERZIEEFTERR
significant unobservable input (Level 3) EBZEF(EI32E)
The following table shows the valuation techniques TRERARKREMERARBEFFEZAT
used in the determination of fair value for investment HEMEARTERAFEZZEE
properties and the key inputs used in the valuation
models.
Valuation Relationship of
Description Fair value at 31 December  techniques Key inputs Range of inputs inputs to fair value
L] RMM2B3 AZARE b TEZER REEE BEEMEZER
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx FET
Office 25,228 25,570 Investment approach (i)  Capitalisation rate 6% 6% Slightly higher the
HAZ RERE BT capitalisation rate,
slightly lower the fair
value
BARIRNS AR
i
(i) Market rent RMB126 — RMB121 — Slightly higher the market
(i 7k RMB136 per ~ RMB131 per rent, slightly higher the
square meter  square meter fair value
per month permonth  TISRENE AnfE
BAGYEK  BABIAX i
AE®1267T— ARE121T—
AR#136T  ARB18IT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

15. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued)

15. REWEE)

DREFERMEERF(E)

BREEAT I RBRZERTEBRA
BZER(EIL)(E)

Valuation Relationship of
Description Fair value at 31 December  techniques Key inputs Range of inputs inputs to fair value
&R M12A31 AZARE B TEZRE EREE EREMMEZBE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr AT
Carpark 156,393 164,466  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB4,444 — RMB4,787 — Slightly higher the
[FE5 HBA A price RMB7,222 per  RMB7,446 per  adjusted price, slightly
BRERSE square meter  square meter  lower the fair value
BYLKARY SYHIRARE SHEENR On
44447 — 4,787 — B
AR¥T207  ARET M6
Commercial A 1,015,982 1,080,012 Investment approach () ~ Capitalisation rate 6% 6% Slightly higher the
BEH BEAR{LA% RERZ capitalisation rate,

(i) Market rent
ik

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

slightly lower the fair

value
BXCHENR DrE
i
RMB73 — RMB71 — Slightly higher the market
RMB142 per RMB138 per rent, slightly lower the
square meter  square meter fair value
per month permonth  WHAENE ArfE
BASYER  BASYIR i
AR®TB3T— ARETIL—
ARM12T  ARB138T
] 728 ] [BR == =]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

15. Investment Properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (Level 3) (Continued)

Valuation
Description Fair value at 31 December  techniques Key inputs
&R M2ABZARE b TEVER
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEn T

15. REWE(E)

DREFERMEERF(E)

BREEAT I RBRZERTEBRA
BZER(EIL)(E)

Relationship of

Range of inputs inputs to fair value
EEEE EERAEZBE
2018 2017

Residential A 1,218,950 1,260,960  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction

FEF SR % price
BRBRH(E
Residential B 82,000 78,000  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction
FEZ HBH % price
BARHE
Commercial B 23,877 24,762 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction
4 ECYiNA price
BEERHE

Annual Report 2018

RMB44,550 —  RMB42,978 —  Slightly higher the
RMB53,595 per  RMB49,908 per  adjusted price rate,
square meter  square meter slightly lower the fair

SYHKARY  STARARE value
M550 — 298t — EREENR ArE
AE¥53505% AR%499087 H(E

HK$22,052 —  HK$24,690 —  Slightly higher the
HK$31,675 per  HK$28,384 per  adjusted price rate,

square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
gLAR BEAR value

20528 — 246908 — EHRENT DAE
31,6758 T 28384157 e

RMB26,254 —  RMB26,254 —  Slightly higher the
RMB27,273 per RMB27,273 per  adjusted price rate,
square meter  square meter slightly lower the fair

SYRRARE  BYHKARE value
%2547 —  2654m— EHEENE AAE
ARM223  ARB2723T  WE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. Y% WERRE

Leasehold Furniture Factory,
land and Leasehold and Office Motor plantand  Construction
buildings  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
HELHREF RENESE BRRRE BAZRE RE IR BERES HRIR At
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
COST OR VALUATION RAEREE
At 1 January 2017 R201751818 283,198 14,686 16,985 17,285 37,742 3,494,487 88,207 3,952,590
Exchange adjustments EiAE 402 514 350 293 1,786 261,804 18,529 283,728
Additions AE - - 9 508 3,536 8,399 186,740 199,192
Disposals = (16,830) = 20) (627) (1,800) (67,807) = (87,084)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAA - - (11,162) (12,185) (0.911) = = (83,258)
Revaluation g 32419 - - - - - - 32419
At 31 December 2017 299,189 15,200 6,162 5,274 31,353 3,696,933 293,476 4,347 587
Exchange adjustments Eigz (799) (359) (244) (202) (1,182 (186,992) (19.934) (209,712)
Additions hE = = = 231 1,959 5717 237,205 245,112
Transfer from constructionin ~ FEE Ti28JE
progress - - - - - 155,470 (155,470) -
Disposals HE - - - (136) (2,015) - - (2,151)
Revaluation Bfy 32,433 = = = = = = 32433
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12531H 330,823 14,844 5918 5,167 30,115 3,671,128 355,277 4,413,269
Comprising: B
At cost fRRAfE - 14,841 5918 5,167 30,115 3,671,128 355,27 4,082,446
At professional valuation — %2018 5 2 2 & f(E
2018 330,823 - - - - - - 330,823
330,823 14,841 5918 5,167 30,115 3,671,128 305,217 4,413,269
DEPRECIATION i
At 1 January 2017 R201751518 5,791 10,029 7528 11,201 23,187 149,936 - 207,672
Exchange adjustments EiSE 100 257 () 159 1,165 20,115 - 21,791
Provided for the year FEER 9,725 2,344 919 1,014 3,532 214,134 - 231,668
Eliminated on disposals L ERRE = = (16) (589) (1,620) = = (2,205)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - = (7.421) (8,374) (5,178) - - (20,979)
Eliminated on revaluation EfEEEE (8.678) - - - - - - (8,678)
At 31 December 2017 Ro017E12831R 6,938 12,630 999 3411 21,086 384,185 = 429,249
Exchange adjustments B @377) (315) 2 (118) (881) 26916) - (28,605)
Provided for the year ERER 10,326 2,402 185 31 3,326 203,722 - 240,232
Eliminated on disposals 2 = = = (130) (1,847) - - (1,077)
Eliminated on revaluation SRR (9,245) = = = = = = (9,245)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318 7,642 14717 1,136 3,484 21,684 560,991 - 629,654
CARRYING VALUES FEfE
At 31 December 2018 R2018512 8318 323,181 124 4782 1,683 8,431 3,090,137 385,211 3,783,615
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12 5318 292,251 2,570 5,163 1,863 10,267 3,312,748 293,476 3,918,338
188 Silver Grant International Industries Limited RERREXERE AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 16. ¥ - BERREE)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
except for construction in progress, are depreciated on
a straight-line over the following years:

RAEZTRINALYE  BEEREZ
HERATRZFNABRETE :

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or over HELHMNET 50 F 5 A

the lease term, FAAFHLA G A%

whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 3 years HEWEEE 34
Furniture and fixtures 10 years EROVSE ] 104F
Office equipment 5 years I /NES 54
Motor vehicles 6 — 10 years YRE 6 — 104
Factory, plant and machinery 10 — 20 years TR - R R ies 10 — 204F

At 31 December 2018, the legal titles of the Group’s
leasehold land and properties and a container
terminal (including construction in progress) with
carrying value of approximately HK$33,771,000
(2017: HK$35,022,000) and HK$191,342,000 (2017:
HK$150,857,000) situated in the PRC have not been
passed to the Group.

R2018F 12 A31H » ANEE R A
Bl WEREEMBBE 2 ERENS
33,771,000 7T (2017 £ : 35,022,000
# 7T ) 191,342,000 7T(2017 £ :
150,857,000 7T ) Z EENARBPEAR
£E -

The carrying value of the leasehold properties HEME ZEMERE
comprises:
2017
HK$°000
FAET
Long-term leasehold properties situated in EREBHNRAEEYME
Hong Kong 281,530 247,880
Properties under medium-term land use right 7 A B8 LA 7 HA £ 3t 45 9
situated in the PRC - SS¥EE0k7/ES 41,651 44,371
323,181 292,251
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z
16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group disposed certain of leasehold properties. The
accumulated fair value change of HK$12,899,000 was
reclassified from asset revaluation reserve to retained
profits.

The fair values of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at 31 December 2018 and 2017 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on the
respective dates by Vigers and A-Plus. The valuations
were arrived at using direct comparison method
by reference to sales evidence as available on the
market. The revaluation surplus on revaluation of the
leasehold land and buildings amounted to approximately
HK$41,678,000 (2017: HK$41,097,000) was credited to
asset revaluation reserve.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The leasehold land and buildings measured at fair value
subsequent to initial recognition are grouped to Level
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value are unobservable and the significance of these
inputs.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both
years.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable input (Level 3)

The following table shows the valuation techniques used
in the determination of fair values for the Group’s major
leasehold land and buildings and the key inputs used in
the valuation models.

16. Y% - BERRE(E)

BRAEATTHERZESAEAR
EZER(E3H)

TRETARARARASEE 2 T EH
B+ BT RAERE AR R
ARFHERAFRERZEES -

Valuation Relationship
Description Fair value techniques Key inputs Range of inputs of inputs to fair value
L] M B TEZEER GEEE EREAAEZEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS000
A7 &%
Office A 33,71 35,022  Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ RMB23,989 —  RMB23,983 —  Slightly lower the adjusted
N LB price RMB24,932 per  RMB24,932 per price rate, slightly
BRER5E square meter  squaremeter  lower the fair value
SYARARY  BYAIRARE GHZENE An
23,989 — 23,9837 — g
AR¥249%27 AR%249327
Office B 261,800 228,300  Comparison approach  Adjusted transaction ~ HK$51,195 —  HK$42,567 —  Slightly higher the
N Sy price HK$58,600 per  HK$51,195 per  adjusted price rate,
ERERFE square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
§YHR51,195 BFAR42567  value
BT — 58,600 AT —51195 MARENR  ARE
B BT i
Residential 23,098 23,085 Comparison approach Adjusted transaction ~ HK$4,724 — HK$4,557 — Slightly higher the
fix L8R price HK$16,547 per  HK$13,483 per  adjusted price rate,
L square feet square feet slightly higher the fair
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 16.

Certain leasehold interest in land cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
leasehold interest in land continues to be accounted for
as property, plant and equipment.

If leasehold properties had not been revalued, they
would have been included at a historical cost basis at
the following amounts:

MENTS % & PSR M

M BERREE)

ETHET W ERERA S ORE
T RBFE D - Rl HEERS

HEEMERTERS  AZFVESA
B s AN EAEDIBRANE

o

HK$’000
FET
cosT R
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 157,074
Disposal HE (8,142)
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 R2017 F X% 2018412 A 31 H 148,932
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZitiITE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 113,841
Provided for the year FRNEHE 9,775
Eliminated on disposal tH 5 B JREE (6,948)
At 31 December 2017 M2017% 12 A31 H 116,668
Provided for the year FNEHE 4,513
As at 31 December 2018 R20184% 12 A31 H 121,181
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2018 M20184 12 A 31 H 27,751
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12 A31 H 32,264
192 Silver Grant International Industries Limited RERBREZEGR AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
17. Land Use Rights 17. LT EARE
HK$’000
TFET
Carrying Value 2%
At 1 January 2017 201741 A1 8 182,465
Exchange adjustments TN 13,630
Amortised for the year T (4,140)
At 31 December 2017 R2017412 A31 H 191,955
Exchange adjustments EH TR (9,277)
Amortised for the year FEEH (4,243)
At 31 December 2018 R 20184F 12 A31 H 178,435

The land use rights of the Group were held under
medium-term lease in the PRC and amortised over the

term of the lease of 50 years.

AEE 2 L fE AR R B AT 5
HERBWIABE RS0 F#H -

18. Goodwill 18. A&
HK$’000
FET
COST R
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 A1H 72,987
Disposal of Straight View HE#ES (33,525)
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 MR 2017 2018412 A 31 H 39,462
IMPAIRMENT RWE
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 A1H (26,524)
Eliminated on disposal of Straight View e S 26,524
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 M2017 % 20185 12 A31 H —
CARRYING VALUE AR
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 R 2017 % 2018412 A 31 H 39,462
Annual Report 2018 — T \FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &&

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

18. Goodwill (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, amount represents
goodwill allocated to CGU for production and trading of
petrochemical products.

As at 31 December 2018, the recoverable amount of
the CGU has been determined based on a value in use
calculation by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited (2017: Pan-China Appraisal
Co., Ltd.) That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period based on the estimated
production capacity of the CGU with a discount rate of
11.94% (2017: 10.26%). Cash flows after the five years
period are extrapolated at 3% (2017: zero) growth rate.
Another key assumption for the value in use calculation
is the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which
is determined based on the unit’s past performance
and management’'s expectations for the market
development.

If the budgeted revenue of the CGU decreased
by 3% and other variables remain constant, the
recoverable amount of the CGU will be decreased by
HK$249,853,000.

There is no impairment required as at the end of
the reporting period by reference to the value in use
calculation as abovementioned.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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Z A Y B R R R BT TG RE
ABARAR(2017 F « RIGEEZEFT
HERARERNFEREETEERT -
ERAFERASEEREIZ - ARG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
19. Interests in Associates 19. BEQARRER
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Cost of investments in associates — unlisted Ei& QA RIHR AR ANE— FELT 843,118 826,376
Share of post acquisition profits and other R ER1E A7 M A2 mE
comprehensive income, net of dividends Wz - MBREWARE
received 491,995 508,275
1,335,113 1,334,651
Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of REB 7B &N a BB E Y RM s
the reporting period are set out in Note 43(b). 43(b) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z
19. Interests in Associates (Continued)

19.

Summarised financial information of material

associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of

the Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised

financial information below represents amounts shown

in the associate’s financial statements prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using

the equity method in these consolidated financial

B 2 AR ()

BENRAMBENBE

AEBERBERRZUBEBESR
ST c LT ZMBEERBERRBET
REERR M BRR I SBEREE
B EHREER AT RS -

PIAZSHZE AR RRASREETA
RAMBE®ERA -

statements.
Cinda Jianrun Property
Company Limited
(“Cinda Jianrun”)
Zhong Hai You Qi EERBMERRAR
P RREMNALL (K530
2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Current assets MEEE 5,044,852 4,279,565 1,061,173 1,198,212
Non-current assets FREEE 7,214,144 7,945,472 30 33
Current liabilities mEAE (5,080,249)  (4,388,777) (768,116) (843,002)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (3,399,392) (4,114,810) - —
Revenue WA 21,912,639 19,003,632 - —
Profit (loss) for the year FEREM(EE) 201,107 762,022 (20,542) 198,816
Other comprehensive (expense) FREAM2E (S H)
income for the year g (193,926) 226,604 (16,734) 1,688
Total comprehensive income  ERZ A
(expense) for the year Rk 7,181 988,626 (37,276) 200,504
Dividend received from FRUEE = A
associates during the year s - = - =
] 738 | (R 2 2 =

Silver Grant International Industries Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZE2018F 12 531 HIFF/Z

19. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material
associates (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial

19.

B

BEQ

\»

AR (E)

AMBENREE)

A TS B R B RN AR A B A R R
B

N R s AR EE A AT R ¢

statements:
Zhong Hai You Qi Cinda Jianrun Total
mERENAL BEER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn AT TEn AT AT
Net assets FEAE 3,779,355 3,721,450 293,087 356,243 4,072,442 4,076,693
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A& B Z BB ER A5 33.00% 33.00% 30.00% 30.00% N/A N/A
interest (Note) (Note) THEA TER
(Hit) (Hit)
Carrying amount of the Group's AEEEGRRE
interest 1,247,187 1,228,078 87,926 106,573 1,385,113 1,334,651

Note: Zhong Hai You Qi is an associate of Tai Zhou Dong
Thai Petrochemical Company Limited (“TZ Dong Thai”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, TZ Dong Thai and
other shareholders of Zhong Hai You Qi made additional
capital injection, RMB41,492,000 (equivalent to
HK$50,724,000), (2017: RMB201,493,000 (equivalent to
HK$236,823,000)) to Zhong Hai You Qi on proportion of
their shareholdings in Zhong Hai You Qi. The additional
capital injected by TZ Dong Thai was RMB13,692,000
equivalent to approximately HK$16,742,000 (2017:
RMB66,493,000 equivalent to approximately
HK$77,606,000). There is no change in proportion of
shareholding after this capital injection.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHFE2018F 12 A31 HiFFZ
20. Amount Due from an Associate

21.

The amounts as at 31 December 2018 are unsecured,
non-trade nature, bearing interest of 4% per annum and
will be matured in December 2019.

Details of impairment assessment of amount due from
an associate for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in Note 46.

The amounts as at 31 December 2017 were unsecured,
non-trade nature, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

Structured Finance Securities

The structured finance securities represent a debt
security with interest payments based on the return
from United States Treasury Bond and distribution from
preference shares in a private company which invests
in a portfolio of asset-backed securities. Expected
maturity date of the debt security is Year 2021. The
structured finance securities contain an embedded early
redemption option and the return which is determined
by reference to the distribution from the private
company which is dependent on the annual default
rate of its underlying asset-backed securities and the
return from United States Treasury Bond. The Group
designated the entire structured finance securities as
financial assets at FVTPL at initial recognition. Upon the
application of HKFRS 9, the investment is mandatorily
measured at fair value through profit and loss (Note 23).

The fair value of the structured finance securities is
determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the valuation provided by the counterparty
financial institution at the end of the reporting period.
This fair value is determined by reference to the value of
a comparable new issue of the similar structured finance
securities under the market situation as at 31 December
2017.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

22. Available-for-sale Investments

22, TMHHBERE

Available-for-sale investments comprise: OHEERERE
2017
HK$’000
FET
Unlisted investments: ELEREKRE :
Unlisted equity securities, IELETIRAZES
at cost (Note a) B A (Bita) 274,552
Club debentures, at cost BATES - BRAARE 5,613
Unlisted fund, at fair value ELEMESEAAER
(Note b) (Hiztb) 628,802
908,967
Less: Impairment loss recognised Ji - BERBEEBE (2,070)
Total &5t 906,897
Presented as non-current assets E2FRIEREEE 300,655
Presented as current assets EINREEE 606,242
Total &5t 906,897
Notes: Biat -
(@)  Unlisted equity investments represent investments in (@) FEMBRAZBLFTDERERBLAE

unlisted equity securities issued by private entities. The
business of these companies include, but not limited
to power and financial services. They are measured at
cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group entered into a sales and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to dispose the unlisted
equity securities of RMB19,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$21,912,000) at the consideration of RMB19,000,000
(equivalent to HK$21,912,000). No gain or loss on
disposal was recognised in the profit or loss.

Annual Report 2018

BT ZIELMBRAES - 2S5 A0
ZEBOEBETBERRE N RS RRG
1% - ARG EE AR ESR
BAK AARBZERREERAR
BEEEA SIS AZERET
RIRERRUR AR REFTE - B
HE2017F12A31IBFE R A&
BE—(IBIE=FUAKFSEAR
19,000,000 7t (48 & # 21,912,000
BI)LEELELMRAEFZARE
19,000,000 7t (48 & 721,912,000 %
T0) o EHE 2 WSk B IR RN B
KA o

—T—\FEH



200

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z

22. Available-for-sale Investments (Continued)

Available-for-sale investments comprise:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 24 November 2017, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into a trust agreement with the National Trust
Ltd. (“National Trust”). National Trust is a non-banking
financial institution regulated by the China Banking
Regulatory Commission and is an independent third party
to the Group. Pursuant to the trust agreement, the Group
invested RMB500 million in a portfolio of investment
managed and maintained by the National Trust (“Trust
Scheme”). The purpose of the Trust Scheme is to invest
in mergers, acquisitions and reorganisations funds
through certain limited liability partnerships formed under
the Trust Scheme specifically for investing in mergers,
acquisitions and reorganisations funds.

Pursuant to the term of the Trust Scheme shall last for
an initial term of one year and shall be renewable for
another year or terminated at the option of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
exercised the option to renew the investment for one
more year.

The fund was measured at fair value subsequent to initial
recognition and grouped to level 3 based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value were unobservable
and the significance of these inputs.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZE2018F 12 531 HIFF/Z
23. Financial assets at fair value through profit or 23. UAAREEEHEEHTAEEN
loss TREE
Financial assets measured at FVTPL: SRHBEEFENUARBEEREESH
T AIEL
HK$°000
FET
Listed securities held for trading — HIEEBM LEHHES —
equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LR AES 3,187
Debt security BIEES 6,781
Unlisted equity securities FE £ IR AN 2 200,818
Unlisted funds FEMES 592,229
Others HAith 2,780
805,795
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEHRE MO
Non-current assets EREEE 228,810
Current assets mENEE 576,985
805,795
24. Loan Receivables 24. EWER
2017
HK$’000
FET
Non-current : IEFRE -
Fixed-rate loan interest receivables EBEWER
(Notes a & c) (KiiFalXc) 224,491 223,044
Floating-rate loan receivables (Note b) FERWER(HEDb) 53,024 —
277,515 223,044
Current: E
Fixed-rate loan receivables (Note c) EBEWER(HiEc) 653,888 —

931,403 223,044
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

24. Loan Receivables (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2018, an amount of
RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to HK$228,310,000) loan
receivable outstanding from an independent third party
is unsecured, carries fixed rate at 12% per annum and
repayable in Year 2020.

As at 31 December 2017, an amount of RMB50,000,000
(equivalent to HK$60,024,000) loan receivable
outstanding from an independent third party is
unsecured, carries fixed rate at 4.75% per annum and
repayable in Year 2020.

As at 31 December 2018, an amount of RMB47,500,000
(equivalent to HK$54,224,000) loan receivable
outstanding from an independent third party is
unsecured, carries floating interest rate by reference
to People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) interest rate and
repayable in Year 2020.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, an amount of
US$20,900,000 (equivalent to HK$163,020,000) is
unsecured, guaranteed by Taizhou Xin Bin Jiang
Development Limited (“TZ Xin Bin Jiang”), a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group,
carries fixed interest rate at 4.75% per annum and
repayable in Year 2019.

As at 31 December 2018, the remaining amounts
outstanding from three independent third parties are
unsecured, carry fixed interest rate at 1% per month,
and repayable in Year 2019. The amounts were fully
settled subsequent to the reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables

and respective interest receivables for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in Note 46.

The Group assessed the financial strength and

repayment ability for the borrowers, in the opinion of the

directors of the Company, the risk of non-recoverability

of the amount is minimum, and no impairment was

considered necessary as at 31 December 2017.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EZE2018F 12 531 HIFF/Z
25. Inventories 25. 78
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Consumables JEAEm 9,820 10,287
Raw materials R ¥ 83,520 92,138
93,340 102,425
26. Held-for-trading Investments 26. HEEERE
2017
HK$’000
FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LR AES
at fair value BRAREE 100,526
Fair value of listed held-for-trading investments were BEEBEREZ AN ERRGREME 2
based on quoted market bid price in the active market. BEAFREETE -
Annual Report 2018 \FEFH,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z

27. Trade Receivables

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days to its
trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates:

27. EWEER

AEBGBTEHEFI0EC0REM
/H\Eo

THRZERR BEREZ RURKER
2 WA RER B B 2 BRI &
HBERRZ KRR :

2017
HK$°000
FET

0 to 30 days 0= 30H

68,058 70,350

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables, HK$62,045,000 (2017: HK$62,600,000)
was due from the Group’s associate, i.e. Zhong Hai You
Qi.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, no trade receivable
of the Group are past due but not impaired. The
Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired are those debtors with satisfactory credit
quality under the management’s assessment and with
good past repayment records.

As at 31 December 2018, no allowance for bad and
doubtful debt was made to the trade receivables.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
Note 46.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EZE2018F 12 531 HIFF/Z

28. Deposits, Prepayments and Other
Receivables

28. % ANRKEMERR

2017

HK$’000

FAET

Value-added tax recoverable (Note) Ak el 2 BB R (e 217,965 223,479
Loan interest receivables JE U E XA B 31,668 15,023
Others HAit 94,313 72,862

343,946 311,364

Note: Amount being the value-added tax recoverable from
the purchase of property, plant and equipment and raw
materials by a subsidiary, TZ United East. The amount
will be subsequently utilised to offset the value added tax
generated from sales of goods in the future.

The ECL of the Group’s loan interest receivables are
assessed on the same basis of their respective loan
receivables, which is detailed in Note 24. The ECL of
loan and interest receivables as at 1 January 2018 (upon
the application of HKFRS 9) and 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$1,200,000 and HK$5,019,000
respectively.

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables
and loan interest receivables for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in Note 46.
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29. Pledged Bank Deposits, Restricted Bank

Balance, Structured Bank Deposits and Bank
Balances and Cash

The Group’s pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest
rate with effective interest at an average of 1.85% (2017:
0.35%) per annum and an original maturity of one
year or less. As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank
deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure
bank loans (2017: settlements for certain of Group’s
purchase of raw materials) to the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s restricted bank
balance represents the bank balance for the purpose of
subscribing an equity investment. The bank account is
jointly controlled by the Company and the counterparty
of the investment that a mutual consent has to be
obtained from the Company and the counteparty for
the withdrawal of fund from the bank account. The
restricted bank balance carries prevailing market deposit
rate with effective interest of 0.3% per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise cash
and short-term bank deposits carrying prevailing market
deposit rates with effective interest at an average
of 0.16% (2017: 0.07%) per annum and an original
maturity of three months or less. Included in the Group’s
bank balances and cash at 31 December 2018 was an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$431,770,000
(2017: HK$270,881,000) which was denominated in
RMB and is not freely convertible into other currencies.

As at 31 December 2017, the structured bank deposits
were interest rate-linked principal protected deposits
entered with banks in the PRC which were repayable
on demand. The counterparty banks guaranteed 100%
of the invested capital and the returns of which were
determined by reference to the fluctuation of Interbank
Offered Rate of PRC and the effective interest rate of
these deposits ranged from 1.0% to 1.8% per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank
deposits, restricted bank balance and bank balances for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note
46.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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29. HPRTER  EEFOLHK &

BUERTERRBITEHRERS

RNEE 2 EIRRITIFH AT 1.85% &
2 E EF A EF B (2017 F 1 0.35%)
REEEEAAS—FIHARN - KR2018
F£12 431 8 - HRBRTFERAE A UK
FIRITER(Q017F - AEEBSMEE
HTFEMBLZER) o

702018 F£12 A31 H @ "EBZEE
PO &R BIRIT A R T U R BRI A9
IRITERP LAEITIRIEIRE - IRITERP
NAEINIEE R E ;5 HEEES - BAERR
AMELSESERRES s tRITERP
FRIES - BEEP O&RRRITHIS
ERAEFE - BEREFEFNELF0.3% °

AEBZRITEBEESBERERE LKA
HIHBEA=EAAA - UIRITER
I TIGFREFZE0.16% (2017 £ -
0.07%) st EMEHIRITHER - A& H
MR2018F 12 A1 H 2R IT &% K IR
% B & A #431,770,0005 7T(2017
% : 270,881,000 L) EAARKE R
BB WARTREARLB AR

N2017F 128310 B HERITHE
REFRER G E 7 (RAF B EAL
PR BEZRITEI M A B ERER - ¥
T ERITIRFBE 100% 2 & E A K 6] 572
AR BRI TR ZE IR F R IR Z F B
BREMEH1.0%E1.8% °

HZE2018F12831HIEFEE B
AR R I T 17 7k S SR 1T A 8 2 S B AT 5
AR

FERAREEERA
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31.

B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
30. Pledge of Assets 30. EEEA
As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged certain MR2018F12A31H K &£ B B
investment properties, leasehold land and buildings, HEHRAARBFEEHKRKEAETMEESD A
land use rights and factory, plant and machinery %) /2,360,959,00078 75 (2017 4 -
with an aggregate carrying value at the end of the 2,424,730,0007% J© ) * 343,800,000
reporting period of approximately HK$2,360,959,000 & J0(2017 4 : 306,300,000 JT ) °
(2017: HK$2,424,730,000), HK$343,800,000 122,532,000 Jt(2017 4 : 131,791,000
(2017: HK$306,300,000), HK$122,532,000 (2017: 7 T ) N&734,248,0007% JL(2017 £ ¢
HK$131,791,000) and HK$734,248,000 (2017: 737,486,000 ) 2 & THREWE -
HK$737,486,000) respectively to secure general HELTHRIEF  THEAERTR
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 33), other e KSR E AR EBER T — K
loans (Note 33) and other payables to an independent MERITRE MR (KTEE33) » EfbE
third party (Note 36). F(MIFESI) R — R BULE = I EAth
FER R (PIFES6) °
As at 31 December 2018, the pledged bank deposit of R2018F 12 A31 H * #)322,432,000
HK$322,432,000 (2017: Nil) to secure bank borrowings (20174 : )BT 2 MWK TR A
advanced to the Group (Note 33). AERASEE 2 B RITEZ(HIESS) °
As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged MR2017FE12831H R&E B #H A&
HK$844,000 bank deposits to secure settlements for 844,000 78 7T Z SR 1T 17 sR I 1 A AR AN
certain of the Group’s purchase of raw materials. SEBAETEMEZER -
Share Capital 31. X
Number Nominal
of shares value
RGO E FHE
In thousand HK$’000
FHE FET
Issued and fully paid EZTREMERE
At 1 January 2017 and R2017%F1 A1 HK2017F X
31 December 2017 and 2018 2018412 A 31 H 2,304,850 3,626,781
Annual Report 2018 — T \FFR
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B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
32. Reserves 32. f#fE
Attributable
to owners
of the Non-
Company controlling
b/ interests Total
BB AR FERER ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAT FAET
Asset revaluation reserve EEEMGRE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 230,159 — 230,159
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties BHEEME KR 41,097 - 41,097
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of EEMEENEELY
leasehold properties EERIEEE (6,216) = (6,216)
Disposal of leasehold properties HERENE (12,899) - (12,899)
At 31 December 2017 201712 A31H 253,141 - 253,141
Gain on revaluation of leasehold properties ERREEYENE 41,678 = 41,678
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of BEEENFEEL
leasehold properties EEFREEE (5,879) = (5,879)
At 31 December 2018 R2018% 12831 B 288,940 - 288,940
Translation reserve ELRE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 79,193 (8,208) 70,985
Exchange difference arising on translation of BIEBRBELEVERESR
foreign operations 452,000 17,620 469,620
Reclassification adjustments relating to foreign ~ BARAEEHENELE Y
operation disposed of during the year B (1,776) - (1,776)
At 31 December 2017 R2017412 A31 A 529,417 9,412 538,829
Exchange difference arising on translation of BINEB B EE ZEN
foreign operations =5 (350,520 (8,204) (358,724)
At 31 December 2018 #2018% 12 431 B 178,897 1,208 180,105

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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33.

Borrowings

33. &8

2017
HK$’000
FET
Bank loans — secured and unguaranteed RITER — BEAREER 1,650,913 1,594,238
Bank loans — secured and guaranteed RITEHR — BERARBER 399,543 420,168
Other loan — secured HtmER — 5HE#H 649,574 447,081
Other loans — unsecured HaEH — EEH 223,760 769,633
2,923,790 3,231,120
Carrying amounts repayable: JEEEZIRMER
Within one year —FE 7R 1,273,536 2,039,523
More than one year, but not exceeding —F A EE
two years TEBiE_F 493,833 359,664
More than two years, but not more than —FLA B
five years TNEBERF 272,631 126,050
Over five years BiEAF 433,790 504,201
2,473,790 3,029,438
Add: Carrying amounts of bank loans M BEREIER
containing a repayment on demand IEX R E R R TE 2 T8
clause (shown under current liabilities) TEERZIBITERZ
with scheduled repayment set out in the BREM$HE
loan agreements due: FIRTBEE) :
— within one year — —%FZR 450,000 201,682
Less: Amounts due within one year shown JB - R—F 2 NEIERIL S A
under current liabilities mEBE 25 (1,723,536) (2,241,205)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 5 &3ERBAGEZ &5 1,200,254 989,915
Annual Report 2018 T— N\FFHR
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33. Borrowings (Continued)

Bank borrowings are secured by certain investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings, land use rights
and factory, plant and machinery for both years. Details
are disclosed in Note 30.

As at 31 December 2018, bank loans of
HK$450,000,000 (2017: HK$200,000,000) are
denominated in HKD, which is not denominated in the
functional currency of the Group. The bank loans carry
floating rates at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) plus 2% to 2.5% (2017: HIBOR plus 2.5%),
i.e. effective interest rate of 3.50% (2017: 3.38%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2018, bank loans of HK$65,068,000
(2017: Nil) is denominated in RMB, functional currency
of the relevant group entity and carry floating interest
rate of 68 basis point (2017: Nil) of Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank (“SHPB”) one-year interest rate or
effective interest rate of 5.03% (2017: Nil) per annum.
The loan is secured by a bank deposit of the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, bank loans of
HK$228,311,000 (2017: HK$240,096,000) are
denominated in RMB, functional currency of the relevant
group entity and carry floating interest rate at 130%
(2017: 130%) of People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) one-
year interest rate or effective interest rate of 5.655%
(2017: 5.655%) per annum.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

33.

BE(#E)

MEFENRITEERETREDE A
EXRET  LHERERTH  BF
R R R o FFBEFIRHTES0 -

72018412 A31 B » $R1TE 450,000,000
7 J0(2017 4 : 200,000,000/ 7T ) J5
B TLBEBEA - MBI IERER 2T
BEEHE o ZIRITTEZLUZENFRIRES
BTREFE([BBRITRERE )M
2% E 2.5% (2017 F : RITREIZEHFE N
2.5%) - BIEBRFHEA3.50% (2017
& :3.38%) °

R2018F 12 A 31 R - $R1TE 765,068,000
BIL(20174F « ) WA AR BB AL
WA RAAERAR ZEEEE RIAZ
A RE EBERERRIT( LEE
RERRIT]) —FEHME L)Z68ER
(20174 « | )HNERFH X 55.08%
(20174 : |)FHE - ZIERZBHIRIT
TFRIEEIR -

2018412 A31 B - $R17EK228311,000
7 70(2017 4F : 240,096,000 7T ) J5
MAREBENT ZHBEE AR ZY
BEEBRLOZEN R EEZPE AR
([PREIARRIT]) —FHFE L)Z30%
(20174 © £ 7#30%) sk B B F F| &
5.655% 8. (2017 4 : 5.655%) °
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EZ 20184 12 H31 HIFF/Z
33. Borrowings (Continued) 33. BE(#E)
As at 31 December 2018, bank loans of R20185F12 A31 H » $R1T7E7X228311,000

HK$228,311,000 (2017: HK$240,096,000) are
denominated in RMB, functional currency of the relevant
group entity and carries floating interest rate of 148
basis point (2017: ranging from 50 basis point to 81.3
basis point) plus SHPB one-year loan rate or effective
interest rate of 5.83% (2017: 5.163%) per annum.
These loans are guaranteed by TZ Xin Bin Jiang.

As at 31 December 2018, bank loan of HK$171,233,000
(2017: HK$180,072,000) are denominated in RMB,
functional currency of the relevant group entity and
carries floating interest rate at 91 basis point (2017:
48.5 basis point) plus loan prime rate or effective
interest rate at 5.22% (2017: 4.785%) per annum. This
loan is guaranteed by a subsidiary of a state-owned
enterprise.

The remaining bank loans of the Group are denominated
in RMB, functional currency of the relevant group
entities and carry floating interest rate ranging from
110% to 135% (2017: 110% to 135%) of PBOC over
five-year interest rate or effective interest rate of 5.635%
t0 6.615% (2017: 5.390% to 6.615%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, other loan of
HK$649,574,000 (2017: HK$447,081,000) payable
to a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder was
denominated in RMB, functional currency of the relevant
group entity, which is secured by certain factory, plant
and machineries and carries floating interest rate at
110% (2017: 110%) of PBOC three-year interest rate
or effective interest rate of 5.225% (2017: 5.225%) per
annum.

Annual Report 2018

77T(2017 £ : 240,096,000) T3 A A R
RETSHEEE QR 2R
MFEARR LG EREREIT—F
HR & FX Al =148 & 25(2017 4F © 50
BEEEgI3EHER)IERFIER
5.83% (2017 F : 5.163%) #Z & =
RMNFTETER -

2018412 A31 B » $R1TE K 171,233,000
770(2017 & : 180,072,000) Jh A AR
M ABEMYERBERARZEE
RELOZFB A R K EERNE LJF91E
BE(20174F @ £ 248552 ) sk BB F
FIE5.22% (2017 4F : 4.785%) 51 & °
ZEREA—RBEALEZWBARE
R o

AEENEKBITERARBEEARQR]
IR AREAREN - WLOFEF
EIEARBITAFHZFE E)F10%
2 35% @A (2017F + E1Z10% £ 35%)
S EBRFF K& H 5.635% £ 6.615%
(2017 4F : 5.390% £ 6.615% )& 8. °

2018512 H31 B + E M E5K649,574,000
7 70(2017 £ : 447,081,000) % f+f F —
MEERRNMNBRARERAARE A
7 WERHABSREARZIIEER I
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33. Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, other loans of
HK$223,760,000 (2017: HK$769,663,000) payable
to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries were
denominated in RMB, functional currency of the relevant
group entities, which are unsecured, bear fixed interest
ranged from 4.75% to 7.50% (2017: 5.35% to 7.50%)
per annum and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2017, bank loan of HK$1,682,000
was denominated in HKD, functional currency of the
relevant group entity, and carry a floating rate of prime
rate minus 2.7% per annum or effective interest rate of
2.3% per annum.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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BE#E)

MR20185F12 431 B » EME k223,760,000
7E7(2017 F : 769,663,000 7% 7T ) S 1+
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% & F E M RA75% % 7.50% (2017
F:535%E7.5%)EMAFERREE
R o

R20179F12 A31 H » $R1TE 51,682,000
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HE2018F 12 A31 HIFE/E
34. Deferred Taxation 34, ELEFIE

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and

liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the

UTARARFEFERNEFENTECH
RIEERIAE E LR R RERAHRE R

current and prior years: UEFEERE
Fair Value
change of
financial
assets at
FVTPL
WAREHE
Accelerated  Revaluation BEE#HHA
tax of Tax  BRENEE
depreciation properties losses EEZANE Total
MERBHE NEER HEES 28 ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT T FAT AT
At 1 January 2017 1201751818 (55) (216,165) 1,808 - (214,412)
Charge to profit or loss for the  RAFEBZZMG
year (Note 11) (it 11) - (12,755) - - (12,755)
Charge to other comprehensive  RAFEE M2 B 1k
expense for the year - (5,216) - - (5,216)
A 31 December 2017 #2017 12831 B (55) (234,136) 1,808 - (232,389)
Adoption of HKFRS 9 KRB REENF R - - - (42,092) (42,002)
At 1 January 2018 120181 A 1R (59) (234,136) 1,808 (42,092) (274,475)
Charge to profit or loss for the  RAFEBHEZMG
year (Note 11) (it 11) - (14,841) - (14,841)
Charge to other comprehensive WA EE M2 B 10k
expense for the year - (5,879) - (5,879)
Settlement upon disposal of REEURR B ABENE
financial assets at FVTPL HEEVEE - - - 42,092 42,092
A 31 December 2018 #o018% 12831 B (55) (254,856) 1,808 - (253,103)
Annual Report 2018 - NEF
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34.

35.

Deferred Taxation (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$1,286,305,000
(2017: HK$1,021,645,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$10,957,000 (2017:
HK$10,957,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$1,275,348,000 (2017: HK$1,010,688,000) due to
unpredictability of future profit streams and such tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared to overseas investors in respect of
profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits of
the PRC subsidiaries, amounting to HK$2,328,726,000
(2017: HK$2,136,810,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Trade and Bills Payables
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills

payables presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period:

34.

35.

BRI

¥R EAR - ANEE A A HR AR 5K F
/2R B) FB 7 75 B5 18 49 1,286,305,000 7
75 (2017 4 : 1,021,645,0005 JT ) °
% % E5 18 % 410,957,000 J0(2017
F 110,957,000 7T ) B MR IR E T I8
BE o BRI R/ 0] TER M R B
T E 1R A AE EE (R HAh A E 45 e - At
A0 4 5t H #41,275,348,000 7% 7L (2017
4 :1,010,688,0007% 7T ) ¥ R L (A iE
ERIBEE ©

RIEEREHIAT - 2008561 H1H
Fth - PEMEBA RS aA ok e
9M;<£%2Hx SRBUWTEIR - ARAE

BESIE R R A Y AR KRR A R
E@ﬁvxgﬁq%ﬁa’aﬁﬁaﬁﬂqTQ%@ s
It R B B A 7] /9 2,328,726,000 75
JL(2017 4F : 2,136,810,000/8 7T ) R &1
M2 B o= 2 i 2 A MR IER IEI AR ET A
IREITEHRENA -

ENERERREE

MRIZEZAREEZ BNEANE
TJ%E’\\\% R IR Z BRI AT

2017
HK$°000
FET

0 to 30 days

02 30H

11,955 7,886
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36.

Accrued Charges, Rental Deposits and Other
Payables

At 31 December 2018, the balance includes an amount
of HK$43,037,000 (2017: HK$45,259,000) payable to
an independent third party in relation to purchase of
land use right in the PRC. The amount is secured by
certain investment properties of HK$66,438,000 (2017:
HK$69,388,000), bears fixed interest at 4.68% per
annum for both years and is repayable on demand. As
at 31 December 2018, the relevant interest payable is
HK$44,410,000 (2017: HK$46,702,000).

At 31 December 2018, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$12,232,000 (2017:
HK$42,890,000) interest payables to five (2017:
five) non-controlling shareholders of one (2017: two)
subsidiary. These non-controlling shareholders are
able to exercise significant influence over respective
subsidiary.

At 31 December 2018, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$37,500,000 (2017:
HK$37,500,000) payable to a non-controlling
shareholder of the Company. The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2018, the balance includes an
aggregated amount of HK$277,322,000 (2017:
HK$226,543,000) payable to independent third parties
in relation to construction costs payable for property,
plant and equipment in the PRC. The amounts are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable
within one year from the end of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2017, the balance included an amount
of HK$391,076,000 payable to an entity controlled by a
director of the Company. The amount was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The
amount was fully settled during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Annual Report 2018
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MR2018FE 12 831 Bz &2 BHEm N
RS T E R RN YRS
= F KB - £ % A 43,037,000 7% 7T
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37. Disposal of Subsidiaries

As referred to Note 6, the Group discontinued the
Property Management Operation at the time of disposal
of Straight View and its subsidiary. The consolidated net

37. HEKNEAF

REHFES AEERNLERS REM
BRRMRESKIEEMEEERS - £
RREMBARNEERRZEEFE

assets of Straight View and its subsidiary at the date of EELImT
disposal were as follows:
HK$’000
FHET
Consideration received: 2 WEA(E :
Cash received BUERE 31,700
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KEERFIECZEEREBD M :
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment YIE - BB R 12,279
Goodwill Bl 7,001
Inventories EE 768
Trade and other receivables JFEE U5 B 3k e L i R LR 74,047
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 111,650
Trade and other payables PR AT B R R L A B T 3K (158,893)
Tax payable RS (9,263)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 37,489
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HEHRB A TEE :
Consideration received BUERAE 31,700
Net assets disposed of HEFEE (37,489
Non-controlling interests FEVE 2,900
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the HRAEIEBZ B RAGFEER
net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from KEZKIB AT
equity to profit or loss on loss of control of the THIERR RAER ER
subsidiaries 1,776
Loss on disposal HEZEE (1,113)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEWFERERE
Cash consideration ReRE 31,700
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of R BB ZIRITEB KRS (111,550)
(79,850)

The impact of Straight View and its subsidiary on the AT
Group’s results and cash flows in the prior period was ¥ERBRERLZ

disclosed in Note 6.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
38. Operating Lease Arrangements 38. EEMHANLH
As lessor DHBAFS
Property rental income earned by the Group during AEBRFEANBEDRMNYERS
the year was approximately HK$105,624,000 (2017: W A #9 A 105,624,000 7 JT (2017 4F -
HK$100,439,000). The properties held have committed 100,439,000/ 87C) » FHEZMEEE
tenants for lease terms ranged from 1 year to 19 years BEAMEER  HHGEEHRI1IFEFE19F
(2017: 1 year to 20 years). (20175 1R 205 )TE o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RAHERR  AEBHEMBREIVAER
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum UG EY R 7t oK SR R R FE &
lease payments:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Within one year —FARE® 84,243 76,924
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EFERTF
(BREERMFEEAN) 88,020 72,334
After five years FHFEAIE 32,903 22,255

205,166 171,513

Annual Report 2018
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39. Capital Commitments

39. EAREIE

2017
HK$’000
FEIT
Capital commitments in respect of property, FARBAYE - BEKLEREZ
plant and equipment: B AREIE
— contracted for but not provided in the — BREEIARGETB
consolidated financial statements kR 110,192 69,624
Capital commitments in respect of unlisted BRI LTRAZS 2
equity securities: B ARAEE
— contracted for but not provided in the — BREETARNGETB
consolidated financial statements | R
(Notes a & b) (Kizta%b) 171,233 249,700
Notes: Hiat
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group (@ M & Z=2015F12A318 It & E

entered into a shareholders’ agreement with several
parties to incorporate a joint venture, namely Zhongxin
Zhangbei Solar Energy Thermal Power Generation Co.,
Ltd. (“Solar Energy Thermal Power”) to invest in a solar
energy project. Total capital of Solar Energy Thermal
Power would be RMB1,000,000,000 and the Group
has committed to inject RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$171,233,000) (2017: RMB150,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$180,072,000)) represents 15% equity interest of
Solar Energy Thermal Power. As at 31 December 2018
and 2017, the Group has not yet paid its committed
amount. The committed amount will be paid upon the
request of the investee.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

39. Capital Commitments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
entered into a capital injection agreement with Beijing
TeraSolar Photothermal Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing TeraSolar”), which is principally engaged in
construction, management and technical consultancy of
concentrated solar power projects, pursuant to which,
the Group agreed to subscribe 8% of the enlarged share
capital of Beijing TeraSolar for a total consideration of
RMB116,000,000 (equivalent to HK$132,420,000) (2017:
RMB116,000,000 (equivalent to HK$139,256,000)). As
at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has paid
HK$69,628,000 and the Group is entitled to 4% of
benefits of Beijing TeraSolar.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group received an offer letter from Beijing TeraSolar
to purchase back the Group’s 4% interest in it for
RMB58,000,000 by the end of Year 2019.

On 28 November 2018, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, namely TZ United East, entered
into a merger agreement (the “Merger Agreement”) with
Zhong Hai You Qi and China Offshore Bitumen (Taizhou)
Co., Ltd. (“COBT"), pursuant to which, Zhong Hai You Qi
shall absorb and merge with TZ United East and COBT
(the “Proposed Merger”). Prior to the completion of the
Proposed Merger and as at 31 December 2018, Zhong
Hai You Qi is an associate of the Group through its
holding of 33% equity interest in Zhong Hai You Qi under
TZ Dong Thai, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group. Besides, Zhong Hai You Qi and COBT are
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of CNOOC Refinery Co.,
Ltd. (“CRCL"), a state-owned enterprise.

Upon completion of the Proposed Merger, TZ United
East and COBT will be dissolved and deregistered under
applicable laws, regulations and rules. Zhong Hai You Qi
will be the surviving entity (the “Merged Enterprise”). The
Group will own 51% of the equity interest in the Merged
Enterprise through TZ Dong Thai. The management
of the Group is of the view that the relevant activities
of the Merged Enterprise require the unanimous
consent of the Group and CRCL through shareholder’s
meeting and board of directors meeting of the Merged
Enterprise, hence the Group’s interest in Zhong Hai You
Qi is considered as interest in a joint venture after the
completion of the Proposed Merger.

The completion of the Proposed Merger is subject to
certain conditions, including but not limited to obtaining
approvals required under applicable laws, regulations
and rules (including the Listing Rules), which are set
out in the Merger Agreement. As at the date of these
consolidated financial statements, the Proposed Merger
has not yet been completed.
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40. Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group and are held in funds under the control of
trustees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to
make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$4,252,000
(2017: HK$2,996,000) represents contributions to
these schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017,
no contributions due in respect of the reporting period
had not been paid over to the scheme.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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EZ2018F 12431 HILFE
41. Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties:

41. BEHAERS

R ARERBYHETTLRS

2017

HK$’000

FET

Sub-contracting income from an associate RE—KEE QAR I TERA 385,944 715,158

Sales of petrochemical products to an AHEIEMRBESE T KB

associate NG| 20,178 80,957

Interest income from an associate — KBt E RN R R F B 23,641 65,138

Interest expense to a substantial shareholder —ZFRF E/RE 2§ 8 H - 469
Interest expense to non-controlling B8 A I SEHE BIRR R < 1 B2 H

shareholders of subsidiaries 1,424 35,020
Interest expense to a subsidiary of a —REERHEZMBARZFE

substantial shareholder ogun 36,297 33,497

As disclosed in Note 6, the Group disposed the interest

YR EG » REIZ= 20174 12 A 31

in Straight View to two directors of Yinda during the HEEANARRIHEER 2 #m T IRE
year ended 31 December 2017. A ESE o

Details of balances with related parties and other M AR S REAE S 2 HMm
transactions with related parties are set out in the BRI ARG E BB AR R R

consolidated statement of financial position and Notes

20, 24, 27, 33 and 36.
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B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

42. FEFRERH

42. Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
HK$45,904,000 (2017: HK$77,125,000) in relation to
the addition of property, plant and equipment was not
settled as at 31 December 2018 and was included in
accrued charges, rental deposits and other payables.
Details are set out in Note 36.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, amount of
approximately HK$23,641,000 (2017: HK$65,138,000)
in relation to interest income generated from loan
advanced to an associate, which was not settled as at
31 December 2018 and was included in amount due
from an associate as at 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, amount of
approximately HK$18,194,000 (2017: HK$7,068,000)
in relation to interest income generated from loan
receivable to a third party, which was not settled as
at 31 December 2018 and was included in deposits,
prepayment and other receivables as at 31 December
2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
HK$1,424,000 (2017: HK$32,424,000) in relation
to finance costs, which were not settled as at 31
December 2018 and were included in accrued charges,
rental deposits and other payables as at 31 December
2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries made capital
injection on proportional basis of HK$594,350,000
(2017: HK$83,763,000) by capitalisation of
shareholders’ loans due from these subsidiaries.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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BHFE2018F 12 H31 HIFFZ

43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates

(a)

43. EARKRBELT

General information of subsidiaries (a) KEBAR—RER
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly ARBEESEEFENNEA
held by the Company at the end of the reporting A BER AR EARETIAOT -
period are set out below:
Nominal value of
issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary ERTEERES/ KDARBREROEERRA Principal activities
AL AMEREE AMEREELA IEEH
Directly  Indirectly [bl(o AR/
B% B B% [
Beiing East Gate Development Co., US$100,413,500 - 100% — 100%  Property development and
Ltd. {"Befing East Gate”) 100,413,500t ivestment
FRREEXERAT(IRRE]) VIESHEYGE
Beijing Ju Fu Real Estate RMB105,000,000 - 90% - 90%  Property development and
Development Gompany Limited AR 105,000,007 investment
("Beling Ju Fu’) NEERRRE
kﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ
([ERER)
Greenhill Property Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
127 REBR
Likesway Limited HK$2 100% - 100% - Property holding and
HBFEERAA 25T investment
RENERRE
Real Ghina Development Limited HK$2 100% - 100% —  Property holding and
REERARAE 25T investment
RANERRE
Silver Grant Infra-Structure British Virgin Islands ~ USS$1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
Investment (BVI) Limited 157 RERR
Ju Fu San Yan Jing Investment HK$2 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited BT REER
ER=BRIREERAT
Siver Grant International Securities HK$2 - 100% = 100%  Securties tracing
Investrment Limited 2RT EibE
RRARTAREBRAA
Silver Grant Securities Investment  British Virgin Islands~ USS$1 100% - 100% = Investment holding
(BVI) Limited £ 1% REER
SYJ Holding Limited British Virgin Islands ~ HK$2,170 100% - 100% = Investment holding
217037 REER
Siver Grant International Assets HK$100 100% - 100% - Inactive
Investment Limited 10037 EEXH
FEARAEREARAA
—T—\FFEH
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates
(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B &R M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z

43. B A RIREE AT (E)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) KMIBAT—MRER(E)
Country/ Nominal value of
place of issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment registered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary /R BRTEERRS/ KAARERCRIEERRE Principal activities
ARER B%/Fit AMEAEE AMEAEELS
Directly Indirectly WGt UG(cwi]
B B B 3
Twin Sparkle Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100% - Property holding and
EmzERAT S5 28T investment
RENRRIRE
Winner Property Limited Britsh Virgin Islands ~ USS1 = 100% = 100%  Investment holding
EBRUHS 137 RERRK
Sun Steed International Investment  British Virgin Islands ~ US$100 100% - 100% = Investment holding
Limited ARRLES 10057 RERK
REERREERAT]
Silver Grant International Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Petrochemical Limited &k 100%7T RERR
FEERAARAA
TZ Dong Tha PRC (Note i RMBT,664,089,268 - 68.07% - 69.78%  Investment holding and
FHRE Rl i) ARE¥1,664,089,268 7 (Note i) nvestment
(2017: (Wieti) REERREE
RMB420,000,000)
(2017% : \RE
420,000,0007)
TZ United East” PRC (Note iii) RMB1,527,952,600 - 68.07% - 66.77%  Trading of petrochemical
S (et i) AREA,527,952,6007C (Note i) products and provision
(2017: (i) of subcontracting
RMB463,645,186) \serv\ice ‘
(20175 : RS HERB TERREH
463,645,186 7T TR
Xin Jiang Zhong Qing Luan Chuang ~ PRC (Note i RMB5,000,000 - 60% = 60%  Investment holding
Technology Company Limited R El(722 i) ARE5,000,0007 REER
_("Zhong Qin?“)
nEPERANRARAA(TE])
Aesco Limited Hong Kong (Note iv)  HK$200,000 - - 100% = Investment holding
BEWLN) 200,000 7 REERK
Beijing Runda International PRC (Note ii) RMB100,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Investment Management Limited & El(#72Z /i) AB%100,000,0007% AR

("Befjing Runda’)
IREERREARRARAR
([HemEE])

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43. WEARKREBE AR (£Z)
(Continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MIBAR—MRER(E)
Country/ Nominal value of
place of issued ordinary Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued ordinary share capital/
establishment reglstered capital registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary /R BRTEERREY/ AAAfEECRALERRA Principal activties
ARER BX/fiEs AMEAEE AfEREELA ITER
2018 2017

DT T Directly  Indirectly
EE B B% Bk

Jing Yin International Investment PRC (Note i) RMB100,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Inactive
Consultant (Befing) Company Ltd B (i) AR 100,000,007 LEES
(Jing Yin)
Efﬁlﬂ%ﬁ FAER) BB AT
(RR)
Long Bright Gapital Limited Britsh Virgin Islands ~ US$100 70% - 70% = Investment holding
REARERAR ERRAHE 100%T RAER
Konson Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$\1 00 - 70% = 70%  Investment holding
BERERRAF & 10037 RERR
Taizhou Yinjian Energy Investment ~ PRC (Note i) RMB100,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Environmental
Co. Limit ed(Teuzhou Ymuan“) wE (i) AR 100,000,0007C conservation and
FNBREEFREERAE renewable energy
([=MBR) investment \
BERARBERRRE
Silver Grant International Infra- Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% = 100%  Investment holding
structure Investment Limted &7 2RTL REZR
FRARERRAARAA
Fast Growing International Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ USS1 = - 100% = Inactive
RERAHS £ (Note v) e
(Hitv)
Fast Winner Investments Limited Britsh Virgin Islands ~ US$1,000 - - 100% - Inactive
RERAHE 1,007 (Note ) TREK
(itv)
" The names in English are for identification only. " EXHBEERRE o
# As at 31 December 2017, three out of five # £2017F12 A1 HZ W B A
directors of this subsidiary were appointed by the AMABESEHNEP=FHAR
Group. The Group controlled 60% of the voting £E l ZE - AEEBRRERS
right in general meeting. PRI 60% X E M -
Notes: BEE
(i) It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned (i) KB A RRA—REINEHE
enterprise. BeEH XM
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates
(Continued)

(a)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(if) During the year ended 31 December 2018, TZ
Dong Thai issued shares to the Group and a non-
controlling interest for their contributions of shares
of TZ United East to TZ Dong Thai. As at 31
December 2018, TZ United East is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of TZ Dong Thai.

(i)  These subsidiaries are registered domestic
enterprises.

(iv)  This subsidiary had been disposed of during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

(V) These subsidiaries had been deregistered during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year.

Other than the investment holding companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which
have no principal place of operation, and Beijing
East Gate, Beijing Ju Fu, TZ Dong Thai, TZ United
East, Jing Yin, Taizhou Yinjian, Zhong Qing and
Beijing Runda which operate principally in the
PRC, all other subsidiaries principally operate
in Hong Kong (2017: Beijing East Gate, Beijing
Ju Fu, TZ Dong Thai, TZ United East, Jing Yin,
Taizhou Yinjian, Zhong Qing and Beijing Runda)
which operate principally in the PRC, all other
subsidiaries principally operate in Hong Kong).

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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HE2018F 12 A31 HIFE/E
43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43.
(Continued)

(b) Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

MEQRREE QR (E)

b) XEBZHKEATNR2018FR
2017 £12 B 31 BB -

Place/
country of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ value of issued
Form of establishment  Principal ordinary share capital/
business /A place of Class of registered capital held by
Name of company structure B5#%/  business shares held FRAERTEBRRE/  Principal activities
ARER 5t FrEst IEEXNY  FRROEN AfEREEL A IEXE
Cinda Jianrun Domestic PRC PRC Registered 30% 30%  Investment holding
[FERE enterprise~ FEL e capital R
Zhong Hai You Qi Domestic PRC PRC Registered 38% 33%  Production and trading
TEREMNAL enterprise il capital of petroleum and
nEL% AR petrochemical products
FEREERBRAR
IEm
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates
(Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material
non-controlling interests:

43. MEARKRBE QTR (%)

Proportion of

Place of ownership
incorporation interests an

d

and principal  voting rights held by

() FHEARFZFEZZHZER
L PNCiA S

TRINEFEEAIZEHEE 2
FEEHEMBRRZFHS ¢

Profit (loss) allocated

place of non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated
business interests interests non-controlling
Name of subsidiary RUFfERRE FEHEGZ HEERL PR FEHER 2 interests
WEARERE BEENY LHRREE aH (68) ESi ek 220 b
2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 WIS HKS'000 [NELEX00)
A7 AT A7 TAT
TZ Dong Thai PRC 31.93% 30.22% 16,333 65,635 839,075 252,235
TMER i
TZ United East PRC 31.93% 33.23%  (133,144) (9,000) - 119,486
Z#EM% i m
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests 19 4,365 15,372 13,372
FREFAHER  ERIFEANEAR
(116,792) 61,000 854,447 385,093

Summarised financial information in respect of
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43.

(Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

2 F R B A T ()

(c) FHEARFZFESEZHZER

that have material non-controlling interests ENB AR ZHE (&)
(Continued)
TZ Dong Thai FEMRIE
2017
HK$’000
FET
Current assets mENEE 127,448 159,084
Non-current assets EMBNE E 2,669,636 1,210,404
Current liabilities mEaE (169,226)  (534,825)
Non-current liabilities EmEBBE - =
Equity attributable to owners of the R RHER ANEEIRA

Company

(1,788,783)  (582,428)

Non-controlling interests

FEIT HiltE

(839,075)  (252,235)

Revenue A - =
Other income, gains and losses EMUA - e R EE 71,997 258,660
Expenses i (17,951) (41,469
Profit for the year F A 54,046 217,191

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

F P R
ZAUNEIE? 2SN
FEFE B

37,713 151,556
16,333 65,635

Profit for the year

FRE A

54,046 217,191
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates

43. MEARKRBE QTR (%)

(Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (c) GHEEAREEHERZHEZTEE
that have material non-controlling interests EMB AR ZFHE(E)
(Continued)

TZ Dong Thai (Continued) BTMRE(E)

2017
HK$’000
FEIT
Total comprehensive income 2ERABEERE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZZEN 11,391 182,599
Non-controlling interests FEFE Bl e 4,933 79,079
Total comprehensive income FRNEEWABE
for the year 16,324 261,678
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests ~ ¥ZIMNE R Z IEIEHERZ B
of TZ Dong Thai TS - —
Net cash outflow from operating activities 48 & 255 2 FIH & m (79,676) (32,664)
Net cash outflow from investing activities ~ RE X% 2 FRW LR (16,742) (77,709)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing BEEB 2 FHEe(ORE)RA
activities (21,186) 133,471
Net cash (outflow) inflow FHEEORE)RA (117,604) 23,098

230 Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43. WEARIREBE AT (&)

(Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (c) FHEEARIEZFREZIF2ER
that have material non-controlling interests EMB AR Z#E (&)
(Continued)

TZ United East MR
2017
HK$’000
FET
Current assets MENEE 542,729 665,212
Non-current assets EREEE 3,686,966 3,364,208
Current liabilities mENaE (2,182,760) (3,838,252)
Non-current liabilities FEmEatE (602,838)  (331,550)

Equity attributable to owners of the iN/NEIE FS DN i i

Company (1,444,097) (240,132)

Non-controlling interests

FEE B

N/A  (119,486)

Revenue WA 406,122 805,301
Other income, gains and losses HEb g A - Wz K EiE 6,295 6,468
Expenses i (813,141)  (838,855)
Loss for the year FAEE (400,724) (27,086)
Loss for the year attributable to: FABEREMN

Owners of the Company KRABHEE A (267,580) (18,086)

Non-controlling interests FEFE ) FE (133,144) (9,000)
Loss for the year FAEE (400,724) (27,086)

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHFE2018F 12 A31 HiFFZ
43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates 43.
(Continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
(Continued)

TZ United East (Continued)

MEQRREE QR (E)

(c) FEEAFEHEZZHFZEH

BB AT ZFHE(E)
FEMEB(E)
2017
HK$°000
FET

(265,141) (11,677)

Total comprehensive expense EEX HATEREN
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NECIEZZEWN
Non-controlling interests R

(131,930) (5,811)

Total comprehensive expense for the year &R & X 4258

(397,071) (17,488)

Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating EZR 2 FREORE)RA

activities (152,926) 364,702
Net cash outflow from investing activities 18 & £ 2/ F R & mdE (262,961) (118,015)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEER O FREMA 250,649 149,860
Net cash (outflow) inflow RS ORH)RA (165,238) 396,547

Silver Grant International Industries Limited

IRERREFXEGRA A
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B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

43. Particulars of Subsidiaries and Associates
(Continued)

(c)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii

(ii)

Pursuant to a resolution passed during the year
ended 31 December 2018, the share capital of TZ
Dong Thai increased from RMB420,000,000 to
RMB720,000,000. The increment of share capital
was contributed by shareholders of TZ Dong Thai
on proportional basis. The Group contributed
RMB209,341,000 and the non-controlling
interests contributed RMB90,659,000 by way of
capitalisation of loans. Consequently, the non-
controlling interests of the Group increased by
RMB90,659,000 (equivalent to HK$102,093,000).

Pursuant to a resolution passed during the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group and
non-controlling interest of approximately TZ United
East capitalised their loans of approximately
RMB873,080,000 and approximately
RMB434,431,000 respectively due from TZ United
East as shareholder’s contribution on proportional
basis. The non-controlling interest of TZ United
East increased by approximately RMB434,431,000
(equivalent to HK$492,257,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the non-controlling shareholder made capital
injection on proportional basis of RMB69,774,000
(equivalent to HK$83,763,000) by capitalisation of
shareholder’s loan due from TZ United East.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two
immaterial subsidiaries declared and distributed
dividend of approximately HK$47,806,000 to their
shareholders. approximately HK$8,101,000 were
distributed to their non-controlling shareholders.

Annual Report 2018

43. MEARKRBE QTR (%)

(c)

FEEXRFEHEZZHFZEHR
BEMBARZFHE(E)

Hiat -

(i)

(i)

B —ER2018F12 A31 H
IEEERBBRRESE - TME
Z 2 BN A R ¥ 420,000,000
#nzE A R # 720,000,000 °
ZWEEBRFEMERZRERL
B 3 17 o 2N & B K& IE # l #E
mBRRAEERLCLERERA S
A& A A R # 209,341,000 &
AR 90,659,000 ° FEt » ANEE
B2 IEEFESEMNOARE
90,659,000 (A8 7 102,093,000
BIT) °

R #E — 38 K20184 12 A 31
AIEFRBAMRZESR

£ 8 &I R B 2 I
B RERLHEARNEE
FE U 2= ) R B 2 fE R o Al
4 B AN R 873,080,000 &
A B #434,431,000 > Z& M
B2 JEE B I A A
B #434,431,000(48 & »
492,257,000/ 7T) °

R2017F12A31B 2 & A -
FE 20 1 e 25 A% 3R A 3% Bt 9 B AR
b H B U e M SR B 2 IR R B 3K
T & AR #69,774,000 (10 &
83,763,000/ 7T) °

BE2017F12A31B 2 EE
N ARTEANKBRARE
5 KR - B% B 49 47,806,000 78
TTFHERE - 478,101,000 7T
A FH IEPE B RESS AR R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
EE20184F 12 531 HIFF/Z

44,

Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those which cash flows were, or future
cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

44. HRMEXBELE2AERBXR

TERFAREHBEXRBELZAE
ZEPHERFRERIIFRLEE - @A
EEZBENRERESRIGBRNEAS
MRAEB 2 EHBRERERTOER
MEXBELEZHRDR -

activities.
Amount
payable to
an entity
controlled
by a director
of the Dividend
Company payables Borrowings Total
Ef M
ARR-NES BER
b AN EARE EHFE fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET TET FET
(Note 36) (Notes 33 and 36)
(W 36) (#5334 36)
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1R - - 3,108,101 3,108,101
Cash changes: Beiig
— Loan raised — EXRE - - 1,504,619 1,504,619
— Repayment of loans —BRER - - (1,598,332) (1,598,332)
— Dividend paid — ZfIRF - (8,101) = (8,101)
— Proceeds received on behalf of an entity — RIkEE 375,688 = = 375,688
Non-cash changes: FREEE
— Dividend declared to non-controlling interests ~ — REEH T2 EER
of non-wholly owned subsidiaries LB FEEHIE
(¥ - 8,101 - 8,101
— Capitalisation of a loan from non-controlling ~~ — FEEHERE 2 AR L,
interest (Note 43(c)(i) BRAE43(c)0) - - 83,763 83,763
— Foreign exchange translation — ERE 15,388 - 132,969 148,357
At 31 December 2017 Ro017£12 831 A 391,076 - 3,231,120 3,622,196
Cash changes: Beies :
— Loan raised —ERE - - 2,024,657 2,024,657
— Repayment of loans — BEER - = (1,579,992) (1579,992)
— Repayment of proceeds received on behalf of ~ —{EEKUFIA
an entity (414,147) - - (414,147)
Non-cash changes: FReEY:
— Capitalisation of loans from non-controling ~ — JFiRHIERE 2 EAfL
interests (Note 43(c)) B2 450)0) - - (594,350) (594,350)
— Foreign exchange translation — hERE 23,071 - (157,645) (134,574)
At 31 December 2018 Ro018% 12431 - - 2,923,790 2,923,790
Silver Grant International Industries Limited RERREXERE AR
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B RRM T

45, Capital Risk Management 45. EXRBER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits.

Management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of
capital and the risk associated with the capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues and the issue of new debt or the
redemption of the existing debt.

Annual Report 2018
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B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

46. Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

46. €T H

ST A ZER

2017
HK$’000
FET
Financial assets SRMEE
Mandatorily measured FVTPL BEIAL AR EFTE B EEE)ET
Az 805,795 100,526
Designated as at FVTPL BENRARBEFEAHEHTA
Ei-End — 1,189,472
Amortised cost BESHA AR 2,527,092 —
Loans and receivables B R EWGIE — 1,544,808
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHESRERE - 906,897
Financial liabilities cHAE
Amortised cost BIHA A 3,433,430 4,151,616
Silver Grant International Industries Limited IREEBREXAR AT
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. @I E(#Z)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
structured finance securities, available-for-sale
investments, held-for-trading investments, amount due
from an associate, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank deposits,
restricted bank balance, structured bank deposits, bank
balances, trade and bills payables, accrued charges,
other payables and borrowings. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk from prior year.

Market risks
Interest rate risk management

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 relates primarily to its fixed-
rate amount due from an associate, fixed-rate pledged
bank deposits, fixed-rate loan receivables, fixed-rate
other receivables, fixed-rate other payable and fixed-
rate borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 primarily relates to its
restricted bank balance, bank balances carried at
prevailing deposit rate, variable-rate structured bank
deposits and floating-rate borrowings.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps in order
to mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations
relating to interest cash flows. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated. In addition, the Group has
concentration risk on its floating-rate bank balances
and borrowings which expose the Group significantly
towards the change in Hong Kong Interbank offered
Rates (“HIBOR”), Hong Kong prime rate, the PBOC
interest rate and the SHPB interest rate.

Annual Report 2018
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2 E 20184 12 A 31 HIFFE
46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. SRMITE(#E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
the interest income of the Group are solely generated
form financial assets that are measured at amortised
cost.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to the floating-rate borrowings
and variable-rate bank balances at the end of the
reporting period and the reasonable possible change
taking place at the beginning of each year, held
constant throughout the year. The directors of the
Company remained using 150 (2017: 150) basis points
for assessing interest rate risk on the above balances
(except for bank balances) after considering the impact
of the volatile financial market conditions. The directors
of the Company used 10 (2017: 10) basis points for
assessing interest rate risk on bank balances because
they considered that the fluctuations on the interest rate
on bank balances would be less significant. If interest
rates had been 150 basis points (2017: 150 basis
points) higher/lower for the above balances (except for
bank balances) and 10 basis points (2017: 10 basis
points) higher/lower for bank balances and all other
variables were held constant, the potential effect on
post-tax profit for the year is as follows:

EREREEEERBE(E)

5 mEeE (&)

F)EEfR EHE ()

R2018F K 2017 F 12 A31 B2 FR -
RE B 7 F B U AEE A B IRk A
FTECEMERE -

TSNS HERZBRITEE
REFERITESNARE RN R R
INRBFFNEENSBIESELET A
HREEAFEANEFTENBREFTER
B ARREEZRINCRTHERER
BT EMERBXE150(2017
F : 150) E B AERTAZ A E & #R (BR1T
BERBRIN R KRR - AR RIEFIA
10(2017 & : 10) A B EFTAZ R1T A5 54
ZHRERR - AAZRIFERIRITLE
BRAOEBRRE - WEMER Ll &
ER(ERITHEBRBRHN) 3R 150 B 2 (2017
FA0EZ)M EF TR RER10EE
(2017 F - 10EZ) W LA TRERR
THEYBREM—TE  HEAR
BEnfEETENT

2017
HK$°000
FET

Increase in post-tax loss (2017: decrease in  FRK 12 E B AN(2017 F ¢

post-tax profit) for the year

BRBL s AR )

29,019 (28,178)

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management

The major financial assets and liabilities of the Group
are denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entities. Other than the items stated
below, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions
are denominated in the functional currency of each
individual group entity. The equivalent amounts of HKD
are set out below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % & B iR M &

For the year ended 31 December 2018
B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z

46. TRI R (&)

CHEAREEEERBEKE)

5 m bR (E)
SMNER R BT

AEERRNEEEAINEE RHEE
UWAEETIZcREERSHMAE-
BTAIEB S NRAREERRAER
PREER SN ERE Y T ERE - AR
SENERRXHRATELEERFIN
NEEEERRFEMN - RFEZBTH
I

2017
HK$’000
FET
Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS
— HKD — BT 101,888 26,520
— United States dollars — X7 1,274 1,753
103,162 28,273
Loan receivable FEWE K
— United States dollars — X5 163,020 163,020
Other receivable B & R
— HKD — BT 8,788 10,058
Borrowings BE
— HKD — BT 450,000 200,000
Other payables H th FE A 3K
— HKD — BT 19,536 40,091
Annual Report 2018 — T \FFR
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46.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign exchange exposure should
the need arises.

Basis of sensitivity analysis:

Sensitivity analysis is prepared to demonstrate the
effect of foreign exchange differences by 10% change in
exchange rate of the functional currency (mainly RMB)
against the relevant foreign currencies of the Company
and respective subsidiaries, assuming all other variables
were held constant. A negative number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit/decrease in post-tax loss
where the functional currencies weaken 10% against
the relevant foreign currencies of the Company and
respective subsidiaries. For a 10% strengthening of the
functional currencies of the Company and respective
subsidiaries, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss/profit for the year.

46.

BRI

EWMIAE)

EREREEEERBEE)

5 mEeE (&)

SR B EHE (4B )
Zliilfﬁﬁ%jii’ijﬁf{ﬁﬁ@)ﬂ;%ﬁﬂ% e
%ﬂ&ﬁﬁgﬁv%)ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂﬂ % 3
TTE R ©

PUREDITEAE

BREHMABFRZFEZFTIE - REED
7fﬁ%mﬁl\%€</@ﬁ%%§ﬂ&ﬁ10%3}@%1&?
BAARBAE) ZEREEHARQT
B AR - LT ZEBEKRTED
E%%E*H@%W%AEMH%WI\%%ZS%O%
Bt FE 2 g sk B BB 2L -
EINREEB L AR 2 AEEK B A A5
10% * S| BEAFREEEFEE
HREER A RBEE -

2017
HK$’000
TFET
Increase in post-tax loss (2017: decrease in  FRERFIEEBIE (2017 4F
post-tax profit) for the year BB 1E AR A (16,246) (3,235)

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management

Equity investments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group is exposed to
price risk through certain of its financial assets at FVTPL
investments (2017: held-for-trading investments). For
available-for-sale investments measured at cost less
impairment, as the fair value could not be measured
reliably, they have not been included in the sensitivity
analysis.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at end
of the reporting period. If the prices of the respective
available-for-sale investments in listed equity securities,
certain unlisted equities which measured at fair value
and held-for-trading investments had been 10% (2017:
10%) higher/lower, assuming all other variables were
held constant, the impact to the Group would be:

46. @I E (&)

EREREEEERBE(E)

s mEeE (&)

B R &

R2018&F12A31H REERESR
FURAARBENEBEEHFABEZNE
BMEERE(CI7F : HIEEERE)
FRERER o MAKKNINBETEN
AHEERETRERERBRES
W BERAABEL TEERSETE ©

T SEE DT IR AR RE AR
EARERRRMETE o ME A8 LMk
RFEH 2 AHEHERE « FELMRAR
MatE RIFEEEIRE 2 B IE MR
10% (2017 F : 10%) © RE&E A0 AT
BASARERFTE  HAEENTE

KEz

2017
HK$°000
FEIT
Financial assets at FVTPL: AAAREFEREZEETA
BENemEE
Decrease in post-tax loss for the year FAKRB R EERD 266 —
Held-for-trading investments: BIEEEHRE -
Increase/decrease in post-tax loss for the 4= IR B 14 5 KL hn, 36 4>
year - 8,394

10% (2017 F : 10% ) R X AN 1% & B 1%
REARFESHEERTRELIRNE

of the reasonable possible change in price. JREAE o

10% (2017: 10%) change in equity investment price
represents the directors of the Company’s assessment

Annual Report 2018 — T \FFR
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Price risk management (Continued)

Equity investments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group is
exposed to concentration risk on the held-for-trading
investments as they comprise equity shares issued by
several companies listed Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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EREREEEERBE(E)

5 mEeE (&)

Bi5ER EE (&)

BRERE (&)

MR20184F K 2017F 12 A31H » K&
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WEE  AZSRENNEBS LTS
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. @I E (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies tREREEEERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEEERE(E)
Liquidity tables BB
The following table details the Group’s remaining Tl 51 3% 5 51 7S 2 B B LA IE 8 UK
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial HZITETESRIEB BRI
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The B - ZYKREEREBREBEZ IR
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted BEREERAEE T HERKRNKRE
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest HKBRE - FRBENEREASHES
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The e BRERATZEFXR - RITEMEN
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. RITH RPN AR E BIRFTE -

To the extent that interest flows are floating-rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from existing interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

On demand Total

Weighted or contractual

average less than 6 months undiscounted
interest rate 6 months to 1-2 2-5 Over cash flow Carrying
% RERY, 1year years years 5 years AEZ amounts

mEYENE  OReR  6EAE1E  1FE2E  2FE5E BRsE  ReR4E kEE
% HKSOD  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKBOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOMD
TAx TAL TAL TAL TAL T TAT

As at 31 December R 2018%

218 128318
Trade and bl R

payables &3 NATER 11,955 = = = = 11,955 11,955
Other payables Hfbpefiz NATER 497 685 = = = = 497,685 497,685
Borrowings [t 546 1,192,752 633,448 552,013 309,533 488,789 3.176,5% 2923790

1,702,392 633,448 552,013 309,533 488,789 3,686,175 3,433,430

Asat 31 December  R20174%

2017 128318
Trade and bils (gt

payables REE N/A MR 7,886 - - - - 7,886 7,886
Other payables Hit R NA TR 912,610 - - - - 912,610 912,610
Borrowings fBE 582 1,667,624 684,328 412,106 202,405 575062 3561525 3231120

2,088,120 684,328 412,106 222,405 575,062 4,482,021 4,151,616

Annual Report 2018 — T \FFR
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 6 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2018, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
loans of the Group amounted to HK$450,000,000
(2017: HK$201,682,000). Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that such bank loans of the Group will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements in Note 33. The aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows of the Group will
amount to HK$451,470,000 (2017: HK$202,149,000)
within 6 months.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. EWMITA(#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in respect of amounts due
from one (2017: one) an associate of HK$383,684,000
(2017: HK$671,372,000), loan receivables from five
(2017: two) debtors of total HK$931,403,000 (2017:
HK$223,044,000), loan interest receivables from
five (2017: three) independent third parties of total
HK$31,668,000 (2017: HK$15,023,000) and trade
receivables due from an associate of HK$62,045,000
(2017: HK$62,600,000).

Annual Report 2018
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HNEBeHEERTZRHZEAEER
b2 RZEEED RS MEARRE
P 2 BREE - NEERERA EAE
FRREMEREEAMRERESEAS
BEEMNEERRE

HZE2018F 12 831 H » 5 H b fE IR
RME AEBBEEANEERES
FER - BR—KR(2017F  —K )
2 A 7] 7X 383,684,000 %8 7T (2017 & -
671,372,000 7T ) « HIEW T E (2017
F: WE)EBE A#LE931,403,0008
75 (2017 £ : 223,044,000 7T ) - &
WHAZRI7TE : ZR2)BYE=ZHH
B B 42805 31,668,000 (2017
F : 15,023,000 7% 70 ) K & Uk — KBk &
A 7 BR 362,045,000 7T(2017 4 :
62,600,000 7T) °
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has a concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds deposited with a few major banks. The
management of the Group considers pledged bank
deposits, restricted bank balance, structured bank
deposits and bank balances that are deposited with
financial institutions with high credit rating to be low
credit risk financial assets. In addition, trade receivables
due from Zhong Hai You Qi are with high credit rating
and no past due history and the trade receivables from
tenants and other receivables are with no past due
history. The Group always measures the loss allowance
for these receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. Based on internal credit rating, the management
of the Group considers these assets are low credit risk
financial assets due to their short-term in nature and
the probability of default is negligible, i.e. 0.1%, on the
basis of good repayment history during the year ended
31 December 2018, and accordingly, no loss allowance
was recognised during the year ended 31 December
2018 as the amounts are not material. There has been
no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the current reporting period.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on amount
due from an associate and loan receivables and interest
receivables as at 31 December 2018 with details set
out in Notes 20 and 24. Based on internal credit rating,
the management of the Group considers the amount
due from an associate and loan receivables with low
credit risk of default and does not have any past due
amount. The management of the Group has made
periodic assessments as well as individual assessment
on recoverability based on historical settlement records,
financial position of the associate, debtors and their
guarantors (if any) and adjusts for forward-looking
information. The Group always measures the loss
allowance for these receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. After re-assessment of financial capability
of the associate and the other debtors, historical
repayment and considering the future prospects of the
industry in which the associate and the other debtors
operate, HK$18,476,000 net reversal of impairment
loss of amount due from an associate and loans and
interest receivables was made as result of changes in
credit risk. The gross carrying amount of amount due
from an associate and loan and interest receivables are
HK$389,389,000 and HK$968,090,000 respectively.
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss

allowance that has been recognised for 12m ECL that
amount due from an associate and loan receivables.

ERMIAE)

EREREEEERBE(E)

=EEE(E)

RRRE R Y FE MBS 2 2 IR IR R U E K
RIBRERR B

HK$'000
BT
As at 31 December 2017, under HKAS 39 2017612 A31 B, BAGHERE 9%
ET =
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 EREANBREENSORERACRE 29,200
As at 1 January 2018, as restated R2018%F1 A1H @ &£&7| 29,200
Changes due to financial instruments recognised as at 1 R2018F1 A1 BfEREMITAY
January: e
— Reversal of impairment loss recognised — REBBEERER (22,295)
New or originated financial assets during the current year: NARFEEIIESRRNTEEE
— Impairment losses recognised — REEBER 3,819
As at 31 December 2018 R2018% 12 A31H 10,724

As at 31 December 2018, the Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with the unlisted funds classified
as financial assets at FVTPL. Accordingly, its carrying
amount of HK$592,229,000 represents the maximum
exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, these is
no any change in estimation technique to determine
whether the credit risk of Group’s financial investments
has increased significant since initial recognition.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

46. @I E (&)

ERMIEZAAREFE

FREBRAAAEHBEERZHMEEZ
RAEDREEMEEL R L EE

AEERNEREEREBBENESE
BEPRTARAETE - TRIEHW

MEETXEFLMEENERAEDN

A

ENEEEREHEERANITEREA

ER

Significant
Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key unobservable
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy input(s) input(s)
TREE MAER MMEZR FEHERBERZ EXTAHBEZER
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
#2018 %1231 R ®2017%12A31H
1) Held-for-trading non-Listed equity securities in  Listed equity securities in Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market.  Nil
derivative financial  Hong Kong: — securities  Hong Kong: securities F18 WNEETHZENEE- £
assets classified as  brokerage industry — brokerage industry —
financial assets at HK$3,187,000 HK$100,526,000
FVTPL
RIEEERE 2 NEE LM RAES - — WNEELm2RAE
STASHAENE BHELE 5187000 #%:—FHEL%—
BURAEHABE BT 100,526,000 0
MeREE
Structured bank deposits i Structured bank Level 2 Valuation provided by counterparty Nil
PRC — Ni deposits in PRC — F28 which is determined by reference to &
RPBZ ERMEAER —  HK$1,182,473,000 the transaction
i R 7 MR T — price in an inactive market.
1,182,473,000/7 mRAUFREHE  2EFERD
BRI °
2) Structured finance  Assets — HK$6,781,000  Assets — HK$6,999,000 Level 3 Valuation provided by counterparty Nil
securities EE—6,781,0008T  &E — 6,999,000 £3%  whichis by reference to the value &
ERASRES of a new comparable issue of the
similar structured finance securities
under the market situation as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December
2017.
R2018 k2017 F 12 31 BRARBHTF
Rt fhfE - 22T AN
TfEEEEES o
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. EMITA(#)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments SRIAZARBEFEE)
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and AEFREALNGZHBEERETHEEZ
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value RABEBDEEEMEENL LA AEE
on a recurring basis (Continued) (&)
Significant
Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key unobservable
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy input(s) input(s)
SREE AAER DMEZR REFIRBREZ EXTAHBEZER
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
#2018 12A31R R2017512A31R
3) Unlisted equity 10 per cent equity N/A Level 3 Adjusted net assets approach — the ~ Adjusted net asset
securities investment in Jiangxi  MNER F35 hook value of assets and liabilities of  value of the
EETIRAES Copper International the investee are adjusted to their fair ~ investee (Note |
Trading Co., Ltd. engaged value. BRARR BREE
in trading of coppers — BREMFEER: — RREDNRICE  EFEWH)
HK$123,965,000 EREENEREREEANAE
RAELHERESERA
A10%RARE - £
TEEBREEH —
123,965,000 70
17.96 per cent equity N/A Level 3  Adjusted net assets approach — the ~ Adjusted net asset
investment in Beijing  MEA E38 book value of assets and liabilities of ~ value of the
Hejing Zhongdao the investee are adjusted to their fair ~ investee (Note i)
Technology Investment value. RRERF EREE
Partnership engaged in EREMFEER S — RREDRIZE  EFEWH)
investing unlisted entities ERABMRAEHREAAAE -
engaged in high and
new technology sectors,

HK$ 11,923,000
BALREHTERRER

RAANEE17.96% K

AEE  ETERERH

RirEE A O£
HHEE — 11,923,000
T

Silver Grant International Industries Limited REFBREEFRA A
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

46. @I E (&)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments EMIAZAABEFEE)
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and FEFRALNGETHBEERTHBERS
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value RAAEDEREMBEEL LA EIE
on a recurring basis (Continued) (%)
Significant

Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key unobservable
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy input(s) input(s)
SREE DABR DABER HERIRBERZ EATTHRBECES

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
R2018 %1231 R R2017%12331R

3) Unlisted equity 4.14 per cent equity N/A
securities investment in Beijing ~ FER
JEmRAER TeraSolar engaged in

providing complete
solution for solar thermal
electric system —
HK$64,930,000
BEKGRA14%HEAR
B HINAAGHAE
BARREZARANR
— 64,930,000

4) Unlisted fund Assets — HK$573,798,000 Assets — HK$606,242,000

investments EE —573,798,0008T  AE — 606,242,000 T
FLTESRE

Assets — HK$18,431,000  Assets — HK$22,560,000
BE — 1843100087 A& —22,560,000%7

Annual Report 2018

Level 3 Present value of the disposal value. Discount rate on the

F38 ENeB/RE disposal value
(Note i)

ERERMERE
(Hiti)

Level 3  Adjusted net assets approach — the ~ Adjusted net asset

%38 book value of assets and liabilities of ~ value by reference
the investee are adjusted to their fair o the fair value of
value. underlying assets
BRENFEENE — BRER Tzﬁ (Note i)
ERBRNEREREEAMA PERTERELMAE

NARTAERE
(Hiitii)
Level 3 Adjusted net assets approach — the  Adjusted net asset
38 hook value of assets and liabilities of ~ value of the
the investee are adjusted to their fair ~ investee (Note )
value. WEEAR BARE

AEBNEARSE - WREDNAZE  ASEGHR)
ERABNERESEELALE
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes:

(i) A 10% decrease in the adjusted net assets holding
all other variables constant would decrease the
carrying amounts of these unlisted equity securities by
HK$14,499,000, in aggregate.

(i) A 10% increase in the discount rate holding all other
variables constant would decrease the carrying amount
by HK$124,000.

(i) A 10% decrease in the fair value of the underlying assets
would decrease the carrying amount by HK$59,180,000.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair value.

There is no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Level
3 during the year.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on recurring basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value
of its financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost using the discounted cash flows
analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Silver Grant International Industries Limited
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SWMIAE)

46.

46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The executive directors of the Company are responsible
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data or information provided by counterparty
financial institutions to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available or counterparty financial
institutions cannot provide sufficient information in
relation to fair value, the management of the Group
will engage third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The finance manager reports to management
of the Group semi-annually to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

EMIAZARENEE)

AARETEREEEF

ARRIZHATEFARETERNTE
RAEZEERMREAE -

AEBZ AN EERARAETENH
HEZEW - At —REEHBEZ
AAER - AEERAAREZAIBER
MEHBATHBBRIZHFREZE
Ko I EE 1 BB AERSREER
SEHFREREETHBHEIAEZE
o AEEEREESERF=188%
MERAETHE - BEKESEYF
AAKEERERS  HEAHEER
RERBZRA -

R2018F K 2017F 12 A31 HH A A
BEER -

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
R2018512A31 R R2017E12 8318
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
18 %28 %38 18 08 238 g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT AT AT AT
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ WMEEZEAAEREN
SREE
Structured finance securities &R AEES - - 6,781 6,781 = = 6,999 6,999
Non-derivative financial assets ~ B{FEERE 2 T4
held-for-trading SREE 3,187 - - 3,187 100,526 - - 100,526
Uniited funds krmEs - - 592209 592,29 — — 68802 628802
Unlisted equity securities FLEmkAES - - 200818 200,818 = — - -
Others At - 2m -2 — — - -
Total & 3,187 2,780 799,828 805,795 100,526 - 635,301 736,327
— T N\FFER
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued) 46. €T E(#E)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments SRMITEZARBFEE)
(Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation process RABEFTERGEESFZ)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FEIEEHMEENSREBZANES
of financial assets and financial liabilities S
31 December 2018 2018412 H31H
Structured Unlisted Unlisted
finance fund equity
securities investments securities Total
EEN ¥EH o
SRES EeRE RAFES k)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 ®2017F1H1H 6,831 - - 6,831
Total gains or losses: Wz BB R
— Change in fair value (Note) — DA EEE (L) 168 - - 168
Addition i - 628,802 - 628,802
As at 31 December 2017 R2017%€12 8318 6,999 628,802 - 635,801
Adjustment upon application of & EBEBEHREES|

HKFRS 9 FO R - - 360,695 360,695
As at 1 January 2018, as restated 7201841 A1 B (& &%) 6,999 628,802 360,695 996,496
Total (loss) gain in profit or loss AR 2 (BB KL%

(Note) (Fis) (218) (6,815) 81,437 74,404
Exchange realignment ERERIE - (29,758) (2,050) (31,808)
Disposal HE - - (239,264) (239,264)
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 6,781 592,229 200,818 799,828

Silver Grant International Industries Limited REEEBREERE AT
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46. Financial Instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

of financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

Note: Changes in fair value are recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss. The total gain for the year
included in profit or loss of HK$74,404,000 (2017:
HK$168,000) relates to the unlisted fund investments,
unlisted equity securities and structured finance
securities (2017: structured finance securities) held at the

end of the reporting period.

47. Events After Reporting Period

(a)

On 11 March 2019, Beijing East Gate, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a
non-legally binding letter of intent (the “Letter of
Intent”) with two independent third parties, namely,
Ms. Hou Yuanyi and Ms. Zeng Shukun (collectively
the “Vendors”). Pursuant to the Letter of Intent,
Beijing East Gate has indicated its interest to
acquire certain equity stake in a limited partnership
company which holds a portfolio of debt assets
in the PRC from the Vendors. The proposed
acquisition has not yet completed as at the date
of this report.

On 12 March 2019, the directors of the
Company propose to change the English name
of the Company from “Silver Grant International
Industries Limited” to “Silver Grant International
Holdings Group Limited”. The completion of
this proposed change is subject to, amongst
others, obtaining approval from shareholders in
extraordinary general meeting. The proposed
change has not yet completed at the date of this
report.

Annual Report 2018
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RABEPHERGABERTAA
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HET  FETRAFESMEBED R
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168,000 7T) °
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48. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves

of the Company

48. AR TRMBIRR K R

BRI

2017
HK$’000
FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investment properties LB 105,877 102,762
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - B Rkt 35,676 37,286
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries TERIELTHEB AR 675,432 678,299
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BT BB R RIFR 3,271,752 3,076,109
Structured finance securities SEREMESRES - 6,999
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE - 25,339
Financial assets at fair value through LARENEREEEHTA
profit or loss BalmemEE 27,992 —
Loan receivable JEWRE K - 163,020
4,116,729 4,089,814
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through AR ETEBHEEEH AR
profit or loss mHEREE 3,187 —
Held-for-trading investments RHEEERE = 100,526
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %4 - B+ 7k & £ th fE U 3% 10,250 10,634
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSF B A K 261,367 320,804
Amount due from an associate JE UK B 2 N B R 10,410 10,410
Loan receivable JEE TR 163,020 —
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RIS 101,181 25,904
549,415 468,278
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 4,666,144 4,558,092
EQUITY ;&N
Capital and reserves EAXRHE
Share capital fE&N 3,626,781 3,626,781
Reserves (] 509,890 621,749
TOTAL EQUITY RA4EE 4,136,671 4,248,530
Silver Grant International Industries Limited REFEBEEEGR AR
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48. ARABMBRARHEERE)

48. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves

of the Company (Continued)

2017
HK$’000
FET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liability EREBEME
Deferred tax liabilities BELERIRE R 8,863 8,863
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued charges, rental deposits and EErER - HiEe kEAM
other payables FET3R 21,608 42,015
Amounts due to subsidiaries PR BT B R RIFR 49,002 58,684
Borrowings BEE 450,000 200,000
520,610 300,699
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAE 529,473 309,562
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BRAREEEE 4,666,144 4,558,092
Net current assets BEREBEE 28,805 167,579
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABERS 4,145,534 4,257,393

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019

and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Gao Jian Min
SERLE
Director %

Annual Report 2018
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Mr. Huang Jiajue
BEBRAE
Director &%
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

48. ARABMBRARHEERE)

Movement in the Company’s reserves AATREZET
Asset
revaluation Retained
reserve profits Total
BEEEMRE REEF At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 818 86,339 446,865 538,204
Profit for the year F R - 84,466 84,466
Other comprehensive income FREMEZEKA
for the year 4,079 — 4,079
Total comprehensive income FAEERARE
for the year 4,079 84,466 88,545
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A31H 90,418 531,331 621,749
Loss for the year FABRE = (111,994) (111,994)
Other comprehensive income FAEMEEBA
for the year 135 — 135
Total comprehensive income (expense) FREMEEBA(T ) B8
for the year 135 (111,994) (111,859
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F 12 A31 H 90,553 419,337 509,890
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY Bt &I E R
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EZE2018F 12 531 HIFF/Z
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A81ALEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS Million B LEN 10
AE3T BEET AEET BEET FEET
(Note)
(Hiit)
Results E
Revenue KA 424.2 340.0 426.8 929.2 511.8
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to owners  ARAFIEAR AEEERE
of the Company fil(EH#) 109.4 (65.8) (35.1) 260.2 (49.4)
At 31 December
M12A31H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million LSVl HKS Million
BEAT BEET AEET BEET FEET
(Note)
(H2)
Assets and liabilities BERER
Investment properties and property, plant REMERDE -
and equipment B R 5,948.1 6,399.7 6,100.5 6,502.1 6,306.0
Land use rights TifERE 216.3 199.6 182.5 192.0 178.4
Goodwil HE 46.5 46.5 46.5 39.5 39.5
Structured finance securities ERMSHES 6.6 6.7 6.8 7.0 =
Interests in associates NG \ 562.4 7435 865.0 13346 1,335.1
AR B RSB
Financial assets at fair value though profit or NERREREE
loss — non-current — ERE — — — — 228.8
Available-for-sale investments @R LERE 352.3 310.2 288.9 300.7 -
Loan receivable with embedded HERARITET A2
derivative WE 7338 736.9 - - -
Loan receivables - non-current ERER - R 570.3 = = 223.0 271.5
Net current assets FRBAE 1,089.1 150.4 802.1 111.9 691.2
9,475.4 8,593.5 8,292.3 8,710.8 9,056.5
Share capital A 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8 3,626.8
Reserves =1 3,732.1 3,163.4 2,730.3 3,476.6 3,122.0
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A R AEERA 7,358.9 6,790.2 6,357.1 7,103.4 6,748.8
Non-controling interests IR 458.8 370.9 2337 385.1 854.4
Non-current liabilities FEHEE 1,657.7 1,482.4 1,701.5 1,222.3 1,453.3
9,475.4 8,593.5 8,292.3 8,710.8 9,056.5
Note: In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 15, HKFRS 9 Kzt RARERN - NEBEERE ST ERELDSE
and other amendments to HKFRSs (see note 2 of the Notes to 155% - BAEMKREERIFE IR LB BHK
the Consolidated Financial Statements section for the summary MR HEMET(RESHBEREMTA
of the corresponding financial impact). Accordingly, certain Mzxo &P B EM G EME) o Atk » &
comparative information for the years ended 31 December, FE 20144 ~ 20154 ~ 2016 F K 20174 12
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 may not be comparable to A31BETHERA K Al sk eL E &L £ 2018
the year ended 31 December, 2018 as such comparative F12 A31 HEHLL#R - B Z AT LE B E #HA
information was prepared under HKAS 18, HKAS 11 and HKAS BB LR85 BB ENI1HR
39. Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS BB ST XERI3HR AR - EABBMER
15 and HKFRS 9 are disclosed in the "Significant Accounting EREREASHE R BBV BRELEAFEIORS
Policies" Section. HABERMNEREEERIEESFHEER ] —X
A o
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES iRE Y HE M E

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B 22018F 12 H31 HIFF/Z
The following is a list of the Group's investment properties at THABAREBMMKR2018F 12 831 HHIEEY
31 December 2018: E -
Investment properties in the PRC NRAPRZRENE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
I B4 AR A& EEEE
Sq. ft.
FIHR
1. Basement 1, Basement 2, Level 0 and Level 1 to 3 of Medium Commercial 700,427
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, term lease [GHE
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC H Hj
FEIERERPEH19ORRIRESGMEE E2E -
RENR1EBEIE
2. Level 4 to 31 of South Apartment Tower (including 401, Long lease Residential 31,171
402, 408, 405, 406, 407, 408, 501, 502, 5083, 505, 506, KHA F=
507, 508, 30/F and 31/F) East Gate Plaza, 39 Dongzhong
Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC
R AT R E R A A3 RIRE S M EAEE
$4%31B(HFE 401, 402, 403, 405, 4086, 407, 408,
501, 502, 5083, 505, 506, 507, 508, 30#£ % 311&)
3. Level 4 to 31, North Apartment Tower, Long lease Residential 339,993
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, £ A F=
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC
PRI RTRBERFH19NRIRESILEAEE
FA4ZE 3
4. Portion of Level 2-5, 6 and 8 of Hua Po Lou, Medium term Commercial 10,540
No. 28 Dong Zhong Jie Jia, lease (EES
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC (Note) A
AR EIIE T Rk R R R A R 28 SR EERIEE 2 =5
6 & 8 EaBH (H1it)
Note: The legal title of the properties have not been passed to the Biat - WEMEZEEMR2018F12 A31 HHAR
Group at 31 December, 2018. BEFALER o
Investment properties in the Hong Kong VRBEZIREYE
Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
i 24 TN ER Jickes EEmEE
Sq. ft.
FIHR
Flat B, 9 Floor, 6A Bowen Road, Hong Kong Long lease Residential 3,007
ABBEEEGCAIEBE A F=

Silver Grant International Industries Limited IREBBREEFR AT
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